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FINANCIAL CONDITION
CLARK COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Granting Agency

Pass through entity Grant CFDA Non-Cash
Grant Name Number Number Disbursements Disbursements
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Passed through:
Ohio Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster:
School Breakfast Program 069997-05PU-2011 10.553 $11,387
069997-05PU-2012 9,025
Total National School Breakfast Program 20,412
National School Lunch Program 069997-LLP1-2011 10.555 3,359
069997-LLP4-2011 17,668
069997-LLP1-2012 2,702
069997-LLP4-2012 13,811
National School Lunch Program - Non-Cash Assistance N/A $3,775
Total National School Lunch Program 37,540 3,775
Total Child Nutrition Cluster Program 57,952 3,775
Ohio Department of Job and Family Services:
State Administrative Matching Grants for the
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Programs, Recovery G-1213-11-0020 10.561 1,294,174
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 1,352,126 3,775
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Direct Awards:
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants - Recovery B-11-UN-39-0009 14.218 24,544
Passed through:
Ohio Department of Development/Greene County:
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants N/A 14.218 39,126
Total Community Development Block Grants. 63,670
Ohio Department of Development:
Community Development Block Grants / States Program and B-C-08-012-1 14.228 5,560
Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii B-F-09-012-1 1,531
B-C-10-1AL-1 84,392
B-F-10-1AL-1 272,460
Total 363,943
Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program, Recovery B-A-09-012-1 14.257 71,755
Passed through:
Ohio Department of Development/City of Springfield:
Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program, Recovery N/A 14.257 34,731
Total Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program, Recovery 106,486
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 534,099
U.S. Department of Justice:
Direct Awards:
Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and Enforcement of
Protection Orders Program 2005-WE-AX-0126 16.590 164,466
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 2010-DJ-BX-0077 16.738 32,240




FINANCIAL CONDITION
CLARK COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Granting Agency
Pass through entity Grant CFDA Non-Cash
Grant Name Number Number Disbursements Disbursements

U.S. Department of Justice: (Continued)

Passed through:
Ohio Department of Public Safety/Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 2007-JG-LSS-9283 16.738 24,999
Total Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 57,239
Passed through:
Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention:
National Children's Alliance:
Part E - Developing, Testing and Demonstrating Promising
New Programs SPRI-OH-PS08 16.541 482
Passed through:
Office of the Ohio Attorney General:
Crime Victim Assistance 2011VAGENEO048 16.575 26,899
2012VAGENEO048 17,559
2010VACHAE465 15,014
2011VACHAE465 3,892
2011VACHAES89 28,156
2012VACHAES89 9,385
Total Victims Crime Assistance Grant 100,905
Total U.S. Department of Justice 323,092
U.S. Department of Labor:
Passed through:
Area 7 Workforce Investment Board:
Employment Services Cluster:
Employment Service/Wagner-Peyser Funded Activities, Recovery N/A 17.207 61,180
Disabled Veterans' Outreach Program (DVOP) N/A 17.801 6,873
Local Veterans' Employment Representative Program N/A 17.804 558
Total Employment Services Cluster 68,611
WIA Cluster:
WIA Adult Program N/A 17.258 236,825
WIA Adult Program N/A 22,444
WIA Adult Program - Recovery 5,573
Total WIA Adult Program 264,842
WIA Youth Activities N/A 17.259 450,911
WIA Youth Activities N/A 17,087
WIA Youth Activities - Recovery N/A 5,573
Total WIA Youth Activities 473,571
WIA Dislocated Workers N/A 17.260 6,973
WIA Dislocated Workers, Recovery 5,573
Total WIA Dislocated Workers 12,546
Workforce Investment Act (WIA) National Emergency Grants N/A 17.277 114,116
WIA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants N/A 17.278 275,656
WIA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants N/A 41,983
Total WIA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants 317,639
Total WIA Cluster 1,182,714
Total U.S. Department of Labor 1,251,325
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CLARK COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Granting Agency
Pass through entity Grant CFDA Non-Cash
Grant Name Number Number Disbursements Disbursements

U.S. Department of Transportation:
Passed through:
Ohio Department of Transportation:

Highway Planning and Construction PID# 58670 20.205 2,734
PID# 78677 65,607

PID# 78685 560,266

PID# 80450 53,166

PID# 80469 43,264

PID# 85169 56,483

PID# 85261 465

PID# 85319 11,457

PID# 85670 19,005

PID# 86051 3,369

PID# 87079 49,163

PID# 87270 35,625

PID# 87480 27,431

PID# 87956 18,793

PID# 88008 154,886

PID# 89225 257,684

PID# 89423 44,527

Highway Planning and Construction, Recovery PID# 85973 50,265
Total Highway Planning and Construction 1,454,190
Job Access Reverse Commute JARC-4012-043-092 20.516 4,355
JARC-0012-079-102 81,840

JARC-4012-079-101 51,584

Total Job Access Reverse Commute 137,779

Passed through:
Ohio Governor's Highway Safety Office:
Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures Incentive Grants

Total Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures Incentive Grants
Total U.S. Department of Transportation

U.S. Department of Education:
Passed through:
Ohio Rehabilitation Services Commission:
Rehabilitation Services Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to States

Total U.S. Department of Education

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed through:
American Humane Association:
Child Abuse and Neglect Discretionary Activities

Passed through:
Ohio Children's Trust Fund:
Community-Based Child Abuse Prevention Grants

Passed through:
Public Children's Services Association of Ohio:
Family Connections Grants

HVEO-2011-12-00-00-00357-00
HVEO-2012-12-00-00-00301-00

N/A

SC-90-CA-1762-FCSCC-11
SC-90-CA-1762-FCSCC-12

JFSFCBO08

90-CF-0024/02
90-CF-0024-03

20.601

84.126

93.670

93.590

93.605

40,237
11,069

51,306

1,643,275

112,185

112,185

542,734
61,663

604,397

8,390

91,568
53,082

144,650




FINANCIAL CONDITION
CLARK COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Granting Agency

Pass through entity Grant CFDA Non-Cash
Grant Name Number Number Disbursements Disbursements
Ohio Department of Job and Family Services:

Promoting Safe and Stable Families G-1213-11-0020 93.556 142,942
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families G-1213-11-0020 93.558 2,908,739
Child Support Enforcement G-1213-11-0020 93.563 2,682,177
CCDF Cluster:
Child Care and Development Block Grant G-1213-11-0020 93.575 150,223
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the
Child Care and Development Fund G-1213-11-0020 93.596 135,063
Total CCDF Cluster Program 285,286
Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program G-1213-11-0020 93.645 82,511
Foster Care Title IV-E G-1213-11-0020 93.658 3,354,587
Foster Care Title IV-E, Recovery G-1213-11-0020 93.658 75,276
Total Foster Care Title IV-E 3,429,863
Adoption Assistance, Recovery G-1213-11-0020 93.659 920,515
Social Services Block Grant G-1213-11-0020 93.667 1,574,687
Passed through:
Ohio Department of Developmental Disabilities:
Social Services Block Grant N/A 93.667 107,403
Total Social Services Block Grant 1,682,090
Passed through:
Ohio Department of Job and Family Services:

Chafee Foster Care Independence Program G-1213-11-0020 93.674 63,537
Children's Health Insurance Program G-1213-11-0020 93.767 6,596
Medical Assistance Program G-1213-11-0020 93.778 1,442,081

Passed through:
Ohio Department of Developmental Disabilities:
Medical Assistance Program N/A 93.778 394,066
Medical Assistance Program - Recovery N/A 93.778 102,459
Total Medical Assistance Program 1,938,606
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 14,900,299
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through:
Ohio Department of Public Safety:

Hazard Mitigation Grant FEMA-DR-1805-OH 97.039 5,100

Emergency Management Performance Grants 2010-EP-00-0003 97.042 52,376

EMW-2011-EP-00003-S01 33,445

Total Emergency Management Performance Grants 85,821

Homeland Security Grant Program 2008-GE-T8-0025 97.067 7,678

2009-SS-T9-0089 51,959

2010-SS-T0-0012 65,378

Total Homeland Security Grant Program 125,015

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 215,936
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $20,332,337 $3,775

The accompanying notes to this Schedule are an integral part of the the Schedule




CLARK COUNTY

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) reports Clark County,
Ohio’s (the County’s) federal award programs. The Schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of
accounting.

NOTE B - SUBRECIPIENTS

The County passes-through certain Federal assistance received from the Ohio Department of Mental
Health and the Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction to the Eastern Miami Valley Alcohol, Drug
Addiction and Mental Health Services Board of Clark, Greene, and Madison Counties. These federal
funds are not included on the Schedule since Clark County acts only as a pass-through entity and has no
administrative responsibilities.

Other sub-recipient agencies have certain compliance responsibilities related to administering these
Federal Programs. Under Federal Circular A-133, the County is responsible for monitoring subrecipients
to help assure that Federal awards are used for authorized purposes in compliance with laws,
regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements, and that performance goals are
achieved. As described in Note A, the County records expenditures of Federal awards to sub-recipients
when paid in cash.

NOTE C - CHILD NUTRITION CLUSTER

The County commingles cash receipts from the U.S. Department of Agriculture with similar State grants.
When reporting expenditures on this Schedule, the County assumes it expends federal monies first.

NOTE D - MATCHING REQUIREMENTS

Certain Federal programs require the County to contribute non-Federal funds (matching funds) to support
the Federally-funded programs. The County has met its matching requirements. The Schedule does not
include the expenditure of hon-Federal matching funds.

NOTE E — OHIO DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENT MEDICAID DEFERRED PAYMENT

During calendar year 2011, the County received a deferred payment from the Ohio Department of
Developmental Disabilities (DODD) for the Medicaid program (CFDA # 93.778) in the amount of
$320,053. The deferred payment was for Medicaid Administrative Claiming (MAC) and Waiver
Administrative Claiming (WAC) expenses the County incurred in prior reporting periods due to an
increase of federal funding received by DODD to reimburse these expenses and also due to changes in
the County’s Medicaid Eligibility Rate (MER) for certain activity codes within MAC/WAC. This revenue is
not listed on the County’s Schedule of Federal Awards since the underlying expenses occurred in prior
reporting periods.
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Dave Yost - Auditor of State

Clark County

Honorable board of County Commissioners
Honorable County Auditor

Honorable County Treasurer

31 North Limestone Street

PO Box 1325

Springfield, Ohio 45501

To the County Commissioners:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Clark County, (the County) as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2011, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated July 30, 2012, wherein we noted that the County adopted
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in the Comptroller General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our audit procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of opining on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we have not opined on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control
over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and timely
correct misstatements. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of internal control
deficiencies resulting in more than a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
Government’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and timely corrected.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider material weaknesses,
as defined above.

One First National Plaza, 130 W. Second St., Suite 2040, Dayton, Ohio 45402
Phone: 937-285-6677 or 800-443-9274 Fax: 937-285-6688
www.ohioauditor.gov
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Clark County

Independent Accountants’ Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Required by Government Auditing Standards

Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of reasonably assuring whether the County’'s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we tested its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could directly and materially affect the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters we must report under Government Auditing Standards.

We did note certain matters not requiring inclusion in this report that we reported to the County's

management in a separate letter dated July 30, 2012.

We intend this report solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, the County
Commissioners and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and others within the County.
We intend it for no one other than these specified parties.

)

Dave Yost
Auditor of State

July 30, 2011



Dave Yost - Auditor of State

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Clark County

Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Honorable County Auditor

Honorable County Treasurer

31 North Limestone Street

PO Box 1325

Springfield, Ohio 45501

To the County Commissioners:
Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Clark County, Ohio (the County) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance
Supplement that could directly and materially affect each of Clark County’'s major federal programs for
the year ended December 31, 2011. The summary of auditor’'s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings identifies the County’s major federal programs. The County’s management is
responsible for complying with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
each major federal program. Our responsibility is to opine on the County’s compliance based on our
audit.

Our compliance audit followed auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits included in the Comptroller General of the United States’
Government Auditing Standards; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. These standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to reasonably assure whether noncompliance occurred with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could directly and materially affect a major federal program. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with these requirements and
performing other procedures we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the
County’s compliance with these requirements.

In our opinion, Clark County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that could directly and materially affect each of its major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2011. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of
noncompliance with these requirements that, while not affecting our opinion on compliance, OMB Circular
A-133 requires us to report. The accompanying schedule of findings lists this instance as Finding 2011-
001.

One First National Plaza, 130 W. Second St., Suite 2040, Dayton, Ohio 45402
Phone: 937-285-6677 or 800-443-9274 Fax: 937-285-6688

www.ohioauditor.gov
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Clark County

Independent Accountants’ Report On Compliance With Requirements
Applicable To Each Major Federal Program And On Internal Control
Over Compliance Required By OMB Circular A-133

Page 2

Internal Control Over Compliance

The County’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could directly and materially affect a major federal program, to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of opining on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
opining on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we have not opined on the
effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or to timely detect and correct, noncompliance with a federal program compliance requirement.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance
with a federal program compliance requirement will not be prevented, or timely detected and corrected.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be a significant deficiency, described in the accompanying schedule of findings as item 2011-
001. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a federal program compliance requirement that is
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

We also noted matters involving federal compliance or internal control over federal compliance not
requiring inclusion in this report, that we reported to the County’s management in a separate letter dated
July 30, 2012.

The County’s response to the finding we identified is described in the accompanying schedule of findings.
We did not audit the County’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have also audited and issued our unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Clark County (the County) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, and have issued our report
thereon dated July 30, 2012. Our opinion also explained that the County adopted Governmental
Accounting Standard No. 54 during the year. Our audit was performed to form opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards provides additional information required by
the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule is
management’s responsibility, and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. This schedule was subject to the auditing
procedures we applied to the basic financial statements. We also applied certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling this information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
this information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole.

10



Clark County

Independent Accountants’ Report On Compliance With Requirements
Applicable To Each Major Federal Program And On Internal Control
Over Compliance Required By OMB Circular A-133

Page 3

We intend this report solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, County
Commissioners, others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities. It is not
intended for anyone other than these specified parties.

/

Dave Yost
Auditor of State

July 30, 2012

11
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FINANCIAL CONDITION
CLARK COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505

DECEMBER 31, 2011

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

(D)) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified
(d)(Q)(ii) Were there any material control weaknesses No
reported at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?
(d)(Q)(ii) Were there any significant deficiencies in internal | No
control reported at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?
(d)(Q)(ii) Was there any reported material noncompliance No
at the financial statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(Q)(iv) Were there any material internal control No
weaknesses reported for major federal
programs?
(d)(Q)(iv) Were there any significant deficiencies in internal | Yes
control reported for major federal programs?
(d)(D)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Opinion Unqualified
(d)(Q)(vi) | Arethere any reportable findings under Yes
§ .510(a)?
(d)(1)(vii) | Major Programs (list): 10.561 State Administered

Matching Grant for the
Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program

WIA Cluster

17.258
17.259
17.260
17.277
17.278

17.207

17.801

17.804

93.558

WIA Adult Program

WIA Youth Activities
WIA Dislocated Workers
WIA National Emergency

WIA Dislocated Workers
Formula Grant

Employment Service —
Wagner — Peyser Funded
Activities

Disabled Veterans
Outreach Program

Local Veterans

Employment
Representative Program

Temporary Assistance
for Needy Families

13




Financial Condition

Clark County
Schedule Of Findings
Page 2
(d)(1)(vii) | Major Programs (list): 93.658 Foster Care IV-E
93.778 Medical Assistance
Program
14.257 Homeless Prevention
and Rapid Re-Housing
Program
(d)(1)(viii) | Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs Type A: > $610,083
Type B: all others
(d)(Q)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? No
2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS
None

| 3. FINDING FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

Procurement and Suspension and Debarment

Finding Number 2011-001

CFDA Title and Number CFDA 93.658 Foster Care_Title IV-E, Recovery
Federal Award Number / Year G-1213-11-0020

Federal Agency U.S. Department of Health & Human Services
Pass-Through Agency Ohio Department of Jobs and Family Services

Non-Compliance and Significant Deficiency

2 C.F.R. 180.300 states when a non-federal entity enters into a covered transaction with an entity at the
next lower tier, the non-federal entity must verify that the entity is not excluded or disqualified. This
verification may be accomplished by checking the Excluded Parties List System (EPLS) maintained by
the General Services Administration (GSA), collecting a certification from the entity, or adding a clause or
condition to the covered transaction with that entity. The Clark County Jobs and Family Services did not
verify the foster care placement providers on the EPLS, obtain certification, or add a clause to contracts
for any of the vendors. The County required state licenses for vendors as verification. There was no
indication that state licenses insured that vendors are not excluded or disqualified. The expenditures on
this type of vendor were $1,461,928, for a total of 43% of Title IV-E funds.

The EPLS should be checked to determine whether the vendor had any conviction of civil judgment,

willful violation of statutory provisions, history of failure to perform, or violations of the terms of a public
agreement.

14



Financial Condition
Clark County
Schedule Of Findings
Page 3

FINDING NUMBER 2011-001
(Continued)

Officials Response:

Because the Finding states that “this verification may be accomplished by checking the EPLS”, we feel
that our current practice of requiring a state license as a IV-E-reimbursable provider of placement
services meets such verification. Specifically, because the State, as a non-federal entity, issues licenses
for placement providers, as lower tier entities, as IV-E-reimbursable entities, this verification takes place at
the State level. As a result of our requiring State licenses for foster care placement providers, we feel that
this practice fulfills the verification requirement in this manner.

This is similar to the State’s practice for Medicaid-reimbursable providers, as the State communicates
with our agency when it is improper to continue services from a provider that the State determines has
been suspended, debarred or otherwise excluded.

Auditor of State Conclusion:

Federal Regulations specifically state what must be done to verify compliance. The use of state licensing
is not permitted to be used in lieu of the requirements stated, and may not accomplish the same result.

15



FINANCIAL CONDITION
CLARK COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .315 (b)

DECEMBER 31, 2011

Not Corrected, Partially
Corrected; Significantly
Different Corrective Action

Finding Finding Fully Taken; or Finding No Longer
Number Summary Corrected? Valid; Explain
2010-001 Missing funds from the Sheriff Yes N/A
Department
2010-002 Ohio Rev. Code Section Yes N/A

5705.36(A)(2)
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John S. Federer

Clark County Auditor

July 30, 2012

To: The Citizens of Clark County and the
Board of Clark County Commissioners

I am pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for Clark County, Ohio
(County) for the year ended December 31, 2011. This report has been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as set forth by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), other recognized authoritative sources, and is
consistent with the pronouncements and guidelines recommended by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada. This report is representative of the Auditor’s office
continual commitment to provide quality financial information to the citizens of Clark County and all
other interested parties. Responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, and fairness of this report rests
with the County Auditor’s Office and specifically, the Department of Fiscal Services. To the best of our
knowledge, all information contained in this CAFR is accurate in all material respects and fairly reflects
the County’s financial position and the results of its operations. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of the County’s financial activities have been included.

The purpose of this letter of transmittal is to provide an overview of the County and its operations.
Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately following the independent accountants’
report provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements.

REPORTING ENTITY

The reporting entity of the County is defined in accordance with GASB Statements No. 14 and 39. The
basic financial statements contained within this CAFR include all funds, agencies, boards, and
commissions for which the County (the reporting entity) is financially accountable. The County provides
a wide range of general government sources to its residents which include: human and social services,
health and community assistance related services, civil and criminal justice systems, road and bridge
maintenance and other general legislative and administrative support services.

Although the County Auditor serves as fiscal agent for the Clark County Combined Health District,
Clark Soil and Water Conservation District, Mental Health and Recovery Board of Clark, Greene and
Madison Counties, Clark County — Springfield Transportation Coordinating Committee, Clark County
Park District, West Central Community Correctional Facility, and Clark County Family and Children’s
First Council; the County is acting solely in a custodial capacity. Therefore, these funds are presented as
agency funds. A complete discussion of the County’s reporting entity is provided in Note 1 to the basic
financial statements.

AB.GRAHAM BUILDING * P.0.BOX 1325 + 31 N. LIMESTONE ST. » SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 45501-1325
(937) 521-1860 + Fax (937) 328-4579 + Cell (937) 605-1197




CLARK COUNTY
Profile

Clark County was established by an act of the State Legislature on March 1, 1818, and Springfield was
selected as the County seat. Originally the county seat of Champaign County, Springfield became a City
in 1850. Our name comes from George Rogers Clark, an American frontiersman who opened passage to
the Northwest Territory. Originally consisting of 358 square miles or 229,624 acres valued at $200 per
acre, today there are 400 square miles of county land consisting of just over 68,000 parcels valued at over
$6 billion and ranks as the 23" largest county in Ohio. The County is located in the west-central part of
Ohio. Interstate Highway 70, U.S. Route 40 and State Route 41 cross the county east and west. U.S.
Routes 42 and 68, and State Routes 4, 54, and 72 run North and South. The Little Miami and Mad Rivers
flow through the County.

Clark County is made up of seven public school districts and one joint vocational district. There are ten
townships, two cities, and seven villages. Also within a 25 mile area, the County has 7 4-year and 3 2-
year institutions of higher education. Major attractions to Clark County include the Heritage Center,
Clifton Gristmill, George Rogers Clark Monument, Clark Lake Wildlife Area, David Crabill House,
Westcott House, Springfield Museum of Art, Wittenberg University, Enon Mound, Buck Creek State
Park, Veterans Park Amphitheatre and the newly developed Eco Sports Corridor.

Form of Government

The County is operated under the powers granted it by the Ohio Statutes. A three-member Board of
County Commissioners (the Board) is elected at large. The Board’s three members are elected to four-
year terms. The Board serves as the taxing authority, the contracting body, and the chief administrator of
public services for the County. The Board adopts the annual operating budget and makes the annual
appropriation measure for expenditure of all county monies. The Board appoints a County Administrator,
who directs and supervises activities of those departments directly under the oversight of the Board. The
administrator acts for the Commissioners’ as the principal liaison to other county officials, boards and
other political subdivisions. In addition to the Board, the offices of the County Auditor and County
Treasurer are of particular importance to the financial affairs of the County.

The County provides general governmental services to its citizens that include: public assistance, health
assistance, community related services, civil and criminal justice systems, road and bridge maintenance
and other general legislative and administrative support services. The County also operates two Enterprise
Funds; sewer and waterline construction and maintenance.

The County Auditor serves as the fiscal officer for the County, as well as the property tax assessor for all
political subdivisions within the County. As chief fiscal officer, the Auditor is responsible for maintaining
the County’s centralized accounting, payroll and benefits system; for preparing the CAFR; and for
auditing payments made on behalf of county agencies and issuing the warrants therefore. The Auditor
also prepares the general tax list of the County, calculates the voted and unvoted tax rates for real estate
and general personal property and, once collected, distributes the receipts to the appropriate political
subdivisions and agencies within the County.

As real property assessor, the Auditor is responsible for a full reappraisal of the approximately 67,000
parcels of real property in the County every six years, with an interim update every third year. The last
full reappraisal was completed in 2007. The Auditor also prepares and maintains a comprehensive set of
the County’s real estate records that includes ownership, appraised value, property description and
dimensions and sketches for each parcel. Along with the Treasurer and the President of the Board of
County Commissioners, the Auditor serves on the County Board of Revision. The County Board of
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Revision hears all complaints on real property and may revise real estate assessment, except those for
public utilities.

The County Treasurer is the custodian of all County funds and is responsible for the collection of all
property tax monies. The Treasurer is also responsible for the investment of County funds as specified by
Ohio law. The Treasurer must make daily reports to the County Auditor showing the County’s receipts,
expenditures, and cash balances. These records are balanced with those of the County Auditor.

Other elected officials of the County include the Clerk of Courts, Coroner, three General Division Court
of Common Pleas Judges, one Juvenile Judge, and one Probate Division Judge, Engineer, Prosecutor,
Recorder, and Sheriff.

LOCAL ECONOMY

In evaluating the County’s current economic condition, it is obvious the County has seen a slight turn for
the better in the local economy. Through June 2012 the County’s year to date cumulative sales tax
receipts were higher than 2011 by over 7.0%.

The most current data released from the U.S. Census Bureau has Clark County ranked as the 21% most
populated County in the State of Ohio. With population decreasing slightly along with the unemployment
rate also declining, the County’s economic climate picked up in 2011, and is showing signs of continuing
into 2012. The County’s average civilian labor force decreased to 69,000 during 2011, while employment
averaged 62,800 with an unemployment rate dropping to 8.9% compared to Ohio’s 8.6%. The U.S.
average unemployment rate was 8.9%.

Major employers include Assurant Specialty Property, Clark County, Speedway LLC, Springfield City
Schools, Springfield Medical Regional Center, City of Springfield, Dole Fresh Vegetables, International
Truck and Engine/Navistar International, Gordon Food Service, and Ohio Air National Guard. An
evolving strategy to diversify employers that include distribution, manufacturing, retail, health and
professional services, military, technology and agriculture has helped stabilize the County’s economy.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

Clark County currently is currently assessing a one and one-half percent permissive sales tax which is
allowing the County to maintain its current level of services to its citizens. Additionally, the County has
issued bond anticipation notes as a means to acquire capital assets and improvements to the County’s
buildings and infrastructure. The County’s current bond rating of Aa2 is the highest possible rating a local
governmental entity our size may receive. Debt has been reduced by $4 million and the General Fund
budget has been reduced by over $2 million over the previous 4 years.

In March 2011, a corporate real estate magazine has named Springfield as a top city for economic
development. Site Selection Magazine ranked Springfield as fifth in the nation of cities its size for new or
expanded private, corporate economic development projects. The Springfield/Clark County area had 10
projects last year that met the magazine's criteria that must have involved at least $1 million in capital
investments, created 50 jobs or added at least 20,000 square feet. It was the only Ohio city in its
population range to be ranked in the top 10. With this news, the County is optimistic that the result will
lead to an increase in local revenue coming into the area which will result in healthier fund balances
throughout the County.
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

Clark County is continually striving to promote economic development. County elected officials are
constantly working with the City of Springfield, the Greater Springfield Chamber of Commerce,
Community Improvement Corporation and other various local organizations to encourage business to
locate into the Clark County Area. The following are several highlights of initiatives currently in progress
in Clark County:

During 2011, the County Engineer continued to upgrade the County’s roads and infrastructure through
federal and state funding. These projects were spearheaded with federal funds received from the
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

In 2012, the County will build a waterline that will connect nearly 300 residents to the City’s water
system at a cost of more than $1.5 million. This project will be funded from a $1.1 million Ohio EPA 0%
30-year loan and up to $400,000 from a grant from the Ohio Public Works Commission. The project is
expected to cost the County about $780,000.

Although the County’s 2011 unemployment rate continued to be higher than the State and National
averages, the economic impact of the projects listed above should have a very positive impact on the
future employment and economic environments. Once the current economic condition improves,
additional projects will be put into place by the County.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Included in this report is an unqualified opinion rendered on the County's operations and financial
position as well as its existing assets and liabilities as reported in the combined financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2011, by Auditor of State, Dave Yost. In addition to meeting the
requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit was also designed to meet the requirements of the Federal
Single Audit Act of 1996 and related OMB Circular A-133.

AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Clark County for its comprehensive
annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010. This was the tenth year (fiscal years
ended 2000 — 2005 and 2007 — 2010) that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to
be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current

comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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Certificate of

Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Clark County
Ohio

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2010

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

Executive Director
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Dave Yost - Auditor of State

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

Clark County

Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Honorable County Auditor

Honorable County Treasurer

31 North Limestone Street

P.O. Box 1325

Springfield, Ohio 45501

To the County Commissioners, County Auditor, and County Treasurer:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Clark County, Ohio (the
County), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, which collectively comprise the County’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Comptroller General of the
United States’ Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to reasonably assure whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Clark County, Ohio, as of December 31, 2011, and the
respective changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 3, during the year ended December 31, 2011, the County adopted the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 30, 2012,
on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. While we did not opine on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance, that
report describes the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards. You should read it in conjunction with this report in assessing the
results of our audit.

One First National Plaza, 130 W. Second St., Suite 2040, Dayton, Ohio 45402
Phone: 937-285-6677 or 800-443-9274 Fax: 937-285-6688
www.ohioauditor.gov
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Clark County

Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Honorable County Auditor

Honorable County Treasurer

Independent Accountants’ Report

Page 2

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require this presentation to
include Management’s discussion and analysis, and the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual — Budgetary (Non-GAAP Basis) for the General Fund, Job
& Family Services Special Revenue Fund, Department of Developmental Disabilities Special Revenue
Fund, and Children’s Services Special Revenue Fund. Although this information is not part of the basic
financial statements, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board considers it essential for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’'s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any other assurance.

We conducted our audit to opine on the financial statements that collectively comprise the County’s basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section, the financial section’s combining
statements, individual fund statements and schedules and the statistical section information provide
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The financial section’s
combining statements, individual fund statements and schedules are management’s responsibility, and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. These statements and schedules were subject to the auditing procedures we
applied to the basic financial statements. We also applied certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling this information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, this information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. We did
not subject the introductory section and statistical section information to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion or any other
assurance on them.

/

Dave Yost
Auditor of State

July 30, 2012
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As management of Clark County (the County), we offer readers this narrative overview and analysis of
the financial activities of the County as a whole for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011. We
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements,
which follow this section and provide more specific detail.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows:

» The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at December 31, 2011 by $155,675,552. Of this
amount, $19,451,091 is considered unrestricted. The unrestricted net assets of the County's
governmental activities are $11,015,001, and may be used to meet the government's ongoing
obligations. The unrestricted net assets of the County's business-type activities are $8,436,090
and may be used to meet the ongoing obligations of the County's business-type activities.

» The County's total net assets increased $4,709,694 in 2011. Net assets of the governmental
activities increased $3,794,460, which represents a 2.86% increase from 2010. Net assets of the
business-type activities increased $915,234 or 5.02% from 2010.

» At the end of the current fiscal year, the County's governmental funds reported a combined
ending fund balance of $41,339,090, an increase of $4,390,166 from 2010, an 11.88% change.

» At the end of the current year, the General Fund, the County’s operating fund, reported an
increase in fund balance of $2,210,208 or 23.72% from the previous year. This fund balance
represents 32.93% of general fund expenditures, including transfers out.

» The County's outstanding debt increased by $1,390,000, or 8.55%, in governmental activities and
increased by $895,236, or 15.57% in the business-type activities. The increase in governmental
activities debt was due to the issuance of a tax anticipation note, while the net increase in
business-type activities was a result of issuance of short-term notes for the construction of sewer
assets.

Overview of the Financial Statements

Management's discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic
financial statements. The County's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the County's finances, in a manner similar to private-sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the County's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.
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The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of cash flows. Thus, revenue and expenses reported in
this statement for some items will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the County include legislative and executive, judicial, public
safety, public works, health, human services and conservation and recreation. The business-type activities
of the County include water and sewer services.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13 — 15 of this report.

Fund financial statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a g overnment's near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financial decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains forty-five governmental funds for financial reporting purposes. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Job & Family Services Fund,
Department of Developmental Disabilities Fund, and the Children’s Services Fund, all of which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation.
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Governmental funds for which the County adopts an annual appropriation budget include the General
Fund and all other governmental funds for which activity is anticipated during the year. A budgetary
comparison statement has been included as required supplementary information for the General Fund and
ecach annually-budgeted major special revenue fund to demonstrate compliance with its annual
appropriation budget.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 16 — 19 of this report.

Proprietary funds: The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer operations. Internal
service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
County's various functions. The County uses an internal service fund to account for its document imaging.
Because this service predominantly benefits the governmental rather than the business-type functions, it
has been included with governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water and
Sewer funds, which are both considered to be major funds. The internal service fund is presented in the
proprietary fund financial statements.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 — 23 of this report.

Fiduciary funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because
the resources of those funds are not available to support the County's own programs. The accounting for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 24 of this report.
Notes to the basic financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes

to the basic financial statements are included on pages 25 — 56 of this report.

Other information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information relating to budgetary information.
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The following table provides a summary of the County's net assets for 2011 as compared to 2010:

Table 1
Net Assets
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Assets:
Current and Other
Assets $ 104,099,362 $ 94,570,996 $ 9,009,853 $ 7,000,604 $ 113,109,215 $ 101,571,600
Capital Assets 86,392,027 87,965,325 17,384,987 17,366,360 103,777,014 105,331,685
Total Assets 190,491,389 182,536,321 26,394,840 24,366,964 216,886,229 206,903,285
Liabilities:
Current and Other
Liabilities 35,286,829 29,359,093 2,612,539 987,774 37,899,368 30,346,867
Long-term Liabilities 18,662,080 20,429,208 4,649,229 5,161,352 23,311,309 25,590,560
Total Liabilities 53,948,909 49,788,301 7,261,768 6,149,126 61,210,677 55,937,427
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 71,035,654 71,478,924 10,696,982 11,567,436 81,732,636 83,046,360
Restricted 54,491,825 51,886,419 - - 54,491,825 51,886,419
Unrestricted 11,015,001 9,382,677 8,436,090 6,650,402 19,451,091 16,033,079

Total Net Assets $ 136,542,480 $ 132,748,020 $ 19,133,072 $ 18,217,838 $ 155,675,552 $ 150,965,858

The largest portion of the County's total net assets, $81,732,636, reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g. land, buildings, infrastructure, equipment, construction in progress), less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The County uses these assets to provide services to citizens;
therefore, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County's investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

An additional portion of the County's net assets, $54,491,825, represents resources that are subject to
external restriction on ho w they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets,
$19,451,091, may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

As of December 31, 2011, the County is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net
assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type
activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.
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The following table provides a summary of the County's changes in net assets for 2011 as compared to
2010:

TABLE 2
Change in Net Assets
2011 2010
Business- Business-
Governmental Type Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
REVENUES:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 16,262,703 $ 5956569 § 22,219,272 $ 18,942,750 §  5970,702 § 24,913,452
Operating Grants
and Contributions 45,743,356 - 45,743,356 47,792,693 - 47,792,693
Capital Grants
and Contributions 2,422,095 237,985 2,660,080 5,421,738 495,208 5,916,946
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 17,573,982 - 17,573,982 17,707,004 - 17,707,004
Permissive Sales Tax 20,374,885 - 20,374,885 19,451,080 - 19,451,080
Grants and Contributions
not Restricted 4,608,002 - 4,608,002 5,324,949 - 5,324,949
Investment Income 1,088,538 28 1,088,566 805,754 - 805,754
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets - - - 14,995 - 14,995
Transfers In - - - 250,090 - 250,090
Other Revenue 2,433,213 71,733 2,504,946 1,858,456 419,095 2,277,551
Total Revenue 110,506,774 6,266,315 116,773,089 117,569,509 6,885,005 124,454,514
EXPENSES:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive 10,870,046 - 10,870,046 9,992,461 - 9,992,461
Judicial 12,681,680 - 12,681,680 13,649,222 - 13,649,222
Public Safety 15,593,911 - 15,593,911 15,650,852 - 15,650,852
Public Works 9,757,946 - 9,757,946 14,023,453 - 14,023,453
Health 23,006,804 - 23,006,804 27,554,583 - 27,554,583
Human Services 32,904,188 - 32,904,188 38,657,686 - 38,657,686
Conservation/Recreation 1,229,967 - 1,229,967 1,348,005 - 1,348,005
Sewer - 3,323,479 3,323,479 - 3,042,704 3,042,704
Water - 2,027,602 2,027,602 - 2,120,690 2,120,690
Interest Expense 667,772 - 667,772 633,765 - 633,765
Total Expenses 106,712,314 5,351,081 112,063,395 121,510,027 5,163,394 126,673,421
Change in Net Assets 3,794,460 915,234 4,709,694 (3,940,518) 1,721,611 (2,218,907)
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 132,748,020 18,217,838 150,965,858 136,688,538 16,496,227 153,184,765
Net Assets, End of Year $ 136,542,480  § 19,133,072 $ 155,675,552 $ 132,748,020 § 18,217,838  § 150,965,858

Governmental Activities:

Operating grants and contributions of $45.74 million represent the largest program revenue, and
approximately 41.39% of total governmental activities revenue. The major recipients of
intergovernmental revenue were Job & Family Services, receiving over $11.15 million, along with the
Board of Developmental Disabilities, Children’s Services, and Motor Vehicle & Gas Tax, receiving
approximately $14.01 million, $6.16 million, and $7.07 million, respectively. Total tax revenue accounts
for approximately $37.95 million of the $110.51 million total revenue for governmental activities, or
34.34% of total revenue. Sales tax accounted for $20.37 million, or approximately 53.69% of total tax
revenue.
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The County's charges for services directly related to governmental services made up $16.26 million,
nearly 14.73% of total governmental revenue. These charges include fees for real estate transfers, fees
associated with the collection of property taxes, fines and forfeitures related to judicial activity and
licenses and permits.

The human services program accounted for $32.90 million or 30.83% of total governmental expenses.
The next largest program was health, accounting for $23.01 million or 21.56% of the total expenses for
governmental activities.

Business-type Activities:

During 2011, the net assets of the business-type activities increased by slightly over $915,000. Major
revenues sources were charges for services in the amount of $5.96 million.

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. That is, it
identifies the cost of these services supported by tax revenue and unrestricted federal and state entitlement
grants.

TABLE 3
Total and Net Cost of Program Services
2011 2010
Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost
of Service of Service of Service of Service

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
General Government
Legislative & Executive $ 10,870,046 $ (5,198,470) $ 9,992,461 $ (4,814,847)

Judicial 12,681,680 (7,562,648) 13,649,222 (7,992,265)
Public Safety 15,593,911 (13,251,605) 15,650,852 (13,627,200)
Public Works 9,757,946 343,924 14,023,453 1,114,396
Health 23,006,804 (8,115,911) 27,554,583 (11,047,073)
Human Services 32,904,188 (7,340,256) 38,657,686 (11,853,807)
Conservation/Recreation 1,229,967 (491,422) 1,348,005 (498,285)
Interest Expense 667,772 (667,772) 633,765 (633,765)

Total Expenses $ 106,712,314 $ (42,284,160)  § 121,510,027 $ (49,352,846)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:

Sewer $ 3,323,479 $ 386,119 $ 3,042,704 $ 430,145
Water 2,027,602 457,354 2,120,690 872,371
Total Expenses $ 5,351,081 $ 843,473 $ 5,163,394 $ 1,302,516
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Financial Analysis of County Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds: The focus of the County's governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
County's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
the County's net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

At December 31, 2011, the County's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$41.34 million, an increase of about $4.39 million in comparison with the prior year. While revenues
within the County dropped by over $8.18 million, almost entirely of intergovernmental revenue, the main
factor in significant increase is due to a decrease in expenditures. This was primarily in the Health and
Human Services functions of the County. These two functions alone accounted for a decrease of $9.93
million in expenditures.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At December 31, 2011, total fund balance of
the General Fund was $11.53 million, an increase of $2.21 from 2010. The key factor was the increase in
charges for services along with increases in investment income and sales tax collections. The County has
also been strictly monitoring expenditures. While revenues have increased, expenditures remained flat
from 2010; increasing only $54,467 from 2010. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be
useful to compare total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Total fund balance represents 35.32% of
General Fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the Department of Jobs and Family Services (DJFS) at December 31, 2011 was $3.48
million, which was an increase of 23.72% from 2010. The key factor in this increase was the fact that the
Department continues to reduce expenditures through a reduction in workforce due to attrition and layoffs
coupled with the decline in federal, state and local subsidies.

During the year, the fund balance of the Department of Developmental Disabilities Fund (DoDD)
increased by $362,702. This was consistent with the increase in 2010 of $345,333. The source of the
increase is a combination of a reduction in revenues and a larger reduction in expenditures.

During the year, the fund balance of the Children’s Services Fund increased $328,673 to $1,718,509. The
increase was primarily attributable to significant decrease in expenditures for contract services.

Enterprise funds: The County's enterprise funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Sewer and Water funds at the end of the year approximated $8.44 million.
The Sewer and Water Funds reported an increase in net assets of $385,405 and $529,829, respectively.
These increases were primarily due to a diligent management philosophy of controlling expenses based
upon revenue streams.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The County's budget is prepared according to Ohio law, and the most significant budgeted fund is the
General Fund. The total original appropriations for the General Fund, including those for transfers, were
$39.32 million, while the final appropriations were $39.49 million, resulting in a net increase of $.17
million. During 2011, the County amended its General Fund budget numerous times. The amendments to
expenditures occurred in all areas except conservation and recreation. While the largest change was an
increase in public safety of $296,832, the largest decrease was in the budget of the public works function
of $129,208. On the revenue side, the budget was increased slightly through various amendments
throughout the year. The net effect of those amendments resulted in additional revenues estimates of
$36.20 million, up from the original estimate of $35.80 million. During 2011, the County spent 93.15%
of the amount appropriated in the General Fund. There were no significant variances between final budget
amounts and actual results.

Capital Assetsand Long-term Debt

Capital assets: The County's investment in capital assets for governmental and business-type activities as
of December 31, 2011, amounts to $103.78 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes: land; buildings; improvements; machinery and equipment; infrastructure and
construction in progress. During the year, total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, decreased
by over $1.56 million, or approximately 1.48%. Governmental activity capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reflect a net decrease during the year of $1,573,298. Major events for governmental activity
capital assets included the continuation and completion of various improvements and additional
infrastructure put into place and other various asset purchases. Business-type capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reflect a net increase during the year of $18,627. This small increase is related
to the completion of construction projects that were started in 2010 netted against depreciation.

Table4
Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation
2011 2010
Business- Business-
Governmental Type Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Land $ 7204888 $ 1,171,574 $ 8376462 $ 7204888 § 1,171,574 $ 8,376,462
Construction in Progress 2,352,281 - 2,352,281 2,737,873 814,379 3,552,252
Infrastructure 97,253,634 18,450,902 115,704,536 95,943,346 17,498,744 113,442,090
Buildings 30,357,492 6,790,447 37,147,939 30,357,492 6,522,614 36,880,106
Improvements 53,169,944 1,702,060 54,872,004 51,648,763 1,453,322 53,102,085
Machinery & Equipment 17,546,498 2,316,456 19,862,954 17,029,544 2,271,173 19,300,717
Less: Accumulated

Depreciation (121,492,710) (13,046452)  (134,539,162) (116,956,581) (12,365446)  (129,322,027)
Totals $ 86,392,027 S 17384987 $103,777014 $ 87965325 $ 17,366,360  § 105,331,685

Additional information concerning the County's capital assets is provided in Note 11 of this report.
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Debt: At December 31, 2011, the County had total bonded debt outstanding of $17,832,400. Of this
amount, $14,435,000 represents general obligation bonds applicable to governmental activities. The
remaining portion consists of $3,397,400 of self-supporting general obligation bonds, which are payable
from business-type activities. The County also had outstanding $855,684 in Ohio Public Works
Commission (OPWC) loans and $222,918 in Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA) loans,
payable from business-type activities. At December 31, 2011, was $2,885,000 of bond anticipation notes;
of which $715,000 was payable from governmental activities. An additional tax anticipation note was
outstanding at December 31, 2011 for $2,500,000, which will be paid from collections on the Children’s
Service levy that was approved by the voters in November 2010 and will begin collections in 2012.
During 2011, the County's total long-term bonded debt decreased by $1,751,100.

The County's general obligation bonds are presently rated Aa2 by Moody's.

State statutes limit the amount of unvoted general obligation debt the County may issue to one percent of
its total assessed valuation. The current total direct legal debt limitation for the County is $56,126,381,
which exceeds the County's unvoted general obligation debt currently outstanding.

Additional information concerning the County's debt obligations is provided in Notes 16 and 17 of this
report.

Economic Factorsand Next Year's General Fund Budget

The County’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2012
Budget. On February 22, 2011, the Board of County Commissioners voted to continue a 2% Sales Tax
increase for an additional 30 months beginning in July 2011. This increase was needed in order to
continue services at the current levels without adding any additional personnel throughout the County
departments. The 2012 General Fund budget was adopted at $36.36 million with small increases relating
to salary increases for employees. The 2012 budget includes an increase in health care costs and capital
items. The budget also provides for continuous full funding for all mandated services.

Despite the weakened national and global economy, the Springfield/Clark County metropolitan area has
ranked 2™ in the nation when it came to new or expanded economic development projects for
metropolitan areas of its size, according to the March 2012 edition of the Site Selection Magazine. With
the development of corporate location project with significant impact, the County anticipates a positive
impact with jobs, sales tax and property values for the near future.

Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County's finances for all those with
an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this

report, or requests for additional financial information, should be addressed to the Clark County Auditor's
Office, P.O. Box 1325, 31 N. Limestone St., Springfield, Ohio, 45501-1325.

-11 -



-12 -



This page intentionally left blank.



CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2011

ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments
Pooled Cash and Investments
in Segregated Accounts
Pooled Cash and Investments

with Fiscal and Escrow Agents

Net Receivables:
Taxes
Permissive Sales Tax
Accounts
Special Assessments
Accrued Interest

Due from Other Governments

Materials and Supplies Inventory

Prepaid Expenses

Internal Balances
Unamortized Bond Issue Costs
Capital Assets:

Primary Government

Capital Assets, not subject to depreciation:

Land

Construction In Progress
Capital Assets, net of

accumulated depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable
Retainage Payable
Accrued Wages and Benefits
Compensated Absences Payable
Due to Other Governments
Unearned Revenue
Matured Interest Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Notes Payable
Non-Current Liabilities:

Due Within One Year

Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS:

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:
Job & Family Services

Department of Developmental Disabilities

Children's Services
Capital Projects
Other Purposes
Permanent Fund:
Nonexpendable
Expendable
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ 37277857 $ 6,529,561 43,807,418
389,062 496,547 885,609
6,199 40,754 46,953
23,979,612 - 23,979,612
3,403,740 - 3,403,740
1,419,977 1,674,235 3,094,212
196,746 - 196,746
182,213 - 182,213
35,923,566 223,816 36,147,382
315,941 1,640 317,581
872,549 13,759 886,308

4,384 (4,384) -
127,516 33,925 161,441
7,204,888 1,171,574 8,376,462
2,352,281 - 2,352,281
76,834,858 16,213,413 93,048,271
190,491,389 26,394,840 216,886,229
2,942,104 292,779 3,234,883
42,303 - 42,303
5,833 40,754 46,587
3,434,205 76,031 3,510,236
27,262 - 27,262
11,777 - 11,777
25,535,519 - 25,535,519
366 - 366
72,460 32,975 105,435
3,215,000 2,170,000 5,385,000
1,763,432 580,442 2,343,874
16,898,648 4,068,787 20,967,435
53,948,909 7,261,768 61,210,677
71,035,654 10,696,982 81,732,636
8,212,846 - 8,212,846
17,259,877 - 17,259,877
4,524,920 - 4,524,920
6,262,823 - 6,262,823
18,112,289 - 18,112,289
74,787 - 74,787
44,283 - 44,283
11,015,001 8,436,090 19,451,091
$ 136,542,480 $ 19,133,072 155,675,552

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs: Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Governmental Activities:
General Government:
Legislative & Executive $ 10870046 $ 5211552 $ 460,024 $ -
Judicial 12,681,680 3,133,130 1,985,902 -
Public Safety 15,593,911 678,879 1,663,427 -
Public Works 9,757,946 946,549 6,733,226 2,422,095
Health 23,006,804 878,987 14,011,906 -
Human Services 32,904,188 4,675,061 20,888,871 -
Conservation/Recreation 1,229,967 738,545 - -
Interest Expense 667,772 - - -
Total Governmental Activities 106,712,314 16,262,703 45,743,356 2,422,095
Business-Type Activities:
Sewer 3,323,479 3,685,782 - 23,816
Water 2,027,602 2,270,787 - 214,169
Total Business-Type Activities 5,351,081 5,956,569 - 237,985
Total Primary Government $ 112,063,395 $ 22219272 $ 45743356 $ 2,660,080

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property Taxes Levied for:
General Purposes
Department of Developmental Disabilities
Children's Services
Senior Citizen's
Permissive Sales
Grants and Contributions not Restricted to Specific Programs
Investment Income
Other Revenue

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$  (5,198,470) $ (5,198,470)
(7,562,648) (7,562,648)
(13,251,605) (13,251,605)
343,924 343,924
(8,115,911) (8,115,911)
(7,340,256) (7,340,256)
(491,422) (491,422)
(667,772) (667,772)
(42,284,160) (42,284,160)
386,119 386,119
457,354 457,354
843,473 843,473
(42,284,160) 843,473 (41,440,687)
3,672,389 - 3,672,389
9,725,540 - 9,725,540
2,280,820 - 2,280,820
1,895,233 - 1,895,233
20,374,885 - 20,374,885
4,608,002 - 4,608,002
1,088,538 28 1,088,566
2,433,213 71,733 2,504,946
46,078,620 71,761 46,150,381
3,794,460 915,234 4,709,694
132,748,020 18,217,838 150,965,858
$ 136,542,480 $ 19,133,072 $ 155,675,552




CLARK COUNTY, OHIO

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
December 31, 2011

Department of

Developmental Children's
General Job & Family Disabilities Services
Fund Services Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 7,860,694 $ 2,411,393 $ 11,217,254 $ 3,980,562
Pooled Cash and Investments
in Segregated Accounts - - 124,448 100,412
Pooled Cash and Investments
with Fiscal and Escrow Agents - - - -
Net Receivables:
Taxes 3,818,470 - 11,224,958 6,738,476
Permissive Sales Tax 3,403,740 - - -
Accounts 447,301 304,117 - 355,584
Special Assessments - - - -
Accrued Interest 181,977 - - -
Due from Other Governments 1,786,160 7,205,043 7,518,201 3,286,547
Due from Other Funds - - 300,000 -
Materials and Supplies Inventory 119,490 33,289 15,006 -
Prepaid Expenses 210,842 184,365 406,612 46,226
Total Assets $ 17,828,674 $ 10,138,207 $ 30,806,479 $ 14,507,807
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 345,754 $ 492,718 $ 608,938 $ 643,999
Contracts Payable - - - -
Retainage Payable - - - -
Accrued Wages and Benefits 553,104 336,612 499,112 -
Compensated Absences Payable - 27,262 - -
Due to Other Governments - - - -
Due to Other Funds 13,830 - - -
Deferred Revenue 5,387,431 5,805,200 16,912,966 9,645,299
Matured Interest Payable - - - -
Notes Payable - - - 2,500,000
Total Liabilities 6,300,119 6,661,792 18,021,016 12,789,298
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable 831,198 217,654 421,618 46,226
Restricted - 3,258,761 12,363,845 1,672,283
Assigned 1,124,930 - - -
Unassigned 9,572,427 - - -
Total Fund Balances 11,528,555 3,476,415 12,785,463 1,718,509
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 17,828,674 $ 10,138,207 $ 30,806,479 $ 14,507,807

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances
to Net Assets of Governmental Activities

December 31, 2011

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds
$ 11,806,570 $ 37,276,473

164,202 389,062
6,199 6,199
2,197,708 23,979,612

- 3,403,740

312,975 1,419,977
196,746 196,746

236 182,213
16,127,615 35,923,566
27,830 327,830
148,156 315,941
24,504 872,549

$ 31,012,741 $ 104,293,908
$ 850,695 $ 2,942,104
42,303 42,303
5,833 5,833
288,417 1,677,245

- 27,262

11,777 11,777
314,000 327,830
16,954,202 54,705,098
366 366

715,000 3,215,000
19,182,593 62,954,818
247,447 1,764,143
12,104,984 29,399,873

- 1,124,930
(522,283) 9,050,144
11,830,148 41,339,090

$ 31,012,741 $ 104,293,908

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and therefore are not reported in the funds. These assets consist of:

Land $ 7,204,888
Construction in Progress 2,352,281
Infrastructure 97,253,634
Buildings 30,357,492
Improvements 53,169,944
Machiney and Equipment 17,546,498

Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Intergovernmental Revenue 28,794,731
Charges for Services 253,045
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures 850
Investment Income 120,953

Bond issue costs reported as an expenditure in governmental funds
are allocated as an expense over the life of the debt on a full
accrual basis.

The unamortized loss on the refunding of debt is not due
and payable in the current period and, therefore,
is not reported as a fund liability

The internal service fund are used to charge the cost of dental
insurance to employees. The assets and liabilities of the internal
service fund are included in governmental activities in the
statement of net assets.

The internal balance represents the portion of the internal service fund's

assets and liabilities that are allocated to the proprietary funds.

(121,492,710)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore

are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:

Accrued Wages and Benefits (1,756,960)
Accrued Compensated Absences (4,129,650)
Accrued Interest on Long-Term Debt (72,460)
General Obligation Bonds Payable (14,435,000)
Accrued Bond Premium (206,145)

Total Liabilities

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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41,339,090

86,392,027

29,169,579

127,516

108,715

1,384

4,384

(20,600,215)

136,542,480



CLARK COUNTY, OHIO

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

REVENUES:
Taxes
Permissive Sales Tax
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures
Special Assessments
Investment Income
Other Revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Legislative and Executive
Judicial

Public Safety

Public Works

Health

Human Services

Conservation/Recreation

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues Over/

(Under) Expenditures

Department of

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year, as restated

Fund Balance, End of Year

Developmental Children's
General Job & Family Disabilities Services
Fund Services Fund Fund Fund
$ 3,335,928 $ - $ 9,725,540 $ 2,280,820
20,374,885 - - -
5,708,692 11,829,416 14,071,117 6,375,585
5,697,441 3,852,367 334,696 465,290
3,059 - - -
656,351 - - -
1,053,392 - 123 5,900
383,623 - 96,600 552,394
37,213,371 15,681,783 24,228,076 9,679,989
4,877,115 - - -
8,514,655 - - -
14,361,495 - - -
3,335,851 - - -
292,336 - 22,680,274 -
822,400 15,851,089 - 9,351,316
434,229 - - -
5,000 - - -
32,643,081 15,851,089 22,680,274 9,351,316
4,570,290 (169,306) 1,547,802 328,673
6,980 - - -

- 835,732 - -
(2,367,062) - (1,185,100) -
(2,360,082) 835,732 (1,185,100) -

2,210,208 666,426 362,702 328,673
9,318,347 2,809,989 12,422,761 1,389,836
$ 11,528,555 $ 3,476,415 $ 12,785,463 $ 1,718,509

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds
$ 2,231,694 $ 17,573,982
- 20,374,385
14,971,875 52,956,685
3,877,672 14,227,466
536,657 539,716
668,434 1,324,785
191,640 191,640
41,072 1,100,487
1,400,744 2,433,361
23,919,788 110,723,007
1,380,333 6,257,448
3,963,896 12,478,551
1,198,523 15,560,018
7,451,671 10,787,522
38,994 23,011,604
6,628,729 32,653,534
868,671 1,302,900
2,334,163 2,339,163
1,325,000 1,325,000
624,081 624,081
25,814,061 106,339,821
(1,894,273) 4,383,186
- 6,980
3,211,065 4,046,797
(494,635) (4,046,797)
2,716,430 6,980
822,157 4,390,166
11,007,991 36,948,924
$ 11,830,148 $ 41,339,090

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:

Capital Asset Additions 3,559,819
Depreciation (5,076,393)

Governmental funds report only the disposal of capital assets to the extent
proceeds are received from the sale. In the statement of activities,
a gain or loss is reported.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current

financial resources are not reported as revenues on the funds.

Intergovernmental (183,232)
Charges for Services (21,754)
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures 850

Investment Income (11,949)
Other Revenue (148)

The amortization of a loss on the refunding of debt or the premium on the
issuance of debt do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, is not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds

Amortization of Bond Issue Costs (13,435)
Amortization of Bond Premium 20,256
Deferred Amount on Refunding (28,991)

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,

but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and are therefore not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:

Compensated Absences
Accrued Wages and Benefits
Accrued Interest Payable

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

December 31, 2011

ASSETS:
Current:
Pooled Cash and Investments
Pooled Cash and Investments
in Segregated Accounts
Pooled Cash and Investments
with Fiscal and Escrow Agents
Receivables:
Accounts
Due from Other Governments
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Unamortized Bond Issue Costs
Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Retainage Payable
Accrued Wages and Benefits
Accrued Interest Payable
Notes Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences Payable
OWDA Loans Payable
OPWC Loan Payable
General Obligation Bonds Payable
Accrued Bond Premium
Unamortized Charge - Refunding Issue

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Net assets reported for business-type activities in the statement of net assets is different
because they include a proportionate share of the balance of the internal service fund.

Internal

Sewer Water Total Service Fund

$ 5,206,068 1,323,493 $ 6,529,561 1,384
496,547 - 496,547 -
40,754 - 40,754 -
1,118,006 556,229 1,674,235 -
23,816 200,000 223,816 -
902 738 1,640 -
10,809 2,950 13,759 -

6,896,902 2,083,410 8,980,312 1,384
19,919 14,006 33,925 -
11,100,245 6,284,742 17,384,987 -
11,120,164 6,298,748 17,418,912 -

$ 18,017,066 8,382,158 $ 26,399,224 1,384
$ 155,814 136,965 $ 292,779 -
40,754 - 40,754 -
41,815 34,216 76,031 -
28,526 4,449 32,975 -
1,926,250 243,750 2,170,000 -
2,193,159 419,380 2,612,539 -
77,670 63,548 141,218 -
222,918 - 222,918 -
535,786 319,898 855,684 -
1,952,400 1,445,000 3,397,400 -
13,898 28,105 42,003 -
(9,994) - (9,994) -
2,792,678 1,856,551 4,649,229 -
4,985,837 2,275,931 7,261,768 -
6,448,993 4,247,989 10,696,982 -

6,582,236 1,858,238 8,440,474 1,384

$ 13,031,229 6,106,227 19,137,456 1,384

(4,384)
$ 19,133,072

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Internal
Sewer Water Total Service Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Services $ 3,685,782 $ 2,270,787 $ 5,956,569 -
Other Operating Revenue 35,708 36,025 71,733 -
Total Operating Revenues 3,721,490 2,306,812 6,028,302 -
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel Services 818,802 669,960 1,488,762 -
Contractual Services 1,541,399 851,803 2,393,202 -
Materials and Supplies 127,637 99,737 227,374 -
Other Expenses 222,200 169,041 391,241 -
Depreciation 501,047 179,959 681,006 -
Total Operating Expenses 3,211,085 1,970,500 5,181,585 -
Operating Income 510,405 336,312 846,717 -
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Income 28 - 28 -
Interest Expense (112,394) (57,102) (169,496) -
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (112,366) (57,102) (169,468) -
Income Before Contributions and Transfers 398,039 279,210 677,249 -
Capital Contributions 23,816 214,169 237,985 -
Transfers In - 36,450 36,450 -
Transfers Out (36,450) - (36,450) -
Change in Net Assets 385,405 529,829 915,234 -
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 12,645,824 5,576,398 1,384
Net Assets, End of Year $ 13,031,229 $ 6,106,227 1,384
Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activities are
different because a proportionate share of the net expense of the internal service
funds are reported with business-type activities. -
Change in net assets of business-type activities  § 915,234

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Internal
Sewer Water Total Service Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash Received from Customers $ 3,602,640 $ 2,221,369 5,824,009 $ -

Cash Paid for Employees Salaries and Benefits (820,428) (671,285) (1,491,713) -

Cash Paid to Suppliers (1,547,088) (860,150) (2,407,238) -

Other Operating Revenues 39,134 34,038 73,172 -

Other Operating Expenses (219,184) (168,617) (387,801) -

Net Cash Provided (Used)
by Operating Activities 1,055,074 555,355 1,610,429 -
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL ACTIVITIES:
Transfers In - 36,450 36,450 -
Transfers Out (36,450) - (36,450) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncaptial Activities (36,450) 36,450 - -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Grants - 14,169 14,169 -
Proceeds from Notes/Loans 2,004,029 243,750 2,247,779 -
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (654,678) (44,955) (699,633) -
Interest Paid on Loans (4,334) - (4,334) -
Interest Paid on G.O. Notes (1,238) (4,262) (5,500) -
Interest Paid on G.O. Bonds (94,661) (55,701) (150,362) -
Principal Paid on G.O. Notes (429,000) (341,000) (770,000) -
Principal Paid on OWDA Loans (26,443) - (26,443) -
Principal Paid on OPWC Loans (30,698) (99,302) (130,000) -
Principal Paid on G.O. Bonds (281,100) (145,000) (426,100) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital
and Related Financing Activities 481,877 (432,301) 49,576 -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest 28 - 28 -
Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,500,529 159,504 1,660,033 -
Pooled Cash and Investments, Beginning of Year 4,242,840 1,163,989 5,406,829 1,384
Pooled Cash and Investments, End of Year $ 5,743,369 $ 1,323,493 7,066,862 $ 1,384
Reconciliation of Pooled Cash and Investments

per Statement of Net Assets to Pooled Cash and

Investments, End of Year, per Statement of Cash Flows:

Pooled Cash and Investments $ 5,206,068 $ 1,323,493 6,529,561 $ 1,384
Pooled Cash and Investments

in Segregated Accounts 496,547 - 496,547 -
Pooled Cash and Investments

with Fiscal and Escrow Agents 40,754 - 40,754 -
Pooled Cash and Investments, End of Year,

per Statement of Cash Flows $ 5,743,369 $ 1,323,493 7,066,862 $ 1,384

(Continued)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
(Continued)
Internal
Sewer Water Total Service Fund
Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income 510,405 $ 336,312 $ 846,717 $ -
Adjustment to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 501,047 179,959 681,006 -
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable (79,628) (51,348) (130,976) -
Prepaid Expenses (308) 14 (294) -
Accounts Payable 125,308 91,743 217,051 -
Retainage Payable (124) - (124) -
Accrued Wages & Benefits 1,035 852 1,887 -
Compensated Absences Payable (2,661) 2,177) (4,838) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $§ 1,055,074 $ 555,355 $ 1,610,429 $ -

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2011

ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments
Pooled Cash and Investments
in Segregated Accounts
Receivables:
Special Assessments
Taxes to be Collected for Other Governments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Due to Other Governments
Undistributed Monies

Total Liabilities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

NOTE 1-REPORTING ENTITY

Clark County, Ohio (The County) was established in 1818. The County is governed by a Board of three
commissioners elected by the voters of the County. Other officials elected by the voters of the County that
manage various segments of the County’s operations are the Auditor, Treasurer, Recorder, Clerk of
Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney, Sheriff, three Common Pleas Court Judges, a Probate
Court Judge, a Court of Appeals Judge, and a Juvenile Court Judge. Although these elected officials
manage the internal operations of their respective departments, the County Commissioners authorize
expenditures as well as serve as the budgeting and taxing authority, contracting body and the chief
administrators of public services for the entire County.

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other Organizations that
are included to ensure that the financial statements of the County are not misleading. The primary
government consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the
County. For Clark County, this includes the Children’s Services Board, the Clark County Department of
Developmental Disabilities (DoDD), the Department of Jobs & Family Services, the Clark County Solid
Waste Management Board, the Clark County Emergency Management Agency and all departments and
activities that are directly operated by the elected County officials.

Discretely Presented Component Units:

Component units are legally separate Organizations for which the County is financially accountable. The
County is financially accountable for an Organization if the County appoints a voting majority of the
Organization’s governing board and (1) the County is able to significantly influence the programs or
services performed or provided by the Organization: or (2) the County is legally entitled to or can
otherwise access the Organization’s resources; the County is legally obligated or has assumed the
responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the Organization; or the County is
obligated for the debt of the Organization. Component units may also include Organizations that are
fiscally dependent on the County in that the County approves the Organization’s budget, the levying of its
taxes or the issuance of its debt. At December 31,201 1, there are no Organizations that meet the
requirements as component units to be included as part of Clark County’s reporting entity.

Prior to 2008, Clark County discretely presented the Housing Connection of Clark County and TAC
Industries, Inc. as component units within its reporting entity. In 2008, both of these organizations were
restructured and therefore no longer meet the requirements described in the previous paragraph to be
included within Clark County’s reporting entity.

NOTE 2-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. Clark County (the County and the primary government) follows GASB guidance as
applicable to its governmental and business-type activities, and Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) statements and interpretations, Accounting Principles Board opinions, and Accounting Research
Board bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, that do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements or that have been made applicable by the GASB. The County has elected to follow
GASB guidance for business-type activities and enterprise funds rather than FASB guidance issued after
November 30, 1989. The most significant of the County's accounting policies are described below.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

NOTE 2—-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A. Bassof Presentation:

The County’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a
statement of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a
more detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities
display information about the County as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of
the primary government, except for fiduciary funds, and its component units. The statements
distinguish between those activities of the primary government that are governmental and those that
are considered business-type activities. Each component unit is reported in a column, to show that
each entity is legally separate from the other.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type
activities of the County and its component units at year-end. Interfund receivables and payables
within governmental activities and within business-type activities have been eliminated to minimize
the duplicating effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental and business-type activities
total columns. The balance of the internal service fund has been eliminated against the expenses
shown in governmental and business-type activities on the statement of activities. This elimination of
this activity is to avoid the “doubling up” of revenues and expenses.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function of the County's governmental activities, for business-type activities of the County and
for activities of the County's component units. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a service, program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular
function. The County does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities.
Program revenues include (1) charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services and (2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of
the County. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which
each business segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues
of the County.

Fund Financial Statements: During the year, the County segregates transactions related to certain
County functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to
demonstrate legal compliance. F und financial statements are designed to present financial
information of the County at this more detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund
financial statements is on major funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor
funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. The County also maintains an internal service
fund for acquiring document imaging equipment for the County. Agency funds, which are a type of
fiduciary fund, are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individuals,
private organizations and other governments.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Fund Accounting:

The County uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is defined as a fiscal
and accounting entity with a self balancing set of accounts. There are three categories of funds:
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions
are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to
the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from
which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported
as fund balance. The following are the County's major governmental funds:

General Fund: The General Fund is the primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the primary government not recorded elsewhere. The General Fund balance is
available to the County for any purpose, provided it is expended or transferred in accordance with
state law.

Job & Family Services Fund: The Job & Family Services Fund is used to maintain and account
for the revenue and expenditures necessary to support Human Service programs administered by
Clark County.

Department of Developmental Disabilities (DoDD) Fund: The DoDD Fund is used to maintain
and account for revenue received from Tax Levies, State Grants, Federal Grants, SSI, Donations
and other various sources used to support the programs carried out within Clark County to assist
developmentally disabled residents.

Children’s Services Fund: The Children’s Services Fund is used to maintain and account for the
proceeds of levy funds assessed to taxpayers in Clark County and expenditures for the support of
Children’s Home of Clark County.

The County's nonmajor governmental funds account for (1) grants and other resources whose use is
restricted to a particular purpose; (2) the accumulation of resources for, and payment of, the principal,
interest and related costs for the County's general long-term debt; and (3) financial resources used for
the acquisition, construction or renovation of facilities (other than those financed by proprietary
funds).

Proprietary Funds: Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income,
changes in net assets, financial position and cash flows. Proprietary funds are classified as either
enterprise or internal service.

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises, where the County's intent is that the cost of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges. The County's enterprise funds include the following:
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NOTE 2—-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Fund Accounting: (Continued)

Sewer Fund: The Sewer Fund is used to maintain and account for the operation of the County’s
sewage treatment and collection systems.

Water Fund: The Water Fund is used to maintain and account for the operation of the County’s
water treatment and distribution systems.

Internal service funds account for the financing of services provided by one department or agency to
other departments or agencies of the government on a cost-reimbursement basis. The Document
Imaging internal service fund accounts for the acquisition of document imaging equipment for the
County.

Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. There are
four types of fiduciary funds: pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose trust funds
and agency funds. The only type of fiduciary fund the County uses is agency funds.

The agency funds account for assets held in a purely custodial capacity by the County as fiscal agent
for other entities, and for various taxes, state-shared revenues and fines and forfeitures collected on
behalf of and distributed to other local governments. Agency fund transactions typically involve only
the receipt, temporary investment and distribution of these fiduciary resources.

C. Basisof Accounting and M easur ement Focus:

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are captured in the financial records and reported
on the financial statements. Measurement focus refers to what is expressed in reporting an entity's
financial performance and position. A particular measurement focus is accomplished by considering
which resources are measured.

Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the timing of
recognition of revenue and the recording of unearned revenue, and in the presentation of expenses
versus expenditures. Under the non-GAAP budgetary basis, transactions are recorded when cash is
received or disbursed.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are prepared
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. All assets and
liabilities associated with the operation of the County are included on the statement of net assets.

Fund Financial Statements: All governmental funds are reported using the flow of current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement
focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e.,
revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current
financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the
government-wide financial statements are prepared. Therefore, governmental fund financial
statements include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between
the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.
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NOTE 2—-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basisof Accounting and M easur ement Focus: (Continued)

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. All assets and liabilities associated with the
operation of these funds are included on the statement of net assets. The statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in net assets presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in
net total assets. The statement of cash flows provides information about how the County finances and
meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

Fiduciary funds are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Agency funds, which are custodial
in nature, do not measure results of operations and do not have a measurement focus.

Revenues — Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions: Revenue resulting from exchange
transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual
basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal
year in which the resources are measurable and become available. "Available" means that the
resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. The County considers revenues
reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days of
year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the County receives value without directly giving equal value in
return, include sales taxes, property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On the accrual basis,
revenue from sales taxes is recognized in the period in which the taxable sale takes place. Revenue
from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied (see note 7).
Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements that
specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the year when use is first permitted;
matching requirements in which the County must provide local resources to be used for a specified
purpose; and expenditure requirements in which the resources are provided to the County on a
reimbursement basis.

On the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before
it can be recognized. Under this basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both
measurable and available at year-end: sales tax, interest, federal and state grants and subsidies, state-
levied locally shared taxes (including motor vehicle license fees and gasoline taxes), fees and rentals.

Unearned Revenue: Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition
criteria have been satisfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of December 31, 2011, but which were
levied to finance year 2012 operations, have been recorded as unearned revenue. Grants and
entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met are also recorded as unearned
revenue.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the available
period have also been reported as deferred revenue.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus: (Continued)

Expenses/Expenditures: On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time
they are incurred.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. On the modified accrual basis, expenditures are generally
recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable,
provided current financial resources are to be used. As a result, compensated absences and most
claims and judgments are not recorded as expenditures or liabilities until current financial resources
are required. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in
governmental funds.

D. Pooled Cash and Investments:

Cash resources of the majority of individual funds are combined to form a pool of cash and
investments managed by the County Treasurer. Interest earned on investments is accrued as earned.
Under existing Ohio law, all investment earnings are assigned to the general fund unless statutorily
required to be credited to a specific fund. Distribution is made utilizing a formula based on the
average month-end balance of cash and cash equivalents of all funds.

For reporting purposes, “Pooled Cash and Investments” is defined as cash on hand, demand deposits
and investments held in the County treasury. Cash and cash equivalents that are held separately
within departments of the County and not held by the County Treasurer are recorded on the balance
sheet as “Pooled Cash and Investments in Segregated Accounts.” Cash and cash equivalents that are
held separately by a trustee or fiscal agent and not managed by the County Treasurer are recorded on
the balance sheet as “Pooled Cash and Investments with Fiscal and Escrow Agents.”

For cash flow reporting purposes, the County's proprietary funds consider cash and cash equivalents
to be cash on hand and demand deposits. “Pooled Cash and Investments" is considered to be cash and
cash equivalents since these assets are available on demand.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, A ccounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools, investments held by the Treasurer are stated at fair
value using quoted market prices, except for repurchase agreements that are reported at cost. Net
unrealized gains and losses calculated through the aggregate method are recorded as investment
income in the General Fund. By statute, the Treasurer invests any short-term cash surplus. The
residual investments are included in "Pooled Cash and Investments." STAR Ohio is an investment
pool that allows governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAR
Ohio is managed by the State Treasurer's Office and is not registered with the SEC as an investment
company, but does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of
1940. Investments in STAR Ohio are valued at STAR Ohio's share price, which is the price the
investment could be sold for on December 31, 2011. Detailed disclosure regarding pooled cash and
investments held by the County is provided in Note 6.
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NOTE 2—-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Pooled Cash and Investments: (Continued)

Per the Ohio Revised Code, interest earned on investments is distributed to the General Fund, except
as stipulated by the Ohio Constitution or State statute. Interest revenue credited to the General Fund
during 2011 amounted to $1,053,392 of which $991,926 was assigned from other County Funds.
Major funds earning interest were the Department of Developmental Disabilities Fund, $123 and the
Children’s Services Fund, $5,900. Other non-major governmental funds earned $41,072 in investment
earnings.

During fiscal year 2011, investments were limited to sweep accounts, government securities,
certificates of deposit, commercial paper and STAR Ohio.

Except for nonparticipating investment contracts, investments are reported at fair value, which is
based on quoted market prices. Nonparticipating investment contracts such as nonnegotiable

certificates of deposit are reported at cost.

E. Receivables and Payables:

Receivables to be recorded on the County’s financial statements are recorded to the extent that the
amounts are determined material and substantiated not only by supporting documentation, but also by
a reasonable, systematic method of determining their existence, completeness, valuation and
collectability.

Using this criterion, the County has elected not to record child support arrearage within the special
revenue and agency funds and Court receivables within the agency funds. These amounts, while
potentially significant, are not considered measurable and because collections are often significantly
in arrears, the County is unable to determine a reasonable value.

F. Materialsand Supplies|nventory:

Inventory consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. All inventories are valued at cost
using the first in/first out (FIFO) method. The costs of inventory items are recorded as expenditures in
the fund financial statements for the governmental funds when purchased and as expenses in the
business-type funds when used.

G. Prepaid Items:

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 201 1, are
recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method. Under this method, a current asset is
recorded for the prepaid amount and reflecting the expenditure/expense in the year in which services
are consumed.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H. Interfund Balances:

Activity between funds that represent lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund
loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All unpaid
reimbursements between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Interfund receivables and
payables within governmental activities and within business-type activities have been eliminated in
the government-wide statement of net assets; any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported as "internal balances."

I. Capital Assets:

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary
funds and generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported in
the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets but are not
reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets used by the proprietary funds are reported
both in the business-type activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets and in the
respective fund financial statements.

Capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and
reductions during the year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair market value as of the date
received. Capital assets are defined by the County as assets with an initial, individual cost of more
than $10,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of five years. The County's infrastructure consists
of roads, bridges, culverts, water and sewer lines, and similar items.

The costs of improvements and major renovations that extend the asset's useful life are capitalized.
Interest incurred during the construction of assets utilized by the enterprise funds is also capitalized.
Normal maintenance and repair costs that do not add to the value of the asset nor materially extend an
asset's life are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated except for land and construction in progress. Useful lives for
infrastructure were estimated based on the County's historical records of necessary improvements and
replacement. Capital assets are shown net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation and amortization
of capitalized interest are computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful

lives:
Buildings 20 - 40 years
Improvements 20 years
Water and Sewer Lines 65 years
Infrastructure 10 - 60 years
Machinery and Equipment 5 - 20 years
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NOTE 2—-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

|. Capital Assets. (Continued)

The County’s policy is to capitalize net interest on business-type activities construction projects until
substantial completion of the project. The amount of capitalized interest equals the difference
between the interest cost associated with the tax-exempt borrowing used to finance the project and the
interest earned from temporary investment of debt proceeds. Capitalized interest on business-type
activities construction projects is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
the asset. For 2011, interest costs incurred on construction projects for all activities were not material.

J. Compensated Absences:

The County follows the provision of GASB Satement No. 16, “ Accounting for Compensated
Absences’ . Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employee’s
rights to receive compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the
County will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means.
Sick leave benefits are accrued using the vesting method. An accrual for earned sick leave is made to
the extent it is probable that benefits will result in termination payments.

County employees earn vacation and sick leave at varying rates depending on length of service and
departmental policy. All accumulated, unused vacation time is paid upon separation if the employee
has at least one year of service with the County. Upon retirement, employees are paid 25% of their
accrued sick leave balance up to a maximum of 225 to 400 hours depending onthe individual
department policy. All payments are made at the employee's current wage rate.

Compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements and in
proprietary funds. A liability for these amounts is recorded in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example as a result of employee resignations and retirements. Compensated absences
liability will be paid from the General Fund, Department of Job & Family Services, Child Support
Enforcement Agency, Department of Rehab Corrections, DoDD, Prosecutors Mandatory Fine, Dog &
Kennel, Real Estate Assessment, LIS Mapping, DRETAC, VAWI — Prosecutor, Certificate of Title
Administration, Solid Waste, Common Pleas Court, Juvenile/Victim/Child Advocate, VOCA Grant
(CAC), State Homeland and Common Pleas Special Project special revenue funds and the Sewer and
Water enterprise funds.

K. Accrued and Long-Term Liabilities:

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported on the government-wide
financial statement, and all payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations payable from
proprietary funds are reported on the enterprise fund financial statements. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in full

from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. Bonds and loans are
recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

L. Fund Balance:

Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent of which the County is
bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The
classifications are as follows:

Nonspendable — The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be
spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to
be maintained intact. The “not in spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to
be converted to cash, for example, materials and supplies inventory, prepaid amounts and
unclaimed funds and warrants.

Restricted — The restricted fund balance classification is used when constraints placed on the use
of resources are either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants),
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments (i.e., State Statutes); or (b)
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation (County resolutions).

Enabling legislation authorizes the County to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payment
of resources (from external resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable requirement
that those resources be used only for the specific purposes stated in the legislation. Legal
enforceability means that a government can be compelled by an external party-such as citizens,
public interest groups, or the judiciary-to use resources created by enabling legislation only for
the purposes specified by the legislation.

Committed — The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only
for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action (resolution) of the
County’s highest level of decision-making authority (the County Commissioners). Those
committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the County Commissioners, by
taking the same type of action (resolution or ordinance), removes or changes the constraint. The
committed fund balance constraints are imposed by the County Commissioners, separate from the
authorization to raise the underlying revenue, and compliance with constraints imposed by the
County Commissioners is not considered to be legally enforceable. Committed fund balance
should also incorporate contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund
have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned — The assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the
County’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. In
governmental funds other than the General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses
established by the County Commissioners of a County Official delegated that authority by
resolution or by State Statute.

Unassigned — The unassigned fund balance classification is the residual classification for the
General Fund. In governmental funds other than the general fund, the unassigned classification
should be used only to report a deficit balance resulting from expenditures exceeding amounts
that have been restricted, committed, or assigned.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

L. Fund Balance: (Continued)

The County first applies restricted resources when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which
either restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are available.
Similarly, within unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by
assigned and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which
amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications can be used.

M. Net Assets:

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets,
net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those
assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the County or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. The County applies restricted
resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
assets are available.

N. Operating Revenues and Expenses:

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the
proprietary funds. For the County, these revenues are charges for sewer and water services. Operating
expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the services that are the primary activities of the
fund. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

0. Contributions of Capital:

Contributions of capital in proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside contributions of
capital assets, tap-in fees to the extent they exceed the cost of the connection to the system or from
grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction.

P. Interfund Activity:

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statements are
reported in the same manner as general revenues.

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another
without ar equirement for repayment are reported asinterfund transfers. Interfund transfers are
reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after non-operating
revenues/expenses in proprietary funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial
statements.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Q. Estimates:
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

R. Extraordinary and Special Items:

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in
occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of the County and that
are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither type of transaction occurred during
2011.

NOTE 3 — CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND RESTATEMENT OF FUND
BALANCE

A. Change in Accounting Principles

For fiscal year 2011, the County has implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.”
GASB 54 shifts the focus of fund balance reporting from the availability of fund resources for
budgeting to the extent to which the County is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for
which amounts in funds can be spent.

B. Restatement of Fund Balance

The implementation of GASB 54 had the following effects on fund balance of the following major
and non-major governmental funds of the County as they were previously reported.

Nonmajor
General Governmental
Fund Funds
Fund Balance, December 31, 2010 $ 9,024,147 $ 11,302,191
Change in Fund Structure 294,200 (294,200)
Fund Balance, December 31, 2010, as restated $ 9318347 § 11,007,991

-36-



CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

NOTE 4—ACCOUNTIBILITY

A. De€ficit Fund Balances:

The following funds have equity deficits as of December 31, 2011:

Deficit Fund
Equity
Governmental Activities:
ARRA Fund $ 553
General Bond Retirement Fund 10,435
Permanent Improvement Fund 493,934
Issue [I/OPWC Capital Projects Fund 10,074
County Resurfacing Fund 7,286

The deficits are a result of the application of GAAP. The general fund provides transfers to cover
deficit balances; however, this is done when cash is needed rather than when accruals occur.

NOTE 5—FUND BALANCE

Fund balance is classified as n onspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and/or unassigned based
primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources in the government funds. The constraints placed on fund balance for the major governmental
funds and all other governmental funds are presented below:

Department of
Developmental Children's Nonmajor Total
General Job & Family Disabilities Services Governmental Governmental
Fund Balance Fund Services Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Nonspendable:

Materials and Supplies Inventory $ 119,490 § 33,289 $ 15,006 $ - $ 148,156  $ 315,941

Prepaid Expenses 210,842 184,365 406,612 46,226 24,504 872,549

Permanent Funds - - - - 74,787 74,787

Unclaimed Funds and/or Warrants 500,866 - - - - 500,866
Total Nonspendable 831,198 217,654 421,618 46,226 247,447 1,764,143
Restricted for:

Job & Family Services - 3,258,761 - - - 3,258,761

Department of Developmental Disabilities - - 12,363,845 - - 12,363,845

Children's Services - - - 1,672,283 - 1,672,283

Debt Service - - - - 13,025 13,025

Capital Projects - - - - 284,773 284,773

Other Purposes - - - - 11,762,903 11,762,903

Permanent Fund - - - - 44,283 44,283
Total Restricted - 3,258,761 12,363,845 1,672,283 12,104,984 29,399,873
Assigned:

Other Purposes 1,124,930 - - - - 1,124,930
Total Assigned 1,124,930 - - - - 1,124,930
Unassigned (deficit) 9,572,427 - - - (522,283) 9,050,144
Total Fund Balances $ 11,528,555 $ 3,476,415 $ 12,785,463 $ 1,718,509  § 11,830,148 $ 41,339,090
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NOTE 6 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Monies held by the County are classified by State statute into two categories. Active monies are public
monies determined to be necessary to meet current demands upon the County treasury. Active monies
must be maintained either as cash in the County treasury, in commercial accounts payable or
withdrawable on demand, including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market

deposit accounts.

Monies held by the County which are not considered active are classified as inactive. Inactive monies
may be deposited or invested with certain limitations in the following securities provided the County has

filed a written investment policy with the Ohio Auditor of State:

L.

10.

United States treasury notes, bills, bonds, or any other obligation or security issued by the
United States treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal and interest by the
United States;

Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or security issued by any federal
government agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the federal national
mortgage association, federal home loan bank, federal farm credit bank, federal home loan
mortgage corporation, government national mortgage association, and student loan marketing
association. All federal agency securities shall be direct issuances of federal government
agencies or instrumentalities;

Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market-value
of the securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value-of-the
agreement by at least two percent and be marked to market daily, and that the term of the
agreement must not exceed thirty days;

Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio or its political subdivisions, provided that
such political subdivisions are located wholly or partly within the County;

Time certificates of deposit or savings or deposit accounts, including, but not limited to,
passbook accounts;

No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in
division (1) or (2) and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided that
investments in securities described in this division are made only through eligible institutions;
The State Treasurer’s investment pool (STAR Ohio);

Securities lending agreements in which the County lends securities and the eligible institution
agrees to exchange either securities described in division (1) or (2) or cash or both securities

and cash, equal value for equal value;

High grade commercial paper in an amount not to exceed twenty five percent of the County’s
total average portfolio; and;

Bankers acceptances for a period not to exceed 180 days and in amount not to exceed twenty
five percent of the County’s total average portfolio.
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NOTE 6 —DEPOSITSAND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Protection of the County’s deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), by
eligible securities pledged by the financial institution as security for repayment, by surety company bonds
deposited with the County Treasurer by the financial institution or by a single collateral pool established
by the financial institution to secure the repayment of all public monies deposited with the institution.

Reverse repurchase agreements, investments in derivatives, and investments in stripped principal or
interest obligations that are not issued or guaranteed by the United States, are prohibited. The issuance of
taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage and short selling are also prohibited.
Bankers’ acceptances must mature within 180 days. Commercial paper and corporate notes must mature
within 270 days. All other investments must mature within five years from the date of settlement unless
matched to a specific obligation or debt of the County. Investments must be purchased with the
expectation that they will be held to maturity. Investments may only be made through specified dealers
and institutions.

Deposits:

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the County’s deposits may not be
returned. Protection of the County’s cash and deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation as well as qualified securities pledged by the institution holding the assets. By law, financial
institutions must collateralize all public deposits. The market value of the pooled collateral must equal at
least 105 percent of the total amount of all public deposits secured by the pool, that are not covered by
any federal deposit insurance. Collateral is held by trustees including the Federal Reserve Bank and
designated third parties of the financial institution.

At year end, the County’s bank balance was $38,809,030. Of the bank balance, $27,423,514 was covered
by Federal Depository insurance and $11,385,516 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution. Although all statutory requirements for the deposit of money had been followed,
non-compliance with federal requirements could potentially subject the County to a successful claim by
the FDIC.

|nvestments:

At year-end, the County had the following investments:

Investment Maturity

Credit Fair Less than One to Greater than % of
Investment Type Rating ' Value One Year Three Years Three Years Portfolio
Federal Farm Credit Bank AAA $ 2,010,910 $ 1,010,910 $ 1,000,000 - 6.47%
Federal Home Loan Bank AAA 13,540,955 3,061,290 7,508,165 2,971,500 43.57%
Commercial Paper A-2 8,986,205 8,986,205 - - 28.92%
Corporate Note AA+ 506,160 - 506,160 - 1.63%
STAR Ohio AAAm 6,031,728 6,031,728 - - 19.41%
Total Investments $ 31,075,958 $ 19,090,133 $ 9,014,325 $ 2,971,500 100.00%

! per Standard & Poor's

-39 .



CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

NOTE 6 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk — The County’s investment policy and the Ohio Revised Code state that the maximum
maturity for any investment is limited to five years from the date of settlement unless the investment
matches a specific obligation or debt. State statute limits investment in commercial paper to a maximum
maturity of 270 days and banker acceptances to a maximum of 180 days from the date of purchase.
Repurchase agreements are limited to 30 days and the market value of the securities must exceed the
principal value of the agreement by at least 2% and be marked to market daily.

Credit Risk — The County’s investments policy requires that they follow the investment guidelines in
Section 135 of the Ohio Revised Code. Ohio law requires that STAROhio maintain the highest rating
provided by at least one nationally recognized standard rating service and that commercial paper and
corporate notes are limited to notes rated at the time of purchase to the highest classification established
by two nationally recognized standard rating services.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The County’s investment policy does not place any limit on investments

in any single issuer, however state statute limits investments in commercial paper and bankers
acceptances to 25% of the interim monies available for investment at any one time.

NOTE 7 — PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes include amounts levied against real, public utility and tangible personal (business)
property. The assessed value, by property classification, upon which taxes were levied in 2010 and
collected in 2011 were as follows:

Category Assessed Value
Real Property $ 2,233,443,390
Public Utility Real Property 648,030
Public Utility Personal Property 70,963,800
Total Assessed Value $ 2,305,055,220

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property by all overlapping taxing authorities in excess of 10 mills per
dollar of assessed value without a vote of the people. Presently, the County levies 1.70 mills of this 10
mill limit for the General Fund. In addition to the 1.70 mills, 12.15 mills have been levied for additional
millage.

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real estate and public utility property, and tangible
personal property used in business and located in the County. Real property taxes (other than public
utility) collected during 2011 were levied after October 1, 2010 on assessed values as of January 1, 2010,
the lien date. Assessed values were established by the County Auditor at 35% of appraised market value.
All property is required to be revalued every six years. The last revaluation was completed in 2007. Real
property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. If paid annually, payment is due January 31; if paid
semiannually, the first payment is due February and the remainder payable in July. Under certain
circumstances, state statute permits later payment dates to be established.
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NOTE 7 - PROPERTY TAXES (Continued)

Tangible personal property tax revenues received in 2011 (other than public utility property) represent the
collection of 2011 taxes levied against local and inter-exchange telephone companies. Tangible personal
property tax on business inventory, manufacturing machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures is no
longer levied and collected. Tangible personal property taxes received from telephone companies in
calendar year 2011 were levied after October 1, 2010 on values as of December 31, 2010. Amounts paid
by multi-county taxpayers are due September 20. Single county taxpayers may pay annually or
semiannually. If paid annually, the first payment is due April 30; if paid semiannually, the first payment
is due April 30, with the remainder payable by September 20.

House Bill No. 66 was signed into law on June 30, 2005. House Bill No.66 phases out the tax on tangible
personal property of general businesses, telephone and telecommunications companies, and railroads. The
tax on general business and railroad property was eliminated in calendar year 2008, and the tax on
telephone and telecommunications property will be eliminated by calendar year 2011. The tax is phased
out by reducing the assessment rate on the property each year. The bill replaces the revenue lost by the
County due to the phasing out of the tax. In calendar years 2006-2010, the County will be fully
reimbursed for the lost revenue. In calendar years 2011-2017, the reimbursements will be phased out.

Public utility real and tangible personal property taxes collected in one calendar year are levied in the
preceding calendar year on assessed values determined as of December 31 of the second year preceding
the tax collection year, the lien date. Certain public utility tangible personal property is currently assessed
at 88 percent of its true value. Public utility property taxes are payable on the same dates as real property
described previously.

The County Treasurer collects property tax on behalf of all taxing districts within the County. Receivables
for these taxes have been recorded as “Taxes to Be Collected for Other Governments” on the balance
sheet. The County Auditor periodically remits to itself its share of the taxes collected. The County records
receipt of these taxes in various funds. The County’s share of taxes receivable have been recorded as
“Taxes Receivable” in the individual funds.

A summary of voted millage for tax year 2010 collected in 2011 follows:

Voter Rate Levied for Current Year (a)
Authorized Residential/ Voter Final
Purpose Rate (b) Agricultural Other Levy Date Levy Year
Children Services 2.000 0.476340 0.846900 2001 2010
Children Services 1.000 0.479125 0.583745 2001 2010
Mental Health 1.000 0.817962 0.787292 2009 2018
Mental Health 1.650 1.640606 1.476558 2005 2013
Mental Health & Retardation 2.000 1.830652 1.686876 2003 Continuing
Mental Health & Retardation 3.500 3.203641 2.952033 2003 Continuing
Senior Citizens 1.000 0.994307 0.894884 2010 2014

(a) Ohio law provides for a reduction of certain voted levies to offset inflation in the reappraisal value of real
property. The voted levies are subject to, and reflect, this credit.

(b) dollars per $1,000 of assessed valuation
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NOTE 7 - PROPERTY TAXES (Continued)

Accrued property taxes receivable represent delinquent taxes outstanding and real, tangible personal, and
public utility taxes, which were measurable and unpaid as of December 31, 2011.

Although total property tax collections for the next fiscal year are measurable, amounts to be received
during the available period are not subject to reasonable estimation at December 31 and are not intended
to finance 2011 operations. The receivable and the portion of the tax levies prepaid by year-end into the
funds are therefore offset by a credit to deferred revenue.

NOTE 8 — PERMISSIVE SALES AND USE TAX

On April 12, 2011, the Board of County Commissioners voted to continue a 2% emergency sales tax
increase for an additional 30 months beginning in July 2011. This increase is needed in order to continue
services at the current levels without adding any additional personnel throughout the County departments.
This increase is in addition to the previous 1 percent on all retail sales, except sales of motor vehicles,
made in the County, and on the storage, use, or consumption in the County of tangible personal property,
including automobiles, not subject to the sales tax. Proceeds of the tax are credited entirely to the General
Fund. Amounts that are measurable and to be received within the available period are accrued as revenue.
Permissive sales tax revenue received in 2011 amounted to $20,374,885.

Vendor collections of the tax are paid to the State Treasurer by the twenty-third day of the month
following collection. The State Tax Commissioner certifies to the Office of Budget Management the
amount of the tax to be returned to the County. The Tax Commissioner’s certification must be made
within forty-five days after the end of each month. The Tax Commissioner shall then, on or before the
twentieth day of the month in which certification is made, provide for payment to the County.

NOTE 9 — INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES

Activity between funds that is referred to as “due to/from other funds” represents transactions when one
fund incurs expenditures/expenses for the benefit of another fund and expects repayment of funds from
the beneficiary fund. Interfund receivables or payables represent the current portion of a loan made by
one fund to another fund. Advances to/from other funds are the non-current portion of interfund loans.
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. Interfund receivables and
payables balances on the fund financial statements as of December 31, 2011 follow:

Due From
Nonmajor
Special
Developmental Revenue
Due To Disabilities Fund Funds Total
General Fund $ - $ 13,830 $ 13,830
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - 3,000 3,000
Nonmajor Debt Service Fund - 11,000 11,000
Nonmajor Capital Projects Fund 300,000 - 300,000
Total $ 300,000 $ 27,830  § 327,830
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NOTE 9 — INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES (Continued)

Transfers are used to move money from one fund of the County to another fund of the County. Transfers
originating from the General Fund are made to subsidize programs of the County which are accounted for
in other funds through budget authorizations or are required by statute; or to distribute interest to funds
which have earned interest, but under state statute are not authorized to receive interest. Other transfers
made include moving monies for capital projects, debt service requirements, returning the unused portion
of a transfer once a project is completed.

Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it
that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund
and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2011, consisted of the following:

Transfer From

Nonmajor Nonmajor
Special Capital
General Developmental Revenue Projects
Transfer To Fund Disabilities Fund Funds Funds Total

Job & Family Services Fund $ 835732 § - $ - $ - $ 835,732
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund 193,350 - 398,447 - 591,797
Nonmajor Debt Service Fund 1,136,730 - - - 1,136,730
Nonmajor Capital Projects Fund 201,250 1,185,100 - 96,188 1,482,538
Total $ 2,367,062 § 1,185,100  § 398447 § 96,188 § 4,046,797

The County had no transfers that either do not occur on a regular basis or were inconsistent with the
purpose of the fund making the transfer.

NOTE 10 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at December 31,201 1 consisted of current and delinquent property taxes, special
assessments, accounts, intergovernmental grants and accrued interest on investments. All receivables are
considered collectible in full due to the ability to foreclose for nonpayment of taxes and the stable
condition of State programs. A summary of the principal items of intergovernmental receivables follows:

Amount
Governmental Activities:
Local Government and Local
Government Revenue Assistance $ 1,099,302
Public Assistance for Health & Human Services Programs 18,887,190
Grants and Reimbursements 3,095,905
Homestead and Rollback 1,582,752
Gasoline and Excise Tax 1,150,000
Motor Vehicle License Fees & Permissive Auto Tax 2,100,000
Capital Projects 8,008,417
Total Governmental Activities $ 35,923,566
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NOTE 10 — RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Business-Type Activities:

Capital Construction Grants $ 223,816
Total Business-Type Activities $ 223,816

NOTE 11 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2011 was as follows:

Balance Balance
12/31/10 Additions Deletions 12/31/11
Governmental Activities:
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land $ 7,204,888 $ - $ - $ 7,204,888
Construction in Progress 2,737,873 1,406,618 (1,792,210) 2,352,281

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets 9,942,761 1,406,618 (1,792,210) 9,557,169
Depreciable Capital Assets:

Buildings 30,357,492 - - 30,357,492

Improvements 51,648,763 1,521,181 - 53,169,944

Machinery and Equipment 17,029,544 1,113,942 (596,988) 17,546,498

Infrastructure 95,943,346 1,310,288 - 97,253,634
Depreciable Capital Assets 194,979,145 3,945,411 (596,988) 198,327,568
Less: Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings (20,398,851) (709,142) - (21,107,993)

Improvements (17,254,317) (2,555,430) - (19,809,747)

Machinery and Equipment (12,636,541) (1,140,269) 540,264 (13,236,546)

Infrastructure (66,666,872) (671,552) - (67,338,424)
Accumulated Depreciation (116,956,581) (5,076,393) * 540,264 (121,492,710)
Depreciable Capital Assets, net 78,022,564 (1,130,982) (56,724) 76,834,858

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net $ 87965325 $ 275,636 $ (1,848,934) § 86,392,027

* - Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:
General Government:

Legislative and Executive $ 2,266,774
Judicial 91,154
Public Safety 200,455
Public Works 1,599,117
Health 593,758
Human Services 320,937
Conservation and Recreation 4,198
$ 5,076,393
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NOTE 11 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Business-Type Activities:
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land
Construction in Progress

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets

Depreciable Capital Assets:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure

Depreciable Capital Assets

Less: Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings

Improvements

Machinery and Equipment

Infrastructure
Accumulated Depreciation

Depreciable Capital Assets, net

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, net

Balance Balance

12/31/10 Additions Deletions 12/31/11
$ 1,171,574 $ - $ - $ 1,171,574

814,379 48,883 (863,262) -
1,985,953 48,883 (863,262) 1,171,574
6,522,614 267,833 - 6,790,447
1,453,322 248,738 - 1,702,060
2,271,173 45,283 - 2,316,456
17,498,744 952,158 - 18,450,902
27,145,853 1,514,012 - 29,259,865
(2,990,628) (163,402) - (3,154,030)
(412,698) (80,865) - (493,563)
(1,906,719) (85,524) - (1,992,243)
(7,055,401) (351,215) - (7,406,616)
(12,365,446) (681,006) - (13,046,452)
15,380,407 833,006 - 16,213,413
$ 17,366,360 $ 881,889 $ (863,262) $ 17,384,987

NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT

A. County Risk Sharing Authority, Inc. (CORSA):

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of

assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters.

The County Risk Sharing Authority, Inc. (CORSA) is a risk sharing pool made up of fifty-three counties
in Ohio. CORSA was formed as an Ohio nonprofit corporation for the purpose of establishing the
CORSA Insurance/Self-Insurance Program, a group primary and excess insurance/self-insurance and risk
management program. Member counties agree to jointly participate in coverage of losses and pay all
contributions necessary for the specified insurance coverages provided by CORSA. These coverages
include comprehensive general liability, automobile liability, certain property insurance and public
officials’ errors and omissions liability insurance.
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NOTE 12 — RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

A. County Risk Sharing Authority, Inc. (CORSA): (Continued)

Each member county has one vote ona Il matters requiring a vote, to be cast by a designated
representative. The affairs of the Corporation are managed by an elected board of not more than nine
trustees. Only county commissioners of member counties are eligible to serve on the board. No county
may have more than one representative on the board at any time. Each member county’s control over the
budgeting and financing of CORSA is limited to its voting authority and any representation it may have
on the board of trustees. CORSA has issued certificates of participation in order to provide adequate cash
reserves. The certificates are secured by the member counties’ obligations to make coverage payments to
CORSA. The participating counties have no responsibility for the payment of certificates. The County
does not have an equity interest in CORSA.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverages from coverages in the prior year. In
addition, settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverages in

any of the past three fiscal years.

B. County Employee Benefits Consortium of Ohio, Inc. (CEBCO):

The County participates in the County Employee Benefits Consortium of Ohio, Inc. (CEBCO), an Ohio
not-for-profit corporation, and insurance purchasing pool with membership open to Ohio political
subdivisions, to collectively pool resources to purchase employee benefits. The County pays, on a
monthly basis the annual actuarially determined funding rate. Components of the funding rate include the
claims fund contribution, incurred but not reported claims, a claims contingency reserve fund, as well as
the fixed cost of the consortium.

The business and affairs of the consortium are governed by a board comprised of representatives of
counties that participate in the program. Two thirds of the directors are County Commissioners of the
member Counties and one third are employees of member Counties. Each member of the consortium is
entitled to one vote. At all times one director is required to be a member of the board of directors of the
County Commissioners Association of Ohio and another is required to be a board member of the County
Risk Sharing Authority, Inc.

Upon withdrawal from the Consortium, the County will be responsible for paying the funding rates and
assessments, if any, that was applicable during the term of the agreement and shall remain responsible for

any assessments made by the board for one or more years of the County’s participation in CEBCO.

C. Workers Compensation:

The County has elected to take advantage of the retrospective rating plan for workers’ compensation
offered by the State of Ohio. This plan allows the County to pay a fraction of the premium it would pay as
an experience-rated risk.
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NOTE 12 — RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

C. Workers Compensation: (Continued)

Retrospective rating constitutes a step closer to self-insurance. In the retrospective rating plan, the County
agrees to assume a portion of the risk in return for a possible reduction in premiums. The greater the
percentage of the risk the County assumes, the greater the potential reduction in premiums. If the
County’s loss experience is better than predicted by the experience-rating system, its premium obligation
will be less than what it would have paid under experience rating. If its experience is worse than
predicted, its premium obligation will be more than it would have been assessed under experience rating,
limited to the maximum premium.

The County has assumed the risk for individual claims up to a maximum of $200,000. The County has
also agreed to pay all claims up to a maximum of 200% of what the County would have paid had the
County remained an experience-rated risk. Claims exceeding these limits will be paid by the State. Each
year, the County pays the State a “minimum premium” for retaining the risk of having to pay claims,
which exceed the County’s maximum claim limits. For each year the County elects the retrospective
rating plan for workers’ compensation, liability is attached for ten years.

All claims processing is done by the State. The State initially pays all claims and then bills the County. At
December 31, 2011, a claims liability of $1,800,386 is reported in the government-wide statement of net
assets and represents the liability for unpaid claims costs, including estimates of costs relating to incurred
but not reported claims, based on an estimate provided by the Bureau of Workers’ Compensation. Claims
incurred during the year were $342,164.

NOTE 13 — DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLANS

The County participates in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS). OPERS administers
three separate pension plans as described below:

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) administers three separate pension plans as
described below:

1. The Traditional Pension Plan — a cost sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan.

2. The Member-Directed Plan — a defined contribution plan in which the member invests both
member and employer contributions (employer contributions vest over five years at 20% per
year). Under the Member-Directed Plan, members accumulate retirement assets equal to the value
of member and (vested) employer contributions plus any investment earnings.

3. The Combined Plan — a cost sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. Under
the Combined Plan, OPERS invests employer contributions to provide a formula retirement
benefit similar in nature to the Traditional Pension Plan benefit. Member contributions, the
investment of which is self-directed by the members, accumulate retirement assets in a manner
similar to the Member-Directed Plan.
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NOTE 13 — DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits and annual cost-of-living adjustments
to members of the Traditional Pension and Combined Plans. Members of the Member-Directed Plan do
not qualify for ancillary benefits. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided in Chapter 145 of
the Ohio Revised Code. OPERS issues a stand-alone financial report. Interested parties may obtain a copy
by visiting https://www.opers.org/investments/cafr.shtml, writing to OPERS, 277 E ast Town Street,
Columbus, OH 43215-4642, or calling 614-222-5601 or 1-800-222-7377.

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for member and employer contributions. For 2011,
member and employer contribution rates were consistent across all three plans. While members in the
state and local divisions may participate in all three plans, law enforcement and public safety divisions
exist only within the Traditional Pension Plan. The 2011 member contribution rates were 10.0% of
covered payroll for members in state and local classifications. Public safety and law enforcement
members contributed 11.0% and 11.6%, respectively. The 2011 employer contribution rate for state and
local employers was 14.0% of covered payroll. The law enforcement and public safety division employer
contribution rate was 18.10% of covered payroll. The County’s required contributions for pension
obligations to the plans for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were $6,747,574,
$6,906,845, and $7,438,685, respectively; equal to the required contribution for each of the three years.
Of the amount paid, contributions to the Member-Directed plan for 2011 were $113,993 by the County
and $81,424 made by the plan members and contributions to the Combined Plan for 2011 were $112,494
by the County and $80,354 made by the plan members.

NOTE 14 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

A. Plan Description: Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) administers three separate
pension plans: The Traditional Pension Plan—a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan; the Member-Directed Plan—a defined contribution plan; and the Combined Plan—a cost sharing,
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that has elements of both a defined benefit and defined
contribution plan.

OPERS maintains a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit post-employment healthcare plan,
which includes a medical plan, prescription drug program and Medicare Part B premium reimbursement,
to qualifying members of both the Traditional Pension and the Combined Plans. Members of the
Member-Directed Plan do not qualify for ancillary benefits, including post employment health care
coverage.

In order to qualify for post-retirement health care coverage, age-and-service retirees under the Traditional
Pension and Combined Plans must have 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care
coverage for disability benefit recipients and qualified survivor benefit recipients is available. The health
care coverage provided by OPERS is meets the definition of an Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB)
as described in GASB Statement 45.

The Ohio Revised Code permits, but does not mandate, OPERS to provide OPEB benefits to its eligible

members and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided in Chapter 145 of the
Ohio Revised Code.
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NOTE 14 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

OPERS issues a stand-alone financial report. Interested parties may obtain aco py by visiting
https://www.opers.org/investments/cafr.shtml, writing to OPERS, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, OH
43215-4642, or calling 614-222-5601 or 1-800-222-7377.

B. Funding Policy: The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers
to fund post retirement health care through their contributions to OPERS. A portion of each employer’s
contribution to OPERS is set aside for the funding of post retirement health care benefits.

Employer contribution rates are expressed as a percentage of the covered payroll of active members. In
2011, state and local employers contributed at a rate of 14.00% of covered payroll. And public safety and
law enforcement employers contributed 18.10%. These are the maximum employer contribution rates
permitted by the Ohio Revised Code. Active members do not make contributions to the OPEB Plan.

OPERS’ Post Employment Health Care plan was established under, and is administrated in accordance
with, Internal Revenue Code 401(h). Each year, the OPERS Board of Trustees determines the portion of
the employer contribution rate that will be set aside for funding of post employment health care benefits.
The portion of employer contributions allocated to health care for members in the Traditional Plan was
4.0% during calendar year 2011. The portion of employer contributions allocated to health care for
members in the Combined Plan was 6.05% during calendar year 2011. The portion of employer
contributions allocated to health care for the calendar year beginning January 1, 2012 remained the same,
but they are subject to change based on Board action. Employers will be notified if the portion allocated
to health care changes during calendar year 2012 The OPERS Board of Trustees is also authorized to
establish rules for the retiree, or their surviving beneficiaries, to pay a portion of the health care benefits
provided. Payment amounts vary depending on the number of covered dependents and the coverage
selected.

The County's contributions for health care to the OPERS for the years ending December 31, 2011, 2010,
and 2009 were $1,847,862, $2,426,583 and $3,095,387, respectively, which were equal to the required
contributions for each year.

C. OPERS Retirement Board Implements its Healthcare Preservation Plan: The Health Care
Preservation Plan (HCPP) adopted by the OPERS Board of Trustees on September 9, 2004, was effective
January 1,2007. M ember and employer contribution rates for state and local employers increased on
January 1 of each year from 2006 to 2008. Rates for law and public safety employers increased over a six
year period beginning on January 1, 2006, with a final rate increase on January 1,2011. These rate
increases allowed additional funds to be allocated to the health care plan.

NOTE 15-OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

County employees may participate in two deferred compensation plans; the Ohio Public Employees
Deferred Compensation Program and the County Commissioners Association of Ohio Deferred
Compensation Plan. These plans are created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.
Participation is on a voluntary payroll deduction basis. The plans permit deferral of compensation until
future years. The deferred pay and income earned on it is not subject to taxation until the employee
receives it. According to the plans, the deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.
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NOTE 16 —NOTE TRANSACTIONS

The Ohio Revised Code provides that notes including renewal notes issued in anticipation of the issuance
of general obligation bonds may be issued and outstanding from time to time up to a maximum period of
20 years from the date of issuance of the original notes. Bond anticipation notes may be retired at
maturity from the proceeds of the sale of renewal notes or of the bonds anticipated by the notes, or from
available funds of the County or a combination of these sources. The County is retiring its notes by the
issuance of one year renewal notes with a portion of the principal being retired in accordance with the
above provisions. On June 1, 2011, the County issued Tax Anticipation Notes for $2,500,000. Note
proceeds were used to pay operating expenditures prior to the new Children’s Services levy approved by
the voters of the County on November 2, 2010. The notes will be paid in December 2012.

Amount Amount
Interest Outstanding Outstanding
Rate 12/31/10 Additions Retirements 12/31/11
Governmental Activities:
Various Purpose Notes - Series 2012 1.00% $ - $ 715,000 $ - $ 715,000
Tax Anticipation Note - Series 2011 1.625% - 2,500,000 - 2,500,000
Various Purpose Notes - Series 2011 1.25% 500,000 - 500,000 -
Total Governmental Activities 500,000 3,215,000 500,000 3,215,000
Business-Type Activities:
Various Purpose Notes - Series 2012 1.00% - 2,170,000 - 2,170,000
Various Purpose Notes - Series 2011 1.25% 770,000 - 770,000 -
Total Business-Type Activities 770,000 2,170,000 770,000 2,170,000

$ 1,270,000 $ 5,385000 $ 1,270,000 $ 5,385,000

NOTE 17— LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

A schedule of changes in long-term obligations of the County during 2011 was as follows:

Amount Amount Amounts
Outstanding Outstanding Due Within
12/31/10 Additions Retirements 12/31/11 One Year
Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds:
Human Service Building Refunding $ 2,230,000 $ - $ 235,000 $ 1,995,000 $ 215,000
2.25% t0 5.00% - 2009
Various Purpose Bonds 4,000,000 - 355,000 3,645,000 360,000
3.75% t0 5.00% - 2007
Various Purpose Refunding 9,530,000 - 735,000 8,795,000 760,000
Total General Obligation Bonds 15,760,000 - 1,325,000 14,435,000 1,335,000
Compensated Absences 4,580,513 4,129,650 4,580,513 4,129,650 437,167
Accrued Bond Premium 226,401 - 20,256 206,145 20,256
Less: Deferred Amounts on Refunding (137,706) - (28,991) (108,715) (28,991)
Total Governmental Activities 20,429,208 4,129,650 5,896,778 18,662,080 1,763,432
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

NOTE 17— LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Business-Type Activities:
General Obligation Bonds:

Limecrest Sewer Construction

2.25% to 5.00% - 2009
Various Purpose Bonds

1.50% to 4.00% - 2003
Medway Refunding

3.75% to 5.00% - 2007
Various Purpose Refunding

Total General Obligation Bonds

Ohio Public Works Commission Loans:
Northridge Water Tank
Southwest Treatment Plant
Southwest Treatment Plant II
West Enon Sanitary Sewer
Green Meadows Water Tank
Southwest Equipment Replacement
Lawrenceville and Northridge Water Imp
Ohio Water Development Authority Loans:
Raymond Drive Lift Station
Garden Acres Sewer Rehab
Park Layne Sewer Rehab
Northridge Manhole Rehab
Compensated Absences
Accrued Bond Premium
Less: Deferred Amounts
on Refunding

Total Business-Type Activities

General Obligation Bonds:

Amount Amount Amounts
Outstanding Outstanding Due Within
12/31/10 Additions Retirements 12/31/11 One Year
$ 368,500 $ - $ 11,100 $ 357,400 $ 11,700

1,330,000 - 155,000 1,175,000 170,000

870,000 - 205,000 665,000 215,000
1,255,000 - 55,000 1,200,000 55,000
3,823,500 - 426,100 3,397,400 451,700
167,200 - 7,600 159,600 15,200
42,525 - 6,075 36,450 12,150
44,975 - 6,425 38,550 12,850
321,750 - 12,375 309,375 24,750
145,000 - 5,000 140,000 10,000
157,234 - 5,823 151,411 11,647
107,000 - 86,702 20,298 1,015
83,802 - 8,445 75,357 9,420
18,400 19,735 4,508 33,627 4,508
47,398 5,109 5,872 46,635 5,872
21,982 52,935 7,618 67,299 7,618
146,056 141,218 146,056 141,218 11,225
48,158 - 6,155 42,003 6,121
(13,628) - (3,634) (9,994) (3,634)
5,161,352 218,997 731,120 4,649,229 580,442
$ 25,590,560 $ 4,348,647 $ 6,627,898 $ 23,311,309 $ 2,343,874

All general obligation bonds are supported by the full faith and credit of the County. General obligation
bonds in the governmental activities will be paid from a .1 mill un-voted property tax and rental charges
to the County departments and other tenants who occupy the facilities. These bonds are being repaid from
the applicable debt service funds with general governmental revenue sources.
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NOTE 17 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Advanced Refunding: On September 17, 2010, the County issued $2,455,000 in General Obligation
(Limited Tax) Refunding Bonds with interest rates ranging from 0.85 to 4.00%. The purpose of this issue
was to advance refund the County’s outstanding (i) Human Services Refunding and Improvements
Bonds, Series 2002, w hich were issued for the purpose of making building improvements for the
County’s Human Services Complex and appurtenances thereto and (ii) Human Services Refunding and
Improvements Bonds, Series 2002B, which were issued for the purposes of refunding at a lower cost (i)
the entire $1,975,000 principal amount of the County’s Human Services Building Improvement Bonds ,
Series 1992, and (ii) the entire $1,910,00 principal amount of the County’s Human Services Building
Improvements Bonds, Series 1996.

On the date of refunding, the refunded portion of the Human Services Refunding and Improvements
Bonds, Series 2002 had an outstanding principal balance and net carrying value of $1,780,000 and the
Human Services Refunding and Improvements Bonds, Series 2002B had an outstanding balance of
$450,000. The proceeds of the new issue were used to fund cash and investments in an irrevocable trust
account with an escrow agent, which is pledged solely to the payment of principal and interest on the
defeased bond. As a result of this advance refunding, the County increased its total debt service over the
next twenty-one years by $850,565 and incurred an economic loss (the difference between the present
values of the debt service payments on the old and the new debt) of $155,034.

The following is a summary of the County’s future annual debt service requirements for general
obligation bonds:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 $ 1335000 § 579,578 § 451,700 § 132,956
2013 1,330,000 539,645 427,300 118,421
2014 1,110,000 497,633 437,900 103,994
2015 1,000,000 459,920 213,500 88,444
2016 1,035,000 423,145 224,200 81,094
2017-2021 5,445,000 1,452,531 877,600 296,425
2022-2026 2,970,000 320,144 560,400 125,106
2027-2030 210,000 23,310 204,800 17,800

Total $ 14,435,000 $ 4295906 § 3,397,400 § 964,240

Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) Loans:

The County entered into various agreements with the Ohio Public Works Commission to borrow funds
interest free for the acquisition and construction of sewer and water facilities related to the business-type
activities. The original amount of OPWC loans obtained in prior years was $1,697,000. The loans are
being retired from the Sewer and Water Funds.
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NOTE 17 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) Loans: (Continued)

The following is a summary of the County’s future annual debt service requirements for the Ohio Public
Works Commission loans:

Principal

2012 $ 87,612
2013 87,612
2014 87,612
2015 62,612
2016 62,612
2017-2021 313,060
2022-2026 149,491
2027-2031 5,073
§ 855,684

Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA) Loans:

During 2010 and 2011, the County borrowed funds from the Ohio Water Development Authority
(OWDA) for the acquisition and construction of water and sewer facilities related to business-type
activities. The original amount of OWDA loans obtained was $268,603, all of which relates to business-
type activities.

The total amount owed as of December 31 on these four projects, $222,918, is reported as OWDA Loan
Payable on the proprietary fund level statements and as a Non-current Liability Due in More Than One
Year on the entity wide statements.

At December 31, 2011, the three of the four projects remained in process. Once the remaining projects are
completed, an amortization schedule will be provided by OWDA and the County will present the
amortization schedule at that time. The future debt payments of the completed project are as follows:

OWDA

Principal
2012 $ 4,710
2013 9,420
2014 9,420
2015 9,420
2016 9,420
2017-2020 32,967
$ 75,357
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NOTE 17 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Enterprise Debt:

The enterprise general obligation bonds, Issue II loans and the Ohio Public Works Commission loans are
supported by the revenues of the sewer and water enterprise funds, and are repaid from the respective
funds.

Conduit Debt:

From time to time, the County has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds, Healthcare Facilities Revenue
Bonds, and Multifamily Housing Taxable Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector
entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the
private interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payments
received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired
facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the County, the State
nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly,
the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

At December 31, 2011, there were 64 series of Industrial Revenue Bonds, Mortgage Revenue Bonds,
Healthcare Facilities Revenue Bonds, and Multifamily Housing Taxable Revenue Bonds outstanding. The
aggregate principal amount payable for the 14 series issued after July 1, 1995 was $1 billion. The
aggregate principal amount payable for the 48 series issued prior to July 1, 1995, could not be
determined; however, their original issue amounts totaled $78.505 million.

The County entered an agreement with the Ohio Department of Transportation for a loan in the amount of
$2,020,000 through the State Infrastructure Bank. The loan is for the benefit of the Clark County-
Springfield Transportation Coordinating Committee (TCC). TCC has assigned its allocation of federal aid
transportation funds to repay the loan. The County would be liable for this debt in the event of default.

The County is not aware of and has not been notified of any condition of default under those bonds or the
related financing documents.

The Ohio Revised Code provides that the net general obligation debt of the County, exclusive of certain
exempt debt, issued without a vote of the electors shall never exceed one percent of the total assessed
valuation of the County. The Code further provides that the total voted and un-voted net debt of the
County less the same exempt debt shall never exceed a sum equal to three percent of the first
$100,000,000 of the assessed valuation, plus one and one-half percent of such valuation in excess of
$100,000,000 and not in excess of $300,000,000, plus two and one-half percent of such valuation in
excess of $300,000,000. The effects of the debt limitations described above at December 31, 2011 are an
overall debt margin of $45,804,331 and a limit on un-voted debt margin of $12,728,502.
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NOTE 18 — JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

Eastern Miami Valley Alcohol Drug Addiction and Mental Health Board — Clark County is a
participant in the Eastern Miami Valley ADAMH, which are a joint county Alcohol, Drug Addiction and
Mental Health Board. The Organization was formed for the purpose of providing high quality and cost-
effective alcohol and drug addiction and mental health services to the residents of Greene, Madison and
Clark Counties. The governing board consists of eighteen members, five of which are appointed by the
Clark County Commissioners. The Clark County Auditor serves as the fiscal agent for the Board.
Financial information can be obtained by writing Eastern Miami Valley ADAMH at 1055 E. High Street,
Springfield, Ohio 45505.

West Central Ohio Port Authority — The West Central Ohio Port Authority was established under
Section 4582.21 of the Ohio Revised Code. Under the Revised Code, the Port Authority is a legally
separate entity. The Board of the Authority is comprised of seven members: 2 members from Champaign
County, 3 from Clark County, and 2 from Fayette County. The members are appointed by the County
Commissioners of each respective county. Clark County does not approve its budget, nor is it responsible
for the Authority’s debt. During 2011, the County did not contribute any money to the Authority.

Springfield Metropolitan Housing Authority — The Springfield Metropolitan Housing Authority was
established under Section of 3735 of the Ohio Revised Code. The Board is comprised of five members:
one appointed by the Clark County Probate Court, one appointed by the Clark County Court of Common
Pleas, one appointed by the Clark County Commissioners, and two appointed by the City of Springfield
Commissioners.

Clark County cannot significantly influence the Authority’s operations, the board has sole budgetary
authority, and the County is not legally or morally obligated for the Authority’s debt. During 2011, Clark
County did not contribute any money to the Springfield Metropolitan Housing Authority.

West Central Community Correction Facility — The West Central Community Correction Facility was
established as a legally separate district under Section 2301.51 of the Ohio Revised Code to provide a
district community-based correctional facility and program for the use of the member courts of common
pleas. Member courts are from the counties of Clark, Champaign, Delaware, Logan, Madison, Marion,
Morrow and Union. The Judicial Corrections Board is comprised of 11 judges, one each from the member
counties and, based upon population, two from Clark, Delaware, and Marion County. Funds for the
construction and operation are received through grant revenue from the State of Ohio. Clark County,
having the largest population, serves as fiscal agent for the facility.

NOTE 19 - RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

Clark County Public Library — Clark County Public Library is a related Organization. The County
appoints the governing board of the Library; however, the County cannot influence the Library’s
operations nor does the Library represent a potential financial benefit or burden on the County. The
County serves in a ministerial capacity as taxing authority for the Library. Once the Library Board
determines to present a levy to the voters, including the determination of its rate and duration, the County
must place the levy onthe ballot. The Library determines its own budget. The Library received
$3,908,596 in library and local government money passed thru the County during 2011.
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NOTE 19 - RELATED ORGANIZATIONS (Continued)

National Trail Parks and Recreation District — The National Trail Parks and Recreation District
(NTPRD) is a related Organization and operated in accordance with Section 755 of the Ohio Revised
Code. NRPRD is directed by a seven member Board of Trustees; four are appointed by the City of
Springfield, two by the Clark County Board of County Commissioners and the seventh member to be
selected by the first six. During 2011, the County did not contribute any funds to the NTPRD.

Clark County Park District — The Clark County Park District is a related Organization established and
run under Section 1545.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. The three Park District Commissioners are
appointed by the Probate Judge of the County, but the County’s accountability does not extend beyond
making the appointments. The Park District received $68,244 in local government monies passed thru the
County during 2011.

NOTE 20 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The County has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit
by the grantor agencies or their designee. These audits could lead to a request for reimbursement to the
grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. Based on prior experience, the
County Commissioners believe such disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.

Several claims and lawsuits are pending against the County. In the opinion of the County Prosecuting
Attorney, any potential liability would not have a material effect on the basic financial statements.

NOTE 21 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On May 8§, 2012,t he County Commissioners approved a motion to authorize the issuance and sale of
$2,640,000 of notes in anticipation of the issuance of bonds for the purpose of (i) installing a new sanitary
sewer in the West Enon Estates Subdivision located within the County, by constructing gravity sewers,
force mains, manholes and a lift station, replacing pavement, and restoring underground and surface areas
($315,000 of the Notes), (ii) constructing a bypass road connecting U.S. Route 40 and State Route 54,
including grading, draining, paving and lighting ($50,000 of the Notes), (iii) improving Clark County
General Sewer District by constructing water lines, hydrants and valves in the Lawrenceville Water
District and constructing improvements to the Northridge Booster Water Station ($160,000 of the Notes),
(iv) replacing, renovating and otherwise improving the roofs of the County Agricultural and
Administration Buildings at the Springview Government Center ($175,000 of the Notes), (v) acquiring a
building to house functions of the County Department of Utilities ($120,000 of the Notes), (vi) improving
Clark County General Sewer District by constructing improvements to the Southwest Regional
Wastewater Treatment Plant including installation of a rotary screw press and a pre-engineered metal
structure to house the same and replacement of pumps and digester air diffusers ($1,490,000 of the
Notes), (vii)acquiring vehicles for use by the County Sheriff’s Department ($180,000 of the Notes), (viii)
improving County buildings and related facilities by replacing, renovating and otherwise improving the
roof of the County Maintenance Building and acquiring and installing a pre-engineered metal structure to
house equipment of the County Emergency Management Agency ($85,000 of the Note), and (ix)
acquiring magnetometers to provide security at County facilities ($65,000 of the Notes).

NOTE 22 — CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

At December 31, 2011, the County had no significant construction commitments.

-56-



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

-57-



CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis

General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 3,570,058 3,570,058 3,335,928 $ (234,130)
Permissive Sales Tax 19,890,000 19,890,000 20,154,822 264,822
Intergovernmental 5,887,965 6,082,089 5,729,850 (352,239)
Charges for Services 4,592,117 4,673,135 4,850,069 176,934
Licenses and Permits 1,100 1,100 3,070 1,970
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures 745,000 745,000 651,667 (93,333)
Investment Income 758,225 758,225 776,197 17,972
Other Revenue 97,000 121,716 380,192 258,476
Total Revenues 35,541,465 35,841,323 35,881,795 40,472
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive 5,364,179 5,292,293 4,584,788 707,505
Judicial 9,618,820 9,723,820 9,074,939 648,881
Public Safety 14,992,449 15,289,281 14,930,003 359,278
Public Works 4,657,919 4,528,711 3,790,499 738,212
Health 288,253 312,969 311,687 1,282
Human Services 888,060 888,580 846,039 42,541
Conservation and Recreation 432,723 432,723 432,523 200
Total Expenditures 36,242,403 36,468,377 33,970,478 2,497,899
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (700,938) (627,054) 1,911,317 2,538,371
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets - - 6,980 6,980
Transfers In 262,500 362,500 388,429 25,929
Advances Out - (11,000) (11,000) -
Transfers Out (3,076,201) (3,014,301) (2,797,734) 216,567
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,813,701) (2,662,801) (2,413,325) 249,476
Net Change in Fund Balance (3,514,639) (3,289,855) (502,008) 2,787,847
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 4,399,855 4,399,855 4,399,855 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 1,849,565 1,849,565 1,849,565 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 2,734,781 2,959,565 5,747,412 2,787,847

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Job & Family Services Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 12,574,035 $ 13,070,061 $ 12,321,029 $ (749,032)
Charges for Services 6,294,716 6,294,716 3,608,350 (2,686,366)
Total Revenues 18,868,751 19,364,777 15,929,379 (3,435,398)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Human Services 19,067,721 18,738,414 17,756,076 982,338
Total Expenditures 19,067,721 18,738,414 17,756,076 982,338
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (198,970) 626,363 (1,826,697) (2,453,060)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Advances In 1,021,083 1,021,083 835,732 (185,351)
Transfers In 500,000 500,000 - (500,000)
Advances Out (500,000) (71,256) - 71,256
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,021,083 1,449,827 835,732 (614,095)
Net Change in Fund Balance 822,113 2,076,190 (990,965) (3,067,155)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 238,125 238,125 238,125 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 1,556,347 1,556,347 1,556,347 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 2,616,585 $ 3,870,662 $ 803,507 $  (3,067,155)

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis

Department of Developmental Disabilities Special Revenue Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

REVENUES:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Other Revenue

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Health

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance, End of Year

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
$ 10,403,765 $ 10,403,765 $ 9,725,540 $ (678,225)
12,221,790 12,221,790 14,009,361 1,787,571
359,000 359,000 334,696 (24,304)
- - 141 141
31,500 31,500 96,600 65,100
23,016,055 23,016,055 24,166,338 1,150,283
28,413,384 27,779,894 26,505,190 1,274,704
28,413,384 27,779,894 26,505,190 1,274,704
(5,397,329) (4,763,839) (2,338,852) 2,424,987
4,180,300 4,200,300 4,200,300 -
(4,839,400) (5,546,400) (5,385,400) 161,000
(659,100) (1,346,100) (1,185,100) 161,000
(6,056,429) (6,109,939) (3,523,952) 2,585,987
10,622,359 10,622,359 10,622,359 -
2,534,184 2,534,184 2,534,184 -
$ 7,100,114 $ 7,046,604 $ 9,632,591 $ 2,585,987

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Children's Service Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 2,399,795 $ 2,399,795 $ 2,280,820 $ (118,975)
Intergovernmental 6,743,025 6,743,025 6,703,384 (39,641)
Charges for Services 740,003 740,003 456,948 (283,055)
Other Revenue 641,573 641,573 304,313 (337,260)
Total Revenues 10,524,396 10,524,396 9,745,465 (778,931)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Human Services 13,712,707 13,139,390 9,995,904 3,143,486
Total Expenditures 13,712,707 13,139,390 9,995,904 3,143,486
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (3,188,311) (2,614,994) (250,439) 2,364,555
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Note Proceeds 2,395,000 2,395,000 2,505,900 110,900
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,395,000 2,395,000 2,505,900 110,900
Net Change in Fund Balance (793,311) (219,994) 2,255,461 2,475,455
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 40,585 40,585 40,585 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 847,602 847,602 847,602 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 94,876 $ 668,193 $ 3,143,648 $ 2,475,455

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgetary Process

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and entails the preparation
of budgetary documents within an established timetable. The major documents prepared are the tax
budget, the certificate of estimated resources and the appropriations resolution, all of which are prepared
on the budgetary basis of accounting. The certificate of estimated resources and the appropriations
resolution are subject to amendment throughout the year with the legal restriction that appropriations
cannot exceed estimated resources, as certified. The County is required by state law to adopt annual
budgets for all funds, except fiduciary funds specifically exempted by statute. The County does not adopt
an annual budget for the Mercy Unit Bond Retirement Debt Service Fund. This fund is only used to
maintain funds for matured interest payable. Listed below are the major steps of the budget preparation
process:

Tax Budget:

A budget of estimated revenues and expenditures is submitted to the County Auditor, as Secretary of
the County Budget Commission, by July 20 of each year, for the period January 1 to December 31 of
the following year. The express purpose of this budget document is to reflect the need for existing (or
increased) tax rates.

Estimated Resources:

The County Budget Commission reviews estimated revenues and determines if the budget
substantiates a need to levy all or part of previously authorized taxes. The Commission certifies its
actions to the County by September 1. As part of this certification, the County receives the official
certificate of estimated resources, which states the estimated fund balance and projected revenue of
each fund. Prior to December 31, the County must revise its budget so that the total contemplated
expenditures from any fund during the ensuing fiscal year will not exceed the amount available as
stated in the certificate of estimated resources. The revised budget then serves as the basis for the
annual appropriation measure. On or about January 1, the certificate of estimated resources is
amended to include any unencumbered balances from the preceding year. The certificate may be
amended further during the year if the County Auditor determines, and the Budget Commission
agrees, that an estimate needs to be either increased or decreased. The amounts reported on the
budgetary statement reflect the amounts in the final amended official certificate of estimated
resources issued during 2011.

Appropriations:

A temporary appropriation resolution to control expenditures may be passed on or around January 1
of each year for the period January 1 to March 31. An annual appropriation resolution must be passed
by April 1 of each year for the period January 1 to December 31. The appropriation resolution may be
amended during the year, as new information becomes available, provided that total fund
appropriations do not exceed current estimated resources, as certified.

The County Commissioners legally enacted several supplemental appropriation resolutions during the

year. The budget figures that appear in the statements of budgetary comparisons represent the final
appropriation amounts, including all amendments and modifications.
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Budgeted Level of Expenditures:

Administrative control is maintained through the establishment of detailed line-item budgets.
Appropriated funds may not be expended for purposes other than those designated in the
appropriation resolution without authority from the Commissioners. Expenditures/expenses plus
encumbrances may not legally exceed appropriations at the level of appropriation. Commissioners’
appropriations are made to fund department and object level (i.e., personnel & fringes, operating
expenses, capital asset expense, debt service, etc.) The allocation of appropriations among
departments and objects within a fund may be modified during the year only by a resolution of the
Commissioners.

Encumbrances:

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders,
contracts) outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be reappropriated and honored during the

subsequent year.

Lapsing of Appropriations:

At the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of each appropriation reverts to the respective
fund from which it was appropriated and becomes subject to future appropriations. The encumbered
appropriation balance is carried forward to the succeeding calendar year and is not reappropriated.

While reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund balance/retained earnings on
the basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law is
based upon accounting for certain transactions on ab asis of cash receipts, disbursements, and
encumbrances.

The Combined Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-
GAAP Basis) and Actual - All Governmental Fund Types is presented on the budgetary basis to provide a
meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget. The major differences between the budget basis
and the GAAP basis are that:

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when susceptible to
accrual (GAAP basis).

2. Expenditures/expenses are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when the
liability is incurred (GAAP basis).

3. Outstanding year-end encumbrances are treated as expenditures/expenses (budget basis)
rather than as a reservation of fund balance for governmental fund-types (GAAP basis).

Material encumbrances are disclosed in the notes for proprietary fund types (GAAP basis).

4. Proceeds from and principal payments on s hort-term note obligations are reported on the
operating statement (budget basis) rather than as balance sheet transactions (GAAP basis).
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5. State statute requires short-term note debt to be repaid from the debt service fund (budget
basis) as opposed to the fund that received the proceeds (GAAP basis). Debt service fund
resources used to pay both principal and interest have been allocated accordingly.

6. Revenues and expenditures were not presented for non-budgeted funds (budget basis) but
were recorded on the operating statement (GAAP basis).

The adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations for the year on the GAAP basis to the
budget basis are as follows:

Net Change in Fund Balances

Department of
Job & Family Developmental Children's
General Services Disabilities Services
Fund Fund Fund Fund
GAAP Basis $ 2,210,208 $ 666,426 $ 362,702 $ 328,673
Revenue Accruals (529,085) 247,596 (61,738) 65,476
Expenditure Accruals (529,269) (297,100) (2,240,259) 192,326
Other Financing Sources/Uses (53,243) - - 2,505,900
Encumbrances (1,358,696) (1,607,887) (1,584,657) (836,914)
Funds Budgeted as Special Revenue (241,923) - - -
Budget Basis $ (502,008) $ (990,965) $ (3,523,952) § 2,255,461
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds — Fund Descriptions

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other
than amounts relating to expendable trusts or for major capital projects) that are legally restricted
to expenditures for specified purposes.

Child Support Enforcement Agency Fund — To maintain and account for the revenues
and expenditures necessary to support the Child Support programs administered by Clark
County.

Real Estate Assessment Fund — To maintain and account for revenue received from fees
charged for the collection and distribution of tax revenue and expenditures necessary for
appraisal functions.

Engineer Fund — To maintain and account for intergovernmental revenue received from
the State of Ohio and other sources and account for expenditures made to maintain roads
and bridges within the County by the Clark County Engineer.

Waste Management Fund — To maintain and account for fees received for utilizing
county waste facilities and expenditures made to support the programs carried out by the
Solid Waste Disposal Department.

Dog and Kennel Fund — To maintain and account for revenues from the sales of dog
licenses, adoption fees and fines imposed and to maintain and account for expenditures
necessary to maintain the animal shelter.

DRETAC Fund — To maintain and account for revenue received from the collection of
delinquent taxes — real and personal — to be utilized for further expenses incurred in the
collection of delinquent taxes.

GIS Mapping Fund — To maintain and account for fees generated by the addition of
$1.00 per $1,000 conveyance fee and the expenditures associated with the county map
room.

Commissioners Fund — To maintain and account for the revenues and expenditures
necessary to support specific programs and projects administered by the Clark County
Commissioners.

Treasurer’s Fund — To maintain and account for revenues maintained by the County
Treasurer. These includes monies received from the collection of delinquent taxes — real
and personal —and interest revenue from the prepayment of taxes program.

Community Development Fund — To maintain and account for the revenues and
expenditures necessary to support specific programs and projects for the economic
development of Clark County administered by the Clark County Community
Development Department.

Prosecuting Attorney Fund — To maintain and account for the revenues and
expenditures necessary to support specific grant programs and projects administered by
the Clark County Prosecuting Attorney.

(Continued)
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds — Fund Descriptions
(Continued)

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

Sheriff Fund — To maintain and account for revenue received from various sources for
specific purposes within the Clark County Sheriff’s department.

Common Pleas Court Fund — To maintain and account for revenue received from
various sources for operations of the Clark County Common Pleas Court system.

Domestic Relations Court Fund — To maintain and account for revenue received from
various sources for specific purposes at the Domestic Relations Court.

Probate Court Fund — To maintain and account for revenue received from various
sources for specific purposes at the Probate Court.

Juvenile Court Fund — To maintain and account for revenue received from various
sources for specific purposes at the Juvenile Court.

Clerk of Courts Fund — To maintain and account for revenue received from various
sources for specific purposes at the Clerk of Courts.

Board of Elections Fund — To maintain and account for revenue received from various
sources for specific purposes at the Clark County Board of Elections.

Recorder Fund — To maintain and account for fees charged to record documents used in
purchasing necessary equipment for the Recorder’s Office.

FEMA Fund — To maintain and account for the proceeds of grant revenues for the
reimbursement of expenses related to disasters reimbursed by the Federal Government.

Emergency Management Fund — To maintain and account for revenue received from
various sources for specific purposes of the Emergency Management Agency of Clark

County.

Veteran's Memorial Trust Fund — To maintain and account for funds donated to
construct a Veteran’s Memorial in Veteran’s Park.

Ditch Maintenance Fund — To maintain and account for the proceeds of assessments
placed upon properties located within Clark County and expenditures made to maintain

such ditches throughout the year.

Law Library Fund — To maintain and account for revenue received from various
sources for specific purposes of the Clark County Law Library.

ARRA Fund — To maintain and account for revenue received by the County from the
federal government under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

(Continued)
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds — Fund Descriptions
(Continued)

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds are used to account for retirement of the County’s general obligation bonds.

General Bond Retirement Fund — To maintain and account for payment of principal
and interest on debt for certain bonds of the County.

Mercy Unit Bond Retirement Fund — To maintain and account for payment of principal
and interest relating to construction and rehabilitation at Mercy Hospital.

Human Services Bond Retirement Fund — To maintain and account for payment of
principal and interest relating to construction and rehabilitation of the Human Services
Building.

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the financial resources used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary or trust funds.

Permanent Improvement Fund — To account for the various construction projects throughout
the County.

DoDD Capital Projects Fund — To maintain and account for the financial resources for
capital projects completed by the Board of Developmental Disabilities.

Dayton-Springfield/Old Mill Road Fund — To maintain and account for the financial
resources for the replacement of the Dayton-Springfield/Old Mill Road project.

Issue I I/OPWC Capital Projects Fund — To maintain and account for Issue IT Grant
funds as well as other Grant Funds used for the purpose of supplementing local funding

for improvements to roads and structures within Clark County.

Guardrail Project Fund — To maintain and account for the financial resources for the
annual guardrail projects of the County.

South Vienna Development Fund — To maintain and account for the financial resources
related to the economic development project in the Village of South Vienna.

County Resurfacing Fund — To maintain and account for the financial resources for the
County’s annual road resurfacing projects.

Veteran's Park Renovation Fund — To maintain and account for the financial resources
received for the renovation of Veteran’s Park.

Lower Valley Widening Fund — To maintain and account for the financial resources
related to the Lower Valley Pike widening road project.

(Continued)
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds — Fund Descriptions
(Continued)

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

UV/CL Intersection Improvement Fund — To maintain and account for the financial
resources for the improvement of the intersection of County Line Road and Upper Valley

Pike.

Ditch Construction Funds — To maintain and account for revenues received trough
property assessment to landowners benefiting from ditch construction and for the
payment of expenses incurred in the construction process.

NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS

Permanent Funds are used to account for the financial resources that are legally restricted to the
extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the County’s
programs, that is, for the benefits of the County or its citizenry.

Chase Stewart Blind Relief Fund — To maintain and account for the expenditure of
monies by the Soldiers Relief Commission for Veterans needing assistance.

Chase Stewart Soldier’s Relief Fund — To maintain and account for the expenditure of
monies by the Soldiers Relief Commission for Veterans needing assistance.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combined Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2011

ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments
Pooled Cash and Investments
in Segregated Accounts
Pooled Cash and Investments
with Fiscal Agent
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Special Assessments
Accrued Interest
Due from Other Governments
Due from Other Funds
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Prepaid Expenses

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable
Retainage Payable
Accrued Wages and Benefits
Due to Other Governments
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Matured Interest Payable
Notes Payable

Total Liabilities
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable
Restricted

Unassigned (Deficit)

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities & Fund Balances

Total

Special Debt Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Service Projects Permanent Governmental

Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds
$ 10,842,459 $ 13,590 830,782 $ 119,739 $ 11,806,570
164,202 - - - 164,202
5,833 366 - - 6,199
2,197,708 - - - 2,197,708
312,975 - - - 312,975
196,746 - - - 196,746
- - - 236 236
8,119,198 - 8,008,417 - 16,127,615
27,830 - - - 27,830
148,156 - - - 148,156
24,504 - - - 24,504
$ 22,039,611 $ 13,956 8,839,199 $ 119,975 $ 31,012,741
$ 849,790 $ - - $ 905 $ 850,695
- - 42,303 - 42,303
5,833 - - - 5,833
288,417 - - - 288,417
11,777 - - - 11,777
3,000 11,000 300,000 - 314,000
8,945,785 - 8,008,417 - 16,954,202
- 366 - - 366
- - 715,000 - 715,000
10,104,602 11,366 9,065,720 905 19,182,593
172,660 - - 74,787 247,447
11,762,903 13,025 284,773 44,283 12,104,984
(554) (10,435) (511,294) - (522,283)
11,935,009 2,590 (226,521) 119,070 11,830,148
$ 22,039,611 $ 13,956 8,839,199 $ 119,975 $ 31,012,741
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
December 31, 2011

Child Support
Enforcement Real Estate
Agency Assessment Engineer
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 470,641 2,626,460 $ 2,585,063
Pooled Cash and Investments
in Segregated Accounts 4,943 - -
Pooled Cash and Investments
with Fiscal Agent - - -
Receivables:
Taxes - - -
Accounts 46,017 - 110,102
Special Assessments - - -
Due from Other Governments 2,062,747 - 3,411,592
Due from Other Funds - - -
Materials and Supplies Inventory - - 148,156
Prepaid Expenses 8,022 282 -
Total Assets $ 2,592,370 2,626,742 $ 6,254,913
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $ 241,740 8,159 $ 185,866
Retainage Payable - - -
Accrued Wages and Benefits 88,382 9,199 108,431
Due to Other Governments - - -
Due to Other Funds - - -
Deferred Revenue 1,632,916 - 2,442 844
Total Liabilities 1,963,038 17,358 2,737,141
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable 8,022 282 148,156
Restricted 621,310 2,609,102 3,369,616
Unassigned - - -
Total Fund Balances 629,332 2,609,384 3,517,772
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2,592,370 2,626,742 $ 6,254,913
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Waste Dog and
Management Kennel DRETAC GIS Mapping Commissioners Treasurer's
$ 451,459 226,013 $ 176,353 216,825 $ 19,299 $ 366,534
- - - - 2,197,708 -
67,141 17,030 1,466 1,387 1,787 -
31,250 - - - 169,675 -
1,633 - 281 54 11,465 817
$ 551,483 243,043 $ 178,100 218,266 $ 2,399,934 $ 367,351
$ 15,563 - $ - 5,600 $ 2,236 $ 199
7,189 3,103 6,566 1,732 - 2,577
31,250 - - - 2,367,383 -
54,002 3,103 6,566 7,332 2,369,619 2,776
1,633 - 281 54 11,465 817
495,848 239,940 171,253 210,880 18,850 363,758
497,481 239,940 171,534 210,934 30,315 364,575
$ 551,483 243,043 $ 178,100 218,266 $ 2,399,934 $ 367,351
(Continued)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Community Prosecuting
Development Attorney Sheriff
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 134,469 $ 194,978 $ 187,586
Pooled Cash and Investments
in Segregated Accounts - 159,259 -
Pooled Cash and Investments
with Fiscal Agent 5,833 - -
Receivables:
Taxes - - -
Accounts - 235 4,592
Special Assessments - - -
Due from Other Governments 356,150 283,962 64,191
Due from Other Funds 3,000 - 13,830
Materials and Supplies Inventory - - -
Prepaid Expenses 49 205 325
Total Assets $ 499,501 $ 638,639 $ 270,524
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $ 56,551 $ 22,103 $ 18,860
Retainage Payable 5,833 - -
Accrued Wages and Benefits 611 7,852 4,823
Due to Other Governments - - -
Due to Other Funds (5,000) - -
Deferred Revenue 338,090 364,973 28,716
Total Liabilities 396,085 394,928 52,399
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable 49 205 325
Restricted 103,367 243,506 217,800
Unassigned - - -
Total Fund Balances 103,416 243,711 218,125
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 499,501 $ 638,639 $ 270,524
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Domestic

Common Relations Probate Juvenile Clerk of Board of
Pleas Court Court Court Court Courts Elections
$ 357,840 $ 153,300 $ 159,022 $ 1,409,479 77,734 $ 1,089
31,811 4,000 3,766 2,124 9,771 -
93,702 - - 497,585 - -

168 - - 1,001 54 -
$ 483,521 $ 157,300 $ 162,788 $ 1,910,189 87,559 $ 1,089
$ 1,591 $ 14,027 $ - $ 92,381 - $ -
12,968 587 - 29,356 1,927 -
46,851 - - 426,176 - -
61,410 14,614 - 547,913 1,927 -

168 - - 1,001 54 -
421,943 142,686 162,788 1,361,275 85,578 1,089
422111 142,686 162,788 1,362,276 85,632 1,089
$ 483,521 $ 157,300 $ 162,788 $ 1,910,189 87,559 $ 1,089

(Continued)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Emergency
Recorder FEMA Fund Management
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ - $ - $ 179,905
Pooled Cash and Investments
in Segregated Accounts - - -
Pooled Cash and Investments
with Fiscal Agent - - -
Receivables:
Taxes - - -
Accounts 1,208 - 2,959
Special Assessments - - -
Due from Other Governments - - 329,971
Due from Other Funds - 11,000 -
Materials and Supplies Inventory - - -
Prepaid Expenses - - 86
Total Assets $ 1,208 $ 11,000 $ 512,921
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $ - $ - $ 93,337
Retainage Payable - - -
Accrued Wages and Benefits - - 1,249
Due to Other Governments - - 11,777
Due to Other Funds - - -
Deferred Revenue - - 257,740
Total Liabilities - - 364,103
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable - - 86
Restricted 1,208 11,000 148,732
Unassigned - - -
Total Fund Balances 1,208 11,000 148,818
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,208 $ 11,000 $ 512,921
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Total

Veteran's Non-Major
Memorial Ditch Law Special Revenue
Trust Maintenance Library ARRA Funds

$ 1,964 $ 208,283 631,046 7,117 $ 10,842,459
- - - - 164,202

- - - - 5,833

- - - - 2,197,708

- - 7,579 - 312,975

- 196,746 - - 196,746

- - 5,512 812,861 8,119,198

- - - - 27,830

- - - - 148,156

- - 61 1 24,504

$ 1,964 $ 405,029 644,198 819,979 $ 22,039,611
$ - $ 79,455 11,702 420 $ 849,790
- - - - 5,833

- - 1,853 12 288,417

- - - - 11,777

- - - 8,000 3,000

- 196,746 - 812,100 8,945,785

- 276,201 13,555 820,532 10,104,602

- - 61 1 172,660

1,964 128,828 630,582 - 11,762,903
- - - (554) (554)

1,964 128,828 630,643 (553) 11,935,009

$ 1,964 $ 405,029 644,198 819,979 $ 22,039,611
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
December 31, 2011

ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments
Pooled Cash and Investments
with Fiscal Agent

Total Assets
LIABILITIES:
Due to Other Funds
Matured Interest Payable
Total Liabilities
FUND BALANCES:
Restricted
Unassigned (Deficit)

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Mercy Human Total
General Unit Services Non-Major
Bond Bond Bond Debt Service
Retirement Retirement Retirement Funds
$ 565 $ - $ 13,025 $ 13,590
- 366 - 366
$ 565 $ 366 $ 13,025 $ 13,956
$ 11,000 $ - $ - $ 11,000
- 366 - 366
11,000 366 - 11,366
- - 13,025 13,025
(10,435) - - (10,435)
(10,435) - 13,025 2,590
$ 565 $ 366 $ 13,025 $ 13,956
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

December 31, 2011

Dayton- Issue II/
DoDD Springfield/ OPWC
Permanent Capital Old Mill Capital
Improvement Projects Road Projects
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 221,066 $ 451,324 $ - $ -
Due from Other Governments - - 263,168 6,234,233
Total Assets $ 221,066 $ 451,324 $ 263,168 $ 6,234,233
LIABILITIES:
Contracts Payable $ - $ 24,943 $ - $ 10,074
Due to Other Funds - 300,000 - -
Deferred Revenue - - 263,168 6,234,233
Notes Payable 715,000 - - -
Total Liabilities 715,000 324,943 263,168 6,244,307
FUND BALANCES:
Restricted - 126,381 - -
Unassigned (Deficit) (493,934) - - (10,074)
Total Fund Balances (493,934) 126,381 - (10,074)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 221,066 $ 451,324 $ 263,168 $ 6,234,233
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Total

Veteran's UV/CL Non-Major
Guardrail South Vienna County Park Lower Valley Intersection Ditch Capital Projects
Project Development Resurfacing Renovation Widening Improvement Construction Funds
- $ 59,863 $ - $ 275 $ - $ - $ 98,254 $ 830,782
- - 1,010,803 - 410,213 90,000 - 8,008,417
- $ 59,863 $ 1,010,803 $ 275 $ 410,213 $ 90,000 $ 98,254 $ 8,839,199
- $ - $ 7,286 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 42,303
- - - - - - - 300,000
- - 1,010,803 - 410,213 90,000 - 8,008,417
- - - - - - - 715,000
- - 1,018,089 - 410,213 90,000 - 9,065,720
- 59,863 - 275 - - 98,254 284,773
- - (7,286) - - - - (511,294)
- 59,863 (7,286) 275 - - 98,254 (226,521)
- $ 59,863 $ 1,010,803 $ 275 $ 410,213 $ 90,000 $ 98,254 $ 8,839,199
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Permanent Funds
December 31, 2011

Total
Chase Chase Non-Major
Stewart Stewart Permanent
Blind Relief Soldier Relief Funds
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 8,602 $ 111,137 $ 119,739
Receivables:
Accrued Interest - 236 236
Total Assets $ 8,602 $ 111,373 $ 119,975
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $ - $ 905 $ 905
Total Liabilities - 905 905
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable 4,000 70,787 74,787
Restricted 4,602 39,681 44283
Total Fund Balances 8,602 110,468 119,070
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 8,602 $ 111,373 $ 119,975
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

REVENUES:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures
Special Assessments
Investment Income
Other Revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Legislative and Executive
Judicial

Public Safety

Public Works

Health

Human Services

Conservation/Recreation

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning of Year

Fund Balance (Deficit), End of Year

Total
Special Debt Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Service Projects Permanent Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds
$ 2,182,484 $ - $ 49,210 $ - $ 2,231,694
13,872,020 - 1,099,855 - 14,971,875
3,559,149 318,523 - - 3,877,672
536,657 - - - 536,657
668,434 - - - 668,434
191,640 - - - 191,640
39,104 - 194 1,774 41,072
1,298,569 102,000 175 - 1,400,744
22,348,057 420,523 1,149,434 1,774 23,919,788
1,380,333 - - - 1,380,333
3,963,896 - - - 3,963,896
1,198,523 - - - 1,198,523
7,451,671 - - - 7,451,671
38,994 - - - 38,994
6,621,250 - - 7,479 6,628,729
868,671 - - - 868,671
369,938 - 1,964,225 - 2,334,163
55,000 1,070,000 200,000 - 1,325,000
10,394 515,509 98,178 - 624,081
21,958,670 1,585,509 2,262,403 7,479 25,814,061
389,387 (1,164,986) (1,112,969) (5,705) (1,894,273)
591,797 1,136,730 1,482,538 - 3,211,065
(398,447) - (96,188) - (494,635)
193,350 1,136,730 1,386,350 - 2,716,430
582,737 (28,256) 273,381 (5,705) 822,157
11,352,272 30,846 (499,902) 124,775 11,007,991
$ 11,935,009 2,590 $  (226,521) $ 119,070 $ 11,830,148
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

REVENUES:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures
Special Assessments
Investment Income
Other Revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Legislative and Executive
Judicial

Public Safety

Public Works

Health

Human Services

Conservation/Recreation

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures

Child Support
Enforcement
Agency

Real Estate
Assessment

Engineer

$ -
3,440,313

530,096

$ -
1,288,315

6,080

6,833,576
157,528

83,514

38,823
310,601

3,970,409

1,294,395

7,424,042

4,245,989

870,297

6,849,120

362,999

4,245,989

876,695

7,212,119

(275,580)

417,700

211,923

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers In
Transfers Out

185,350

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 185,350

Net Change in Fund Balance

(90,230)

417,700

211,923

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year, as restated 719,562

Fund Balance, End of Year

2,191,684

3,305,849

$ 629,332

$ 2,609,384

$

3,517,772
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Waste Dog and
Management Kennel DRETAC GIS Mapping Commissioners Treasurer's
$ - - $ 282,884 $ - $ 1,895,233 $ 4,367
2,000 - - - 491,493 -
738,545 4,294 - 202,627 - -
- 536,657 - - - -
- 3,340 - - 26,998 -
46 - - - - 160
134,917 121 44,984 6,000 - 679
875,508 544,412 327,868 208,627 2,413,724 5,206
- - 104,385 234,030 - 46,688
- - 233,714 - 18,664 -
- 450,125 - - - -
4,747 - - - - -
- - - - 2,375,261 -
868,671 - - - - -
30,000 - - - - -
7,819 - - - - -
911,237 450,125 338,099 234,030 2,393,925 46,688
(35,729) 94,287 (10,231) (25,403) 19,799 (41,482)
- - - - - 398,447
- - (398,447) - - -
- - (398,447) - - 398,447
(35,729) 94,287 (408,678) (25,403) 19,799 356,965
533,210 145,653 580,212 236,337 10,516 7,610
$ 497,481 239,940 $ 171,534 $ 210,934 $ 30,315 $ 364,575
(Continued)



CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Community Prosecuting
Development Attorney Sheriff
REVENUES:
Taxes $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental 457,590 243,657 207,471
Charges for Services - - 73,420
Licenses and Permits - - -
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures - 58,640 36,460
Special Assessments - - -
Investment Income - 75 -
Other Revenue - 209,354 22,034
Total Revenues 457,590 511,726 339,385
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive - - -
Judicial - 523,941 -
Public Safety - - 258,582
Public Works 419,988 - -
Health - - -
Human Services - - -
Conservation/Recreation - - -
Capital Outlay - 541 -
Debt Service:
Principal - - -
Interest - - -
Total Expenditures 419,988 524,482 258,582
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures 37,602 (12,756) 80,803
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 500 - -
Transfers Out - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 500 - -
Net Change in Fund Balance 38,102 (12,756) 80,803
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year, as restated 65,314 256,467 137,322
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 103,416 $ 243,711 $ 218,125
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Domestic

Common Relations Probate Juvenile Clerk of Board of
Pleas Court Court Court Court Courts Elections
$ - s -8 - s -8 - s -
187,404 - - 1,365,542 - -
141,608 - 46,301 786,287 120,224 -
273,954 77,150 - - - -
- - - 3,549 - -
602,966 77,150 46,301 2,155,378 120,224 -
- - - - 118,172 -
530,473 27,013 20,542 2,386,838 30,996 -
25,000 - - - - -
2,575 - - - - -
558,048 27,013 20,542 2,386,838 149,168 -
44918 50,137 25,759 (231,460) (28,944) -
44918 50,137 25,759 (231,460) (28,944) -
377,193 92,549 137,029 1,593,736 114,576 1,089
$ 422,111 $ 142,686 $ 162,788 $ 1,362,276 $ 85,632 $ 1,089
(Continued)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
(Continued)

Emergency
Recorder FEMA Fund Management

REVENUES:
Taxes $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental - - 452,622
Charges for Services - - -
Licenses and Permits - - -
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures - - R
Special Assessments - - -
Investment Income - - -
Other Revenue 4,237 - 20,731

Total Revenues 4,237 - 473,353

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive 6,761 - -
Judicial - - -
Public Safety - - 489,816
Public Works - - -
Health - - -
Human Services - - -
Conservation/Recreation - - -
Capital Outlay - - -
Debt Service:
Principal - - -
Interest - - -

Total Expenditures 6,761 - 489,816

Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (2,524) - (16,463)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In - - 7,500
Transfers Out - - -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - 7,500
Net Change in Fund Balance (2,524) - (8,963)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year, as restated 3,732 11,000 157,781
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 1,208 $ 11,000 $ 148,818
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Total
Veteran's Non-Major
Memorial Ditch Law Special Revenue
Trust Maintenance Library ARRA Funds

- $ - $ - $ - $ 2,182,484
- - 89,165 101,187 13,872,020
- - - - 3,559,149
- - - - 536,657
- - 108,378 - 668,434
- 191,640 - - 191,640
- - - - 39,104
- - 5,186 - 1,298,569

- 191,640 202,729 101,187 22,348,057

- - - - 1,380,333
- - 191,715 - 3,963,896
- - - - 1,198,523
- 117,802 - 60,014 7,451,671
- - - 38,994 38,994
- - - - 6,621,250
- - - - 868,671
- - - - 369,938

- - - - 55,000
- - - - 10,394

- 117,802 191,715 99,008 21,958,670

- 73,838 11,014 2,179 389,387

- - - - 591,797
- - - - (398,447)

- - - - 193,350

- 73,838 11,014 2,179 582,737

1,964 54,990 619,629 (2,732) 11,352,272

1,964 $ 128,828 $ 630,643 $ (553) § 11,935,009
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Mercy Human Total
General Unit Services Non-Major
Bond Bond Bond Debt Service
Retirement Retirement Retirement Funds
REVENUES:
Charges for Services $ - $ - $ 318,523 $ 318,523
Other Revenue 102,000 - - 102,000
Total Revenues 102,000 - 318,523 420,523
EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service:
Principal 835,000 - 235,000 1,070,000
Interest 436,061 - 79,448 515,509
Total Expenditures 1,271,061 - 314,448 1,585,509
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (1,169,061) - 4,075 (1,164,986)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 1,136,730 - - 1,136,730
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,136,730 - - 1,136,730
Net Change in Fund Balance (32,331) - 4,075 (28,256)
Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning of Year 21,896 - 8,950 30,846
Fund Balance (Deficit), End of Year $ (10,435) $ - $ 13,025 $ 2,590
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Dayton- Issue 11/
DoDD Springfield/ OPWC
Permanent Capital Old Mill Capital
Improvement Projects Road Projects
REVENUES:
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental - 75,861 40,427 735,654
Investment Income 194 - - -
Other Revenue - - - -
Total Revenues 194 75,861 40,427 735,654
EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay 244,307 678,564 40,427 745,728
Debt Service:
Principal - 150,000 - -
Interest 5,062 77,615 - -
Total Expenditures 249,369 906,179 40,427 745,728
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (249,175) (830,318) - (10,074)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 201,250 1,185,100 - -
Transfers Out (96,188) - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 105,062 1,185,100 - -
Net Change in Fund Balance (144,113) 354,782 - (10,074)
Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning of Year (349,821) (228,401) - -
Fund Balance (Deficit), End of Year $ (493,934) $ 126,381 $ - $ (10,074)
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Total

Veteran's UV/CL Non-Major
Guardrail South Vienna County Park Lower Valley Intersection Ditch Capital Projects
Project Development Resurfacing Renovation Widening Improvement Construction Funds

- $ 49,210 $ - $ - $ - - $ - $ 49,210
21,739 y 54,079 - 172,095 - - 1,099,855
y y . y y y y 194
- - - 175 - - - 175
21,739 49,210 54,079 175 172,095 - - 1,149,434
21,739 - 61,365 - 172,095 - - 1,964,225
- 50,000 - - - - - 200,000
- 15,501 - - - - - 98,178
21,739 65,501 61,365 - 172,095 - - 2,262,403

- (16,291) (7,286) 175 - - - (1,112,969)
- 96,188 - - - - - 1,482,538

- - - - - - - (96,188)
- 96,188 - - - - - 1,386,350
- 79,897 (7,286) 175 - - - 273,381

- (20,034) - 100 - - 98,254 (499,902)

- $ 59,863 $ (7,286) $ 275 $ - - $ 98,254 $ (226,521)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Permanent Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Total
Chase Chase Non-Major
Stewart Stewart Permanent
Blind Relief Soldier Relief Funds
REVENUES:
Investment Income $ - $ 1,774 $ 1,774
Total Revenues - 1,774 1,774
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Human Services - 7,479 7,479
Total Expenditures - 7,479 7,479
Net Change in Fund Balance - (5,705) (5,705)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 8,602 116,173 124,775
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 8,602 $ 110,468 $ 119,070
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Nonmajor Internal Service Fund — Fund Description

NONMAJOR INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financial resources that provide goods or
services to other funds, departments, or agencies of the County and its component units, or to
other governments on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Document Imaging Fund — To maintain and account for the revenues associated with
the notes issued to acquire document imaging equipment for the County.

Since there is only one nonmajor Internal Service Fund, the Document Imaging Fund,
no individual fund information is presented.
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Fiduciary Funds — Fund Descriptions

AGENCY FUNDS

To maintain and account for assets held by the County as an agent for individuals, private
Organizations, other governmental units, and/or other funds.

Department of Rehabilitation Corrections Fund — To maintain and account for
expenditures related to the West Central Correctional Facility.

Eastern Miami Valley Alcohol, Drug Addiction, Mental Health Board Fund — To
maintain and account for revenues received from various sources including tax levies,
and state and federal grants to be utilized for the operations of mental health associated
programs throughout Clark County.

Health Department Fund — To account for the funds of the Clark County Combined
Health District for which the County Auditor is the ex-officio fiscal agent as required
under Section 1515.23 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Payroll Deductions Fund — To maintain and account for expenditures made for
deductions for credit union, federal tax, state tax, garnishments, child support etc...

County Insurance Fund — To maintain and account for expenditures made for employee
insurance costs.

Workmen’s Compensation Fund — To maintain and account for the accumulation of
funds for providing and paying for worker’s compensation premiums and claims.

General County Fund — To maintain and account for revenues and expenditures of
certain funds of departments within Clark County.

Other Government Fund — To maintain and account for revenues received and
expenditures made to governmental entities not located within the reporting funds of
Clark County.
Township Gas Fund — To maintain and account for revenues received from the State of
Ohio to be disbursed to political subdivisions within Clark County eligible to receive gas
tax proceeds.

State of Ohio Fund — To maintain and account for revenues received from the State of
Ohio, which will be disbursed to other political entities.

Treasurer’s Tax Prepayment Fund — To maintain and account for revenue received
from individuals for the prepayment of real estate taxes.

Undivided Tax Settlement Fund — To maintain and account for funds received from the
collection of taxes but not yet disbursed to political subdivisions.

Inheritance Tax Fund — To maintain and account for revenues received from the
collection of estate taxes from individuals but not yet disbursed to political subdivisions.

(Continued)
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Fiduciary Funds — Fund Descriptions
(Continued)

AGENCY FUNDS (Continued)

Cigarette Tax Fund — To maintain and account for revenues received from the sale of
cigarette tax licenses but not yet disbursed to political subdivisions.

Local Government Fund — To maintain and account for revenues received from the

State of Ohio for local government subsidies but not yet disbursed to the political
subdivisions participating in the local government allocation.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets
and Liabilities - Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Department of Rehabilitation Corrections Fund:

ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments
Pooled Cash and Investments
with Fiscal Agent

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Retainage Payable
Due to Other Governments

Total Liabilities

Eastern Miami Valley Alcohol, Drug Addiction, Mental Health Board Fund:

ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Undistributed Monies

Total Liabilities

Health Department Fund:
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments

Net Receivables:
Special Assessments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Undistributed Monies

Total Liabilities

Payroll Deductions Fund:
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Undistributed Monies

Total Liabilities

Balance Balance
12/31/10 Additions Deductions 12/31/11
$ 405,534 $ 3,376,736 $ 3,493,949 288,321
41,339 - 41,339 -
$ 446,873 $ 3,376,736 $ 3,535,288 288,321
$ 41,339 $ - $ 41,339 -
405,534 3,376,736 3,493,949 288,321
$ 446,873 $ 3,376,736 $ 3,535,288 288,321
$ 6,661,780 $ 34,193,970 $ 31,032,669 9,823,081
$ 6,661,780 $ 34,193,970 $ 31,032,669 9,823,081
$ 6,661,780 $ 34,193,970 $ 31,032,669 9,823,081
$ 6,661,780 $ 34,193,970 $ 31,032,669 9,823,081
$ 3,034,088 $ 7,590,248 $ 7,387,684 3,236,652
45,359 43,845 45,359 43,845
$ 3,079,447 $ 7,634,093 $ 7,433,043 3,280,497
$ 3,079,447 $ 7,634,093 $ 7,433,043 3,280,497
$ 3,079,447 $ 7,634,093 $ 7,433,043 3,280,497
$ 3,383 $ 4,242 $ 2,512 5,113
$ 3,383 $ 4,242 $ 2,512 5,113
$ 3,383 $ 4,242 $ 2,512 5,113
$ 3,383 $ 4,242 $ 2,512 5,113
(Continued)

-08 -



CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets
and Liabilities - Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Balance Balance
12/31/10 Additions Deductions 12/31/11
County Insurance Fund:
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 185,748 $ 10,581,019 $ 10,567,813 $ 198,954
Total Assets 185,748 10,581,019 10,567,813 198,954
LIABILITIES:
Undistributed Monies $ 185,748 $ 10,581,019 $ 10,567,813 $ 198,954
Total Liabilities $ 185,748 $ 10,581,019 $ 10,567,813 $ 198,954
Workmen's Compensation Fund:
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 429,944 $ 703,294 $ 693,977 $ 439,261
Total Assets $ 429,944 $ 703,294 $ 693,977 $ 439,261
LIABILITIES:
Undistributed Monies $ 429,944 $ 703,294 $ 693,977 $ 439,261
Total Liabilities $ 429,944 $ 703,294 $ 693,977 $ 439,261
General County Fund:
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 291,988 $ 471,196 $ 478,284 $ 284,900
Pooled Cash and Investments
in Segregated Accounts 3,045,850 2,951,593 3,045,850 2,951,593
Total Assets $ 3,337,838 $ 3,422,789 $ 3,524,134 $ 3,236,493
LIABILITIES:
Undistributed Monies $ 3,337,838 $ 3,422,789 $ 3,524,134 $ 3,236,493
Total Liabilities $ 3,337,838 $ 3,422,789 $ 3,524,134 $ 3,236,493
Other Government Fund:
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 908,364 $ 90,856,158 $ 90,692,581 $ 1,071,941
Pooled Cash and Investments
in Segregated Accounts 168,288 - 168,288 -
Total Assets $ 1,076,652 $ 90,856,158 $ 90,860,869 $ 1,071,941
LIABILITIES:
Undistributed Monies $ 1,076,652 $ 90,856,158 $ 90,860,869 $ 1,071,941
Total Liabilities $ 1,076,652 $ 90,856,158 $ 90,860,869 $ 1,071,941

(Continued)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets
and Liabilities - Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Balance Balance
12/31/10 Additions Deductions 12/31/11
Township Gas Fund:
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ - $ 1,014,867 $ 1,014,867 $ -
Total Assets $ - $ 1,014,867 $ 1,014,867 $ -
LIABILITIES:
Undistributed Monies $ - $ 1,014,867 $ 1,014,867 $ -
Total Liabilities $ - $ 1,014,867 $ 1,014,867 $ -
State of Ohio Fund:
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 78,537 $ 404,874 $ 453,991 $ 29,420
Total Assets $ 78,537 $ 404,874 $ 453,991 $ 29,420
LIABILITIES:
Undistributed Monies $ 78,537 $ 404,874 $ 453,991 $ 29,420
Total Liabilities $ 78,537 $ 404,874 $ 453,991 $ 29,420
Treasurer's Tax Prepayment Fund:
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 71,352 $ 2,479,452 $ 2,473,779 $ 77,025
Total Assets $ 71,352 $ 2,479,452 $ 2,473,779 $ 77,025
LIABILITIES:
Undistributed Monies $ 71,352 $ 2,479,452 $ 2,473,779 $ 77,025
Total Liabilities $ 71,352 $ 2,479,452 $ 2,473,779 $ 77,025
Undivided Tax Settlement Fund:
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 3,519,536 $123,626,389 $124,461,855 $ 2,684,070
Net Receivables:
Special Assessments 2,778,332 3,074,255 2,778,332 3,074,255
Taxes to be Collected for
Other Governments 112,380,689 110,075,054 112,380,689 110,075,054

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Due to Other Governments
Undistributed Monies

Total Liabilities

$118,678,557

$236,775,698

$239,620,876

$115,833,379

$115,159,021
3,519,536

$113,149,309
123,626,389

$115,159,021
124,461,855

$113,149,309
2,684,070

$118,678,557

$236,775,698

$239,620,876

$115,833,379
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets
and Liabilities - Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Balance Balance
12/31/10 Additions Deductions 12/31/11
Inheritance Tax Fund:
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 447 472 $ 2,061,446 $ 1,818,432 $ 690,486
Total Assets $ 447 472 $ 2,061,446 $ 1,818,432 $ 690,486
LIABILITIES:
Undistributed Monies $ 447 472 $ 2,061,446 $ 1,818,432 $ 690,486
Total Liabilities $ 447 472 $ 2,061,446 $ 1,818,432 $ 690,486
Cigarette Tax Fund:
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 108 $ 18,659 $ 18,767 $ -
Total Assets $ 108 $ 18,659 $ 18,767 $ -
LIABILITIES:
Undistributed Monies $ 108 $ 18,659 $ 18,767 $ -
Total Liabilities $ 108 $ 18,659 $ 18,767 $ -
Local Government Fund:
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 8,962 $ 10,095,790 $ 10,095,791 $ 8,961
Total Assets $ 8,962 $ 10,095,790 $ 10,095,791 $ 8,961
LIABILITIES:
Undistributed Monies $ 8,962 $ 10,095,790 $ 10,095,791 $ 8,961
Total Liabilities $ 8,962 $ 10,095,790 $ 10,095,791 $ 8,961

(Continued)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets
and Liabilities - Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Balance Balance
12/31/10 Additions Deductions 12/31/11
Total Agency Funds:
ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 16,046,796 $287,478,340 $284,686,951 $ 18,838,185
Pooled Cash and Investments
in Segregated Accounts 3,214,138 2,951,593 3,214,138 2,951,593
Pooled Cash and Investments
with Fiscal Agent 41,339 - 41,339 -
Net Receivables:
Special Assessments 2,823,691 3,118,100 2,823,691 3,118,100
Taxes to be Collected for
Other Governments 112,380,689 110,075,054 112,380,689 110,075,054
Total Assets $134,506,653 $403,623,087 $403,146,808 $134,982,932
LIABILITIES:
Retainage Payable $ 41,339 $ - $ 41,339 $ -
Due to Other Governments 115,564,555 116,526,045 118,652,970 113,437,630
Undistributed Monies 18,900,759 287,097,042 284,452,499 21,545,302
Total Liabilities $134,506,653 $403,623,087 $403,146,808 $134,982,932
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INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

- 103 -



CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Taxes 3,570,058 $ 3,570,058 $ 3,335,928 $ (234,130)
Permissive Sales Tax 19,890,000 19,890,000 20,154,822 264,822
Intergovernmental 5,887,965 6,082,089 5,729,850 (352,239)
Charges for Services 4,592,117 4,673,135 4,850,069 176,934
Licenses and Permits 1,100 1,100 3,070 1,970
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures 745,000 745,000 651,667 (93,333)
Investment Income 758,225 758,225 776,197 17,972
Other Revenue 97,000 121,716 380,192 258,476
Total Revenues 35,541,465 35,841,323 35,881,795 40,472
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive:
Commissioners:
Personnel & Fringes 719,276 645,668 644,684 984
Operating Expenses 76,018 84,819 75,016 9,803
Capital Asset Expense 1,000 7,404 6,926 478
Auditor:
Personnel & Fringes 788,976 771,176 650,416 120,760
Operating Expenses 116,928 134,128 117,835 16,293
Capital Asset Expense 1,500 1,000 659 341
Data Processing:
Personnel & Fringes 106,555 106,068 100,994 5,074
Operating Expenses 113,800 129,287 122,944 6,343
Capital Asset Expense 20,350 5,350 2,976 2,374
Board of Revision:
Operating Expenses 1,900 3,000 2,057 943
Auditor of State:
Operating Expenses 117,858 117,858 117,858 -
Treasurer:
Personnel & Fringes 548,417 548,417 493,869 54,548
Operating Expenses 71,194 71,194 59,149 12,045
Capital Asset Expense 1,000 1,000 669 331
Tax Incentive Review Council:
Personnel & Fringes - 2,500 - 2,500
Operating Expenses - 7,500 1,000 6,500
Board of Elections:
Personnel & Fringes 549,507 549,507 450,532 98,975
Operating Expenses 305,308 304,999 244,484 60,515
(Continued)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

Recorder:

Personnel & Fringes 297,623 315,265 314,408 857

Operating Expenses 14,859 15,117 13,048 2,069
Microfilm:

Operating Expenses 6,755 6,755 6,755 -
Misc Insurance and Pension:

Personnel & Fringes 10,000 10,000 2,580 7,420

Operating Expenses 1,000,618 956,839 672,642 284,197
Information Systems:

Personnel & Fringes 283,883 283,883 277,287 6,596

Operating Expenses 80,833 83,538 83,438 100
Cash Deposits:

Operating Expenses 30,021 30,021 17,317 12,704
Unforfeited Land Sale:

Operating Expenses - - 62,000 (62,000)
Unclaimed Money:

Operating Expenses 50,000 50,000 42,655 7,345
Unclaimed Warrants:

Operating Expenses 50,000 50,000 590 49,410
Legislative and Executive 5,364,179 5,292,293 4,584,788 707,505
Judicial:

Prosecuting Attorney:

Personnel & Fringes 1,306,888 1,306,888 1,293,005 13,883

Operating Expenses 89,582 89,582 86,330 3,252
Public Defender:

Personnel & Fringes 777,427 777,427 720,444 56,983

Operating Expenses 42,727 42,727 35,500 7,227
Court of Appeals:

Operating Expenses 35,000 35,000 25,975 9,025
Common Pleas Court:

Personnel & Fringes 628,216 623,716 613,011 10,705

Operating Expenses 322,377 376,877 332,406 44 471
Domestic Relations:

Personnel & Fringes 622,065 622,065 601,439 20,626

Operating Expenses 35,118 35,118 35,054 64

(Continued)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Probate Court:
Personnel & Fringes 369,922 369,922 326,689 43,233
Operating Expenses 51,757 51,757 47,375 4,382
Juvenile Court:
Personnel & Fringes 945,323 1,126,846 1,114,801 12,045
Operating Expenses 650,408 773,885 684,609 89,276
Juvenile - Probation:
Personnel & Fringes 576,740 423,740 371,812 51,928
Operating Expenses 26,504 28,504 23,135 5,369
Juvenile Court - Detention Home:
Personnel & Fringes 1,841,266 1,731,266 1,680,542 50,724
Operating Expenses 205,494 205,494 160,541 44,953
Municipal Court:
Personnel & Fringes 212,640 212,640 210,476 2,164
Operating Expenses 61,206 72,206 60,860 11,346
Clerk of Courts:
Personnel & Fringes 561,954 561,954 540,541 21,413
Operating Expenses 141,593 141,593 87,042 54,551
Juvenile Center Trust:
Personnel & Fringes 11,545 11,545 - 11,545
Operating Expenses 103,068 103,068 23,352 79,716
Judicial 9,618,820 9,723,820 9,074,939 648,881
Public Safety:
Sheriff:
Personnel & Fringes 11,357,741 11,376,947 11,305,858 71,089
Operating Expenses 1,674,294 1,725,797 1,629,242 96,555
Coroner:
Personnel & Fringes 217,843 217,843 216,588 1,255
Operating Expenses 119,590 189,590 187,959 1,631
Emergency Management:
Personnel & Fringes 113,669 113,669 105,687 7,982
Operating Expenses 85,051 85,051 79,114 5,937
Capital Asset Expense 19,445 19,445 17,866 1,579
Sheriff's Grant:
Personnel & Fringes 396,691 460,530 413,400 47,130
Operating Expenses 94,547 144,833 104,412 40,421
Capital Asset Expense - 79,999 34,999 45,000

(Continued)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Sheriff's Trust:
Operating Expenses 38,437 38,437 22,392 16,045
Sheriff Policing Rotary:
Personnel & Fringes 748,690 739,585 730,231 9,354
Operating Expenses 126,451 97,555 82,255 15,300
Public Safety 14,992,449 15,289,281 14,930,003 359,278
Public Works:
County Economic Development:
Operating Expenses 355,000 355,000 355,000 -
Building & Grounds:
Personnel & Fringes 1,024,875 895,976 862,015 33,961
Operating Expenses 2,250,232 2,250,232 1,606,590 643,642
Community Development:
Personnel & Fringes 770,978 770,978 717,341 53,637
Operating Expenses 104,570 104,261 97,774 6,487
Engineer:
Personnel & Fringes 145,264 147,236 146,755 481
Operating Expenses 7,000 5,028 5,024 4
Public Works 4,657,919 4,528,711 3,790,499 738,212
Health:
Other Health/Welfare:
Operating Expenses 288,253 288,253 286,974 1,279
Wellness:
Personnel & Fringes - 8,000 7,997 3
Operating Expenses - 16,716 16,716 -
Health 288,253 312,969 311,687 1,282
Human Services:
Soldiers Relief:
Personnel & Fringes 460,604 484,250 480,094 4,156
Operating Expenses 417,930 394,284 356,034 38,250
Capital Asset Expense 7,377 7,377 7,311 66
Veterans Service Commission Unclaimed:
Operating Expenses 2,149 2,669 2,600 69
Human Services 888,060 888,580 846,039 42,541

(Continued)

- 107 -



CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Conservation and Recreation:
Agriculture:
Operating Expenses 432,723 432,723 432,523 200
Conservation and Recreation 432,723 432,723 432,523 200
Total Expenditures 36,242,403 36,468,377 33,970,478 2,497,899
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (700,938) (627,054) 1,911,317 2,538,371
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets - - 6,980 6,980
Transfers In 262,500 362,500 388,429 25,929
Advances Out - (11,000) (11,000) -
Transfers Out (3,076,201) (3,014,301) (2,797,734) 216,567
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,813,701) (2,662,801) (2,413,325) 249,476
Net Change in Fund Balance (3,514,639) (3,289,855) (502,008) 2,787,847
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 4,399,855 4,399,855 4,399,855 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 1,849,565 1,849,565 1,849,565 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 2,734,781 $ 2,959,565 $ 5,747,412 2,787,847
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Job & Family Services Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 12,574,035 $ 13,070,061 $ 12,321,029 $ (749,032)
Charges for Services 6,294,716 6,294,716 3,608,350 (2,686,366)
Total Revenues 18,868,751 19,364,777 15,929,379 (3,435,398)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Human Services:
Department of Job & Family Services:
Personnel and Fringes 9,349,800 9,143,508 8,887,332 256,176
Operating Expenses 7,875,228 7,916,783 7,221,673 695,110
WIA Fund:
Operating Expenses 1,842,693 1,678,123 1,647,071 31,052
Total Expenditures 19,067,721 18,738,414 17,756,076 982,338
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (198,970) 626,363 (1,826,697) (2,453,060)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Advances In 1,021,083 1,021,083 835,732 (185,351)
Transfers In 500,000 500,000 - (500,000)
Advances Out (500,000) (71,256) - 71,256
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,021,083 1,449,827 835,732 (614,095)
Net Change in Fund Balance 822,113 2,076,190 (990,965) (3,067,155)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 238,125 238,125 238,125 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 1,556,347 1,556,347 1,556,347 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 2,616,585 $ 3,870,662 $ 803,507 $ (3,067,155)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Department of Developmental Disabilities Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 10,403,765 $ 10,403,765 $ 9,725,540 $ (678,225)
Intergovernmental 12,221,790 12,221,790 14,009,361 1,787,571
Charges for Services 359,000 359,000 334,696 (24,304)
Investment Income - - 141 141
Other Revenue 31,500 31,500 96,600 65,100
Total Revenues 23,016,055 23,016,055 24,166,338 1,150,283
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Health:
MR/DD General Fund:
Personnel and Fringes 12,155,868 12,140,868 11,653,255 487,613
Operating Expenses 5,727,830 5,637,670 4,894,363 743,307
County MR/DD Residential Services:
Operating Expenses 2,911,895 2,489,916 2,488,093 1,823
F.F. Mueller Residential Center:
Personnel and Fringes 5,658,567 5,442,216 5,429,668 12,548
Operating Expenses 1,907,424 2,017,424 2,005,448 11,976
MR/DD Medicaid Reserve:
Operating Expenses 1,300 1,300 - 1,300
MR/DD Donation Trust:
Operating Expenses 500 500 - 500
Neubart Webb Trust:
Operating Expenses 50,000 50,000 34,363 15,637
Total Expenditures 28,413,384 27,779,894 26,505,190 1,274,704
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (5,397,329) (4,763,839) (2,338,852) 2,424,987
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 4,180,300 4,200,300 4,200,300 -
Transfers Out (4,839,400) (5,546,400) (5,385,400) 161,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (659,100) (1,346,100) (1,185,100) 161,000
Net Change in Fund Balance (6,056,429) (6,109,939) (3,523,952) 2,585,987
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 10,622,359 10,622,359 10,622,359 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 2,534,184 2,534,184 2,534,184 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 7,100,114 $ 7,046,604 $ 9,632,591 $ 2,585,987
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Children's Service Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 2,399,795 $ 2,399,795 $ 2,280,820 $ (118,975)
Intergovernmental 6,743,025 6,743,025 6,703,384 (39,641)
Charges for Services 740,003 740,003 456,948 (283,055)
Other Revenue 641,573 641,573 304,313 (337,260)
Total Revenues 10,524,396 10,524,396 9,745,465 (778,931)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Human Services:
Operating Expenses 13,712,707 13,139,390 9,995,904 3,143,486
Total Expenditures 13,712,707 13,139,390 9,995,904 3,143,486
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (3,188,311) (2,614,994) (250,439) 2,364,555
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Note Proceeds 2,395,000 2,395,000 2,505,900 110,900
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,395,000 2,395,000 2,505,900 110,900
Net Change in Fund Balance (793,311) (219,994) 2,255,461 2,475,455
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 40,585 40,585 40,585 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 847,602 847,602 847,602 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 94,876 $ 668,193 $ 3,143,648 $ 2,475,455
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Child Support Enforcement Agency Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 3,279,638 $ 3,279,638 $ 3,611,887 $ 332,249
Charges for Services 446,085 446,085 524,150 78,065
Other Revenue 605,284 605,284 - (605,284)
Total Revenues 4,331,007 4,331,007 4,136,037 (194,970)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Human Services:
Personnel and Fringes 2,765,065 2,740,565 2,625,299 115,266
Operating Expenses 1,870,920 1,895,420 1,822,864 72,556
Total Expenditures 4,635,985 4,635,985 4,448,163 187,822
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (304,978) (304,978) (312,126) (7,148)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In - - 185,350 185,350
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - 185,350 185,350
Net Change in Fund Balance (304,978) (304,978) (126,776) 178,202
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 162,630 162,630 162,630 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 206,229 206,229 206,229 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 63,381 $ 63,881 $ 242,083 $ 178,202
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Real Estate Assessment Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Charges for Services $ 953,000 $ 953,000 $ 1,288,315 $ 335,315
Other Revenue 1,800 1,800 6,080 4,280
Total Revenues 954,800 954,800 1,294,395 339,595
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive:
Personnel and Fringes 650,925 650,925 428,804 222,121
Operating Expenses 1,058,535 1,458,535 1,356,761 101,774
Capital Asset Expense 27,000 27,000 7,240 19,760
Total Expenditures 1,736,460 2,136,460 1,792,805 343,655
Net Change in Fund Balance (781,660) (1,181,660) (498,410) 683,250
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,822,041 1,822,041 1,822,041 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 473,035 473,035 473,035 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 1,513,416 $ 1,113,416 $ 1,796,666 $ 683,250
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Engineer Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 7,443,582 $ 7,443,582 $ 6,821,725 $ (621,857)
Charges for Services 100,000 100,000 165,397 65,397
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures 110,000 110,000 82,683 (27,317)
Investment Income 100,000 100,000 38,823 (61,177)
Other Revenue 150,000 150,000 344,961 194,961
Total Revenues 7,903,582 7,903,582 7,453,589 (449,993)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works:
Motor Vehicle Gas Tax:
Personnel and Fringes 3,629,473 3,583,535 3,298,526 285,009
Operating Expenses 5,076,896 5,316,896 4,478,034 838,862
Capital Asset Expense 1,257,253 1,017,253 639,424 377,829
Medway Lighting:
Operating Expenses 64,182 64,182 - 64,182
Total Expenditures 10,027,804 9,981,866 8,415,984 1,565,882
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (2,124,222) (2,078,284) (962,395) 1,115,889
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Advances In 68,000 68,000 65,598 (2,402)
Advances Out (68,000) (68,000) (65,598) 2,402
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance (2,124,222) (2,078,284) (962,395) 1,115,889
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,311,665 1,311,665 1,311,665 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 1,154,831 1,154,831 1,154,831 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 342,274 $ 388,212 $ 1,504,101 $ 1,115,889
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Waste Management Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 62,500 $ 62,500 $ 4,000 $ (58,500)
Charges for Services 916,400 916,400 738,663 (177,737)
Investment Income 1,550 1,550 46 (1,504)
Other Revenue 25,000 25,000 134,963 109,963
Total Revenues 1,005,450 1,005,450 877,672 (127,778)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works:
ODNR Market Development Grant:
Operating Expenses 4,196 4,175 - 4,175
ODNR Community Development 2006:
Operating Expenses 64,800 6,755 6,755 -
Total Public Works 68,996 10,930 6,755 4,175
Conservation and Recreation:
Solid Waste Disposal:
Personnel and Fringes 378,678 383,678 371,852 11,826
Operating Expenses 894,743 886,843 732,307 154,536
Waste Management Donations:
Operating Expenses 1,500 - - -
Keep America Beautiful:
Operating Expenses 27,015 7,629 4,761 2,868
Litter Cleanup Grant:
Operating Expenses 2,500 2,000 2,000 -
Total Conservation and Recreation 1,304,436 1,280,150 1,110,920 169,230
Debt Service:
Principal 30,000 30,000 30,000 -
Interest 5,000 7,900 7,819 81
Total Debt Service 35,000 37,900 37,819 81
Total Expenditures 1,408,432 1,328,980 1,155,494 173,486
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (402,982) (323,530) (277,822) 45,708
(Continued)
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In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis

CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

Waste Management Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Advances In 9,500 9,500 4,554 (4,946)
Advances Out (9,500) (7,500) (4,554) 2,946
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 2,000 - (2,000)
Net Change in Fund Balance (402,982) (321,530) (277,822) 43,708
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 334,985 334,985 334,985 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 212,758 212,758 212,758 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 144,761 $ 226,213 $ 269,921 $ 43,708
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Dog and Kennel Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Charges for Services $ 2,200 $ 2,200 $ 4,130 $ 1,930
Licenses and Permits 495,000 495,000 519,886 24,886
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures 4,800 4,800 3,270 (1,530)
Other Revenue 500 500 121 (379)
Total Revenues 502,500 502,500 527,407 24,907
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Safety:
Commissioners Office:
Personnel and Fringes 153,067 152,352 130,927 21,425
Operating Expenses 365,456 366,171 309,979 56,192
Auditor's Office:
Personnel and Fringes 41,679 51,504 50,247 1,257
Operating Expenses 15,000 22,000 20,940 1,060
Total Expenditures 575,202 592,027 512,093 79,934
Net Change in Fund Balance (72,702) (89,527) 15,314 104,841
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 149,007 149,007 149,007 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 61,691 61,691 61,691 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 137,996 $ 121,171 $ 226,012 $ 104,841
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
DRETAC Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 282,884 $ (17,116)
Other Revenue - - 45,168 45,168
Total Revenues 300,000 300,000 328,052 28,052
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive:
Treasurer's Office:
Personnel and Fringes 148,700 148,700 87,639 61,061
Operating Expenses 420,865 22,418 15,932 6,486
Total Legislative and Executive 569,565 171,118 103,571 67,547
Judicial:
Prosecutor's Office:
Personnel and Fringes 194,600 237,326 235,364 1,962
Operating Expenses 127,096 84,370 7,091 77,279
Total Judicial 321,696 321,696 242,455 79,241
Total Expenditures 891,261 492,814 346,026 146,788
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (591,261) (192,814) (17,974) 174,840
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers Out - (398,447) (398,447) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - (398,447) (398,447) -
Net Change in Fund Balance (591,261) (591,261) (416,421) 174,840
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 588,913 588,913 588,913 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 2,348 2,348 2,348 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ - $ - $ 174,840 $ 174,840
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
GIS Mapping Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Charges for Services $ 200,000 $ 200,000 $ 202,409 $ 2,409
Other Revenue - - 6,000 6,000
Total Revenues 200,000 200,000 208,409 8,409
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive:
Auditor's Office:
Personnel and Fringes 81,624 81,624 78,945 2,679
Operating Expenses 337,745 337,745 313,109 24,636
Total Legislative and Executive 419,369 419,369 392,054 27,315
Total Expenditures 419,369 419,369 392,054 27,315
Net Change in Fund Balance (219,369) (219,369) (183,645) 35,724
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 145,719 145,719 145,719 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 83,745 83,745 83,745 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 10,095 $ 10,095 $ 45,819 $ 35,724
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Commissioners Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Taxes 2,037,562 $ 2,037,562 $ 1,895,233 $ (142,329)
Intergovernmental 532,365 532,365 491,493 (40,872)
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures 25,000 25,000 27,282 2,282
Total Revenues 2,594,927 2,594,927 2,414,008 (180,919)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Judicial:
Commissioner's LEAA Project:
Operating Expenses 75,000 - - -
Indigent Application Fee:
Operating Expenses 35,696 35,696 19,343 16,353
Total Judicial 110,696 35,696 19,343 16,353
Human Services:
Senior Citizen's Levy:
Operating Expenses 2,449,068 2,340,867 2,340,867 -
Health:
Children's Trust:
Operating Expenses 45,859 45,859 45,859 -
Total Human Services 2,494.927 2,386,726 2,386,726 -
Total Expenditures 2,605,623 2,422,422 2,406,069 16,353
Net Change in Fund Balance (10,696) 172,505 7,939 (164,566)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 10,448 10,448 10,448 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 251 251 251 -
Fund Balance, End of Year 3 $ 183,204 $ 18,638 $ (164,566)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Treasurer's Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Taxes $ - $ - $ 4,367 $ 4,367
Investment Income 500 500 197 (303)
Other Revenue - - 679 679
Total Revenues 500 500 5,243 4,743
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive:
DETAC:
Personnel and Fringes - 61,061 31,323 29,738
Operating Expenses - 337,406 16,611 320,795
Prepaid Interest:
Personnel and Fringes 6,449 6,449 - 6,449
Operating Expenses 1,051 1,051 - 1,051
Total Expenditures 7,500 405,967 47,934 358,033
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (7,000) (405,467) (42,691) 362,776
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In - 398,467 398,447 (20)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 398,467 398,447 (20)
Net Change in Fund Balance (7,000) (7,000) 355,756 362,756
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 7,543 7,543 7,543 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 543 $ 543 $ 363,299 $ 362,756
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis

Community Development Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works:
C.D.B.G.:
Personnel and Fringes
Operating Expenses

Housing Rehab:
Operating Expenses

Project Advances:
Operating Expenses

Regional Planning Commission:
Operating Expenses

Community Housing Improvement:
Personnel and Fringes
Operating Expenses
Total Public Works

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Advances In
Transfers In
Advances Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance, End of Year

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
$ 769,010 $ 769,010 $ 449,530 $ (319,480)
769,010 769,010 449,530 (319,480)
30,040 34,700 34,214 486
270,491 265,831 263,500 2,331
164 164 - 164
98 98 - 98
1,502 1,502 1,502 -
15,010 15,010 14,293 717
459,234 459,234 456,161 3,073
776,539 776,539 769,670 6,869
776,539 776,539 769,670 6,869
(7,529) (7,529) (320,140) (312,611)
89,800 89,800 54,329 (35,471)
500 500 500 -
(122,900) (89,629) (58,329) 31,300
(32,600) 671 (3,500) (4,171)
(40,129) (6,858) (323,640) (316,782)
52,119 52,119 52,119 -
1,765 1,765 1,765 -
$ 13,755 $ 47,026 $ (269,756)  $ (316,782)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Prosecuting Attorney Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 393,201 $ 622,097 $ 210,057 $ (412,040)
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures 175,000 175,000 58,934 (116,066)
Investment Income - - 85 85
Other Revenue 268,288 273,543 228,117 (45,426)
Total Revenues 836,489 1,070,640 497,193 (573,447)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Judicial:
Prosecutor's Federal Grant:
Personnel and Fringes - 10,874 10,874 -
CAC Trust:
Personnel and Fringes 15,920 12,426 6,895 5,531
Operating Expenses 10,717 15,972 14,887 1,085
Capital Asset Expense 600 600 541 59
Total Judicial 27,237 39,872 33,197 6,675
Public Safety:
Drug Task Force:
Operating Expenses 17,618 17,618 - 17,618
Prosecutor's Mandatory Fine:
Personnel and Fringes 38,598 38,553 38,550 3
Operating Expenses 98,748 25,896 20,757 5,139
Prosecutor's Law Enforcement:
Operating Expenses 54,645 54,645 41,596 13,049
VAWI:
Personnel and Fringes 119,067 123,970 113,656 10,314
Operating Expenses 153,992 211,493 207,512 3,981
Juvenile/Victim/Child Advocate:
Personnel and Fringes 49,612 69,823 54,047 15,776
Operating Expenses 3,884 12,569 3,175 9,394
VOCA (CAC) Grant:
Personnel and Fringes 175,977 132,825 121,928 10,897
Operating Expenses 17,900 17,900 17,265 635
Capital Asset Expense 4,000 4,000 3,784 216
CAC Prevention:
Operating Expenses 3,750 3,750 3,670 80
Total Public Safety 737,791 713,042 625,940 87,102
(Continued)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Prosecuting Attorney Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Human Services:
Victim Trust:
Operating Expenses 1,000 27 - 27
Total Human Services 1,000 27 - 27
Total Expenditures 766,028 752,941 659,137 93,804
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures 70,461 317,699 (161,944) (479,643)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers Out (1,672) (1,672) - 1,672
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,672) (1,672) - 1,672
Net Change in Fund Balance 68,789 316,027 (161,944) (477,971)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 216,769 216,769 216,769 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 14,440 14,440 14,440 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 299,998 $ 547,236 $ 69,265 $ (477,971)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Sheriff Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 133,382 $ 207,446 $ 173,646 $ (33,800)
Charges for Services 100,000 100,000 92,130 (7,870)
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures 48,000 48,000 34,807 (13,193)
Other Revenue 120 19,120 22,033 2,913
Total Revenues 281,502 374,566 322,616 (51,950)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Safety:
Sheriff Law Enforcement Trust:
Operating Expenses 20,000 47,800 47,278 522
Sheriff Mandatory Fine:
Operating Expenses 6,000 5,452 - 5,452
Enforcement and Education:
Personnel and Fringes 34,876 33,717 30,977 2,740
Operating Expenses 1,050 1,050 967 83
Indigent Drivers Alcohol:
Operating Expenses 13,000 13,000 - 13,000
Jail Commissary Trust:
Operating Expenses 75,110 75,110 48,126 26,984
Jail Social Security Incentive:
Operating Expenses 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Sheriff Asset Forfeiture:
Operating Expenses 81 74,144 11,890 62,254
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 2002:
Operating Expenses 49 49 - 49
Carry Concealed Weapon:
Personnel and Fringes - 6,807 6,371 436
Operating Expenses 52,179 35,768 35,767 1
Jail Pay for Stay:
Operating Expenses 697 697 - 697
Sheriff 911 Wireless:
Personnel and Fringes - 113,171 103,562 9,609
Operating Expenses 128,381 15,211 6,042 9,169
(Continued)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis

Sheriff Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Sheriff Training/Reimbursement:

Operating Expenses 13,010 13,010 13,010 -

Total Expenditures 345,433 435,986 303,990 131,996

Net Change in Fund Balance (63,931) (61,420) 18,626 80,046
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 91,292 91,292 91,292 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 22,289 22,289 22,289 -

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 49,650 $ 52,161 $ 132,207 $ 80,046
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Common Pleas Court Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 187,404 187,404 $ 187,404 $ -
Charges for Services 148,000 148,000 141,682 (6,318)
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures 340,000 340,000 272,061 (67,939)
Total Revenues 675,404 675,404 601,147 (74,257)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Judicial:
Clerk's Computer Maintenance:
Operating Expenses 139,073 139,073 68,315 70,758
Computer Legal Research Services:
Operating Expenses 9,500 9,500 1,261 8,239
Jury Amenity:
Operating Expenses 945 945 743 202
Common Pleas Special Projects:
Personnel and Fringes 248,636 254,691 253,319 1,372
Operating Expenses 20,000 13,945 1,919 12,026
Total Judicial 418,154 418,154 325,557 92,597
Public Safety:
Department of Rehabilitation Correction:
Personnel and Fringes 181,979 181,979 177,174 4,805
Operating Expenses 5,425 5,425 4,004 1,421
Common Pleas Court Probation Fee:
Personnel and Fringes 44177 44177 43,878 299
Operating Expenses 4,000 4,000 1,247 2,753
Total Public Safety 235,581 235,581 226,303 9,278
Debt Service:
Principal 25,000 25,000 25,000 -
Interest 2,575 2,575 2,575 -
Total Debt Service 27,575 27,575 27,575 -
Total Expenditures 681,310 681,310 579,435 101,875
Net Change in Fund Balance (5,906) (5,906) 21,712 27,618
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 317,515 317,515 317,515 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 17,073 17,073 17,073 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 328,682 328,682 $ 356,300 $ 27,618
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Domestic Relations Court Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures $ 83,500 $ 83,500 $ 77,250 $ (6,250)
Total Revenues 83,500 83,500 77,250 (6,250)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Judicial:
Domestic Relations Judicial:
Personnel and Fringes - 15,387 12,988 2,399
Capital Asset Expense - 15,450 15,450 -
Total Expenditures - 30,837 28,438 2,399
Net Change in Fund Balance 83,500 52,663 48,812 (3,851)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 89,038 89,038 89,038 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 172,538 $ 141,701 $ 137,850 $ (3,851)

- 128 -



CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Probate Court Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Charges for Services $ 42,700 $ 42,700 $ 45,453 $ 2,753
Total Revenues 42,700 42,700 45,453 2,753
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive:
Indigent Guardianship:
Operating Expenses 40,000 40,000 13,942 26,058
Total Legislative and Executive 40,000 40,000 13,942 26,058
Judicial:
Probate Computer Maintenance:
Operating Expenses 14,500 14,500 6,520 7,980
Conduct of Business:
Personnel and Fringes 800 800 - 800
Probate Computer Research:
Operating Expenses 12,000 12,000 - 12,000
Probate Special Projects:
Operating Expenses 1,900 1,900 80 1,820
Total Judicial 29,200 29,200 6,600 22,600
Total Expenditures 69,200 69,200 20,542 48,658
Net Change in Fund Balance (26,500) (26,500) 24911 51,411
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 134,111 134,111 134,111 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 107,611 $ 107,611 $ 159,022 $ 51,411
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Juvenile Court Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 1,660,853 $ 1,660,853 $ 1,583,338 $ (77,515)
Charges for Services 1,692,100 1,692,100 786,560 (905,540)
Other Revenue 3,000 5,775 3,550 (2,225)
Total Revenues 3,355,953 3,358,728 2,373,448 (985,280)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Judicial:
Juvenile Court Computer Maintenance:
Operating Expenses 45,000 45,000 - 45,000
Juvenile Court Legal Research:
Operating Expenses 11,001 11,001 4,001 7,000
SVAA Juvenile Grant:
Personnel and Fringes 2,411 2,411 2,411 -
Juvenile Indigent Driver Alcohol:
Operating Expenses 2,474 2,474 - 2,474
Total Judicial 60,886 60,886 6,412 54,474
Public Safety:
Mediation Pilot Project:
Personnel and Fringes 158,248 138,450 137,250 1,200
Operating Expenses 9,291 7,733 5,904 1,829
Felony Delinquent Care & Custody:
Personnel and Fringes 1,131,450 1,056,988 702,215 354,773
Operating Expenses 576,332 602,332 403,048 199,284
VOCA/Court Appointed Special Advocate Grant:
Personnel and Fringes 36,013 27,659 26,870 789
Mediation Service Fee:
Personnel and Fringes 23,139 23,139 11,592 11,547
Operating Expenses 32,280 32,280 536 31,744
Title IV-E Contract:
Personnel and Fringes 155,572 155,572 145,285 10,287
Operating Expenses 1,758,900 1,174,625 944,352 230,273
Title IV-E Juvenile Probation:
Personnel and Fringes 420,300 262,167 154,245 107,922
Operating Expenses 258,093 260,868 133,064 127,804
Total Public Safety 4,559,618 3,741,813 2,664,361 1,077,452
Total Expenditures 4,620,504 3,802,699 2,670,773 1,131,926
(Continued)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Juvenile Court Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(Continued)
Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (1,264,551) (443,971) (297,325) 146,646
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 8,503 8,503 - (8,503)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 8,503 8,503 - (8,503)
Net Change in Fund Balance (1,256,048) (435,468) (297,325) 138,143
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,096,784 1,096,784 1,096,784 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 382,036 382,036 382,036 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 222,772 $ 1,043,352 $ 1,181,495 $ 138,143
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Clerk of Courts Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Charges for Services $ 791,000 $ 791,000 $ 802,166 $ 11,166
Total Revenues 791,000 791,000 802,166 11,166
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive:
Certificate of Title Administration:
Personnel and Fringes 494,722 494,722 434,500 60,222
Operating Expenses 37,644 37,644 25,697 11,947
Common Pleas Clerk:
Personnel and Fringes 88,024 87,861 86,571 1,290
Operating Expenses 34,360 34,523 32,170 2,353
Total Legislative and Executive 654,750 654,750 578,938 75,812
Public Safety:
Clerk of Courts Home Arrest Monitoring:
Operating Expenses 38,274 38,274 38,274 -
Total Public Safety 38,274 38,274 38,274 -
Total Expenditures 693,024 693,024 617,212 75,812
Net Change in Fund Balance 97,976 97,976 184,954 86,978
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 346,611 346,611 346,611 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 29,086 29,086 29,086 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 473,673 $ 473,673 $ 560,651 $ 86,978
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Board of Elections Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Total Revenues $ - $ - $ - $ -
EXPENDITURES:
Total Expenditures - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance - - - -
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,089 1,089 1,089 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 1,089 $ 1,089 $ 1,089 $ -
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Recorder Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Charges for Services $ 140,000 $ 140,000 $ 115,273 $ (24,727)
Other Revenue 8,000 8,000 4,276 (3,724)
Total Revenues 148,000 148,000 119,549 (28,451)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive:
County Recorder's Special Equipment:
Operating Expenses 104,666 121,235 121,235 -
Capital Asset Expense 24,000 5,000 5,000 -
Recorder Housing:
Operating Expenses 8,000 6,760 6,760 -
Total Expenditures 136,666 132,995 132,995 -
Net Change in Fund Balance 11,334 15,005 (13,446) (28,451)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year (8,482) (8,482) (8,482) -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 17,666 17,666 17,666 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 20,518 $ 24,189 $ (4,262) $ (28,451)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
FEMA Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

REVENUES:

Total Revenues $ - $ - $

EXPENDITURES:

Total Expenditures - -

Net Change in Fund Balance - -

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year - -

Fund Balance, End of Year $ - $ - $
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Emergency Management Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 584,228 $ 627,228 $ 460,075 $ (167,153)
Other Revenue 29,556 29,556 17,773 (11,783)
Total Revenues 613,784 656,784 477,848 (178,936)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Safety:
Emergency Planning:
Personnel and Fringes 17,633 17,135 4,238 12,897
Operating Expenses 66,567 66,567 12,010 54,557
Hazardous Materials:
Personnel and Fringes 3,539 539 - 539
Operating Expenses 46,352 42,169 14,143 28,026
FEMA FYO03 Certification Grant:
Operating Expenses 5,169 6,669 6,669 -
State Homeland Security Grant 2003:
Personnel and Fringes 60,837 60,837 59,674 1,163
Operating Expenses 145,523 87,790 83,610 4,180
EMA Trust:
Operating Expenses 4,999 143 143 -
EMA 911 Government Assistance:
Operating Expenses 351,145 351,145 351,144 1
Total Expenditures 701,764 632,994 531,631 101,363
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (87,980) 23,790 (53,783) (77,573)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Advances In 30,000 30,000 30,000 -
Transfers In - - 7,500 7,500
Advances Out (30,000) (30,000) (30,000) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - 7,500 7,500
Net Change in Fund Balance (87,980) 23,790 (46,283) (70,073)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 47,138 47,138 47,138 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 46,201 46,201 46,201 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 5,359 $ 117,129 $ 47,056 $ (70,073)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Veteran's Memorial Trust Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Total Revenues $ - $ - $ - $ -
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Human Services:
Operating Expenses 1,964 1,964 - 1,964
Total Expenditures 1,964 1,964 - 1,964
Net Change in Fund Balance (1,964) (1,964) - 1,964
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,964 1,964 1,964 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ - $ - $ 1,964 $ 1,964
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Ditch Maintenance Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Special Assessments $ 212,424 $ 215,819 $ 191,640 $ (24,179)
Total Revenues 212,424 215,819 191,640 (24,179)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works:
Ditch Maintenance Rotary:
Operating Expenses 226,343 226,343 200,152 26,191
Total Expenditures 226,343 226,343 200,152 26,191
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (13,919) (10,524) (8,512) 2,012
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 211,956 211,956 190,899 (21,057)
Transfers Out (211,851) (190,901) (190,899) 2
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 105 21,055 - (21,055)
Net Change in Fund Balance (13,814) 10,531 (8,512) (19,043)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 54,989 54,989 54,989 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 82,138 82,138 82,138 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 123,313 $ 147,658 $ 128,615 $ (19,043)
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In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis

CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

Law Library Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Fees, Fines and Forfeitures
Other Revenue

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Judicial:
Personnel and Fringes
Operating Expenses
Total Judicial
Total Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance, End of Year

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
$ 67,062 67,062 $ 83,653 $ 16,591
127,494 127,494 107,176 (20,318)
3,750 3,750 5,185 1,435
198,306 198,306 196,014 (2,292)
79,124 79,124 73,323 5,801
162,010 162,010 153,703 8,307
241,134 241,134 227,026 14,108
241,134 241,134 227,026 14,108
(42,828) (42,828) (31,012) 11,816
600,455 600,455 600,455 -
25,626 25,626 25,626 -
$ 583,253 583,253 $ 595,069 $ 11,816
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
ARRA Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 1,355,300 $ 1,355,300 $ 100,426 $ (1,254,874)
Total Revenues 1,355,300 1,355,300 100,426 (1,254,874)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works:
Community Development:
Personnel and Fringes 16,250 53,700 6,587 47,113
Operating Expenses 1,298,900 226,674 199,329 27,345
Engineer:
Operating Expenses 38,994 38,994 38,994 -
Total Public Works 1,354,144 319,368 244,910 74,458
Total Expenditures 1,354,144 319,368 244,910 74,458
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures 1,156 1,035,932 (144,484) (1,180,416)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Advances In 4,000 4,000 4,000 -
Advances Out (8,000) (8,000) - 8,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (4,000) (4,000) 4,000 8,000
Net Change in Fund Balance (2,844) 1,031,932 (140,484) (1,172,416)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year (195,670) (195,670) (195,670) -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 198,838 198,838 198,838 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 324 $ 1,035,100 $ (137,316) § (1,172,416)

- 140 -



CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
General Bond Retirement Debt Service Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Other Revenue $ 119,334 $ 119,334 $ 102,000 $ (17,334)
Total Revenues 119,334 119,334 102,000 (17,334)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Debt service:
Bonds 835,000 835,000 835,000 -
Interest 436,062 436,062 436,061 1
Total Expenditures 1,271,062 1,271,062 1,271,061 1
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (1,151,728) (1,151,728) (1,169,061) (17,333)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Advances In - 11,000 11,000 -
Transfers In 1,136,730 1,136,730 1,136,730 -
Advances Out - (11,000) - 11,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,136,730 1,136,730 1,147,730 11,000
Net Change in Fund Balance (14,998) (14,998) (21,331) (6,333)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 21,896 21,896 21,896 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 6,398 $ 6,398 $ 565 $ (6,333)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Human Services Bond Retirement Debt Service Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Charges for Services $ 314,448 $ 314,448 $ 318,523 $ 4,075
Total Revenues 314,448 314,448 318,523 4,075
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Debt service:
Bonds 235,000 235,000 235,000 -
Interest 79,448 79,448 79,448 -
Total Expenditures 314,448 314,448 314,448 -
Net Change in Fund Balance - - 4,075 4,075
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 8,950 8,950 8,950 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 8,950 $ 8,950 $ 13,025 $ 4,075
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Permanent Improvement Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Total Revenues $ - $ - $ - $ -
EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay:
Operating Expenses 335,000 335,000 101,247 233,753
Capital Asset Expense 414,320 414,320 301,515 112,805
Total Capital Outlay 749,320 749,320 402,762 346,558
Debt Service:
Principal 500,000 500,000 500,000 -
Interest 6,250 6,250 6,250 -
Total Debt Service 506,250 506,250 506,250 -
Total Expenditures 1,255,570 1,255,570 909,012 346,558
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (1,255,570) (1,255,570) (909,012) 346,558
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Note Proceeds 1,000,000 1,000,000 715,194 (284,806)
Transfers In 201,250 201,250 201,250 -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,201,250 1,201,250 916,444 (284,806)
Net Change in Fund Balance (54,320) (54,320) 7,432 61,752
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 33,858 33,858 33,858 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 21,320 21,320 21,320 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 858 $ 858 $ 62,610 $ 61,752

- 143 -



CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
DoDD Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Total Revenues $ - $ - $ - $ -
EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay:
Operating Expenses 507,670 1,083,351 1,079,288 4,063
Total Capital Outlay 507,670 1,083,351 1,079,288 4,063
Debt Service:
Principal 150,000 150,000 150,000 -
Interest 77,700 77,700 77,615 85
Total Debt Service 227,700 227,700 227,615 85
Total Expenditures 735,370 1,311,051 1,306,903 4,148
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (735,370) (1,311,051) (1,306,903) 4,148
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In 659,100 1,234,781 1,260,961 26,180
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 659,100 1,234,781 1,260,961 26,180
Net Change in Fund Balance (76,270) (76,270) (45,942) 30,328
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 10,748 10,748 10,748 -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 65,522 65,522 65,522 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ - $ - $ 30,328 $ 30,328
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Dayton-Springfield/Old Mill Road Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 225598  § 464,056  $ 53166 $ (410,890)
Total Revenues 225,598 464,056 53,166 (410,890)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay:
Operating Expenses 225,598 304,056 304,056 -
Total Expenditures 225,598 304,056 304,056 -
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures - 160,000 (250,890) (410,890)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Advances In 65,598 65,598 65,598 -
Advances Out (65,598) (65,598) (65,598) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance - 160,000 (250,890) (410,890)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year (65,598) (65,598) (65,598) -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 65,598 65,598 65,598 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ - $ 160,000 $ (250,890) $ (410,890)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis

Issue II/OPWC Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 3,254,880 $ 3,254,880 $ 735,655 $ (2,519,225)
Total Revenues 3,254,880 3,254,880 735,655 (2,519,225)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay:
Operating Expenses 3,254,880 2,789,958 2,745,603 44,355
Total Expenditures 3,254,880 2,789,958 2,745,603 44,355
Net Change in Fund Balance - 464,922 (2,009,948) (2,474,870)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year (425,895) (425,895) (425,895) -
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 425,895 425,895 425,895 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ - $ 464,922 $ (2,009948) § (2,474,870)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Guardrail Project Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 21,739 21,739 $ 21,739 $ -
Total Revenues 21,739 21,739 21,739 -
EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay:
Operating Expenses 21,739 21,739 21,739 -
Total Expenditures 21,739 21,739 21,739 -

Net Change in Fund Balance -

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year -

Fund Balance, End of Year $ -
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
South Vienna Development Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 31,000 $ 31,000 $ 49,210 $ 18,210
Total Revenues 31,000 31,000 49,210 18,210
EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service:
Principal 50,000 50,000 50,000 -
Interest 14,313 14,313 14,313 -
Total Expenditures 64,313 64,313 64,313 -
Net Change in Fund Balance (33,313) (33,313) (15,103) 18,210
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 74,967 74,967 74,967 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 41,654 $ 41,654 $ 59,864 $ 18,210
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
County Resurfacing Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 1,902,650 $ 1,902,650 $ 54,079 $  (1,848,571)
Total Revenues 1,902,650 1,902,650 54,079 (1,848,571)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay:
Operating Expenses 1,902,650 1,401,817 1,401,816 1
Total Expenditures 1,902,650 1,401,817 1,401,816 1
Net Change in Fund Balance - 500,833 (1,347,737) (1,848,570)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year - - - -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ - $ 500,833 $ (1,347,737) $  (1,848,570)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Veteran's Park Renovation Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Other Revenue $ - - 175 $ 175
Total Revenues - - 175 175
EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay:
Operating Expenses - - - -
Total Expenditures - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance - - 175 175
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 100 100 100 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 100 100 275 $ 175
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Lower Valley Widening Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 200,000 $ 539,170 $ 117,219 $ (421,951)
Total Revenues 200,000 $ 539,170 $ 117,219 $ (421,951)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay:
Operating Expenses 200,000 314,170 314,170 -
Total Expenditures 200,000 314,170 314,170 -
Net Change in Fund Balance - 225,000 (196,951) (421,951)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year - - - -
Fund Balance, End of Year - $ 225,000 $  (196,951) § (421,951)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis

UV/CL Intersection Improvement Capital Projects Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay:
Operating Expenses
Total Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
$ 160,000 $ 160,000 $ (160,000)
$ 160,000 $ 160,000 $ (160,000)
160,000 - -
160,000 - -
- 160,000 (160,000)
$ - $ 160,000 $ (160,000)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Ditch Construction Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Total Revenues $ - $ - $ - $ -
EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay:
Operating Expenses 29,675 29,675 - 29,675
Total Expenditures 29,675 29,675 - 29,675
Excess (Deficit) Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (29,675) (29,675) - 29,675
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers Out (66,756) (66,756) - 66,756
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (66,756) (66,756) - 66,756
Net Change in Fund Balance (96,431) (96,431) - 96,431
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 98,255 98,255 98,255 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 1,824 $ 1,824 $ 98,255 $ 96,431
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis

Chase Stewart Blind Relief Permanent Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Total Revenues $ - $ - $ - $ -
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Human Services:
Operating Expenses 4,000 4,000 - 4,000
Total Expenditures 4,000 4,000 - 4,000
Net Change in Fund Balance (4,000) (4,000) - 4,000
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 8,601 8,601 8,601 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 4,601 $ 4,601 $ 8,601 4,000

- 154 -



CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary (Non-GAAP) Basis
Chase Stewart Soldier's Relief Permanent Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Investment Income - $ - $ 1,746 $ 1,746
Total Revenues - - 1,746 1,746
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Human Services:
Operating Expenses 36,000 36,000 6,574 29,426
Total Expenditures 36,000 36,000 6,574 29,426
Net Change in Fund Balance (36,000) (36,000) (4,828) 31,172
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 115,964 115,964 115,964 -
Fund Balance, End of Year 79,964 $ 79,964 $ 111,136 $ 31,172
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO

Statistical Tables

This part of the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the County’s overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends S-3-8-7
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
County’s financial position has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity S-8 —S-16
These schedules contain information to help the reader understand and assess the
factors affecting the County’s ability to generate its most significant local
revenue sources, the property tax and the sales tax.

Debt Capacity S-18 — S-21
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of
the County’s current levels of outstanding debt and the County’s ability to issue
additional debt in the future.

Economic and Demogr aphic I nformation S-22 —S-23
These schedules offer economic and demographic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the County’s financial activities take
place and to provide information that facilitates comparisons of financial
information over time and among governments.

Operating I nformation S-24 —S-31
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the County’s financial report relates to the
services the County provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year. The County implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2003;
schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that year.

-S-1-



-S2.-



This page intentionally left blank.



TSS'SLY'SST 858°596°0ST $ SOLYSI'EST § L¥9°8€6°6Y1 $ SPSEEE6ET § 18€°08°611 $ TEEYPO'OIT § LSL9EE'L6 TITESTH
160°1St°61 6L0°€€0°91 00€°126°6 91L'0F0 Y1 T66°5€0°91 80S°0TLST TTLieTy61 SLY'HY9°0T 661485T1
ST8I6VYS 61798816 8L8TTE6S TLLT6LTS 058°8€€°9Y S09°1¥C 0y 788°69L°6C 0SS€LS LT 009°1€Z°6C
9€9°TEL I8 $ 09€9%0°€8  $ L8SOV6°E8  $ 65S1°901°€8  $ €0L'8S6'9L 89T'8IS'ES $ 8TLYSS09 $ TEL'SIT6Y €IV LEE Ty
TLO'EET6T  $ 8E°LIT'8T $ LTTI6V91  § 68€°506 71§ 18T°THO'ST 8LY9IL'6] $ L¥0'81S°0T YL T6¥°91 100°S€S°ST
0609€+'8 2010599 60€°TTL'S SI8T0TY 8¥6°10LY 10€°6¥C°S 9ITYLS'S w60l 189°S10%
78696901 9€¥'LIS'TT  § 816€LLOT $ vLSTOL0T eceoreEor § LLT'LOYYT  § 1€6°sv6 vl $ 66YT8ETT 0TE6ISTT
08Y°ThS9El $ 0Z0°8¥LTEL $ 8€G°889°9€T § 8STEEO'SET $ 9T 16TYCL $ €06°€9L°66 $ S8T°9TS°68  $ 910°5¥8°08 11281989
100°S10°TT LLYT8E'6 166°861°1 106°L€8°6 YrOYEETT LOT 1LY 0T 909°6¥8°€1 €€T'SESII 816°895°8
ST8I6VYS 61798816 8L8°TTE6S TLLT6LTS 058°8€€°9Y S09°1¥T0Y T88°S9L°6T 0SS€LS LT 009°1€£T°6C
¥S9'SE0IL YTo'SLYIL 699°991°€L S8Se0vTL $ 0L£81999 § 160°150°6E  $ L6LOT6'SY  $ €€T9EL9E €60°818°0¢
T10C 0T0C 600¢ 800¢ L00¢ 900¢ S00¢ ¥00¢ €00¢

20130 S,J0JIPNY AJUN0Y) B[ :09IN0S

JUOUIUIOAOD) ATewIlId [e10],

pajoLysaIun

PAILSRY

1gop Paje[aI JO Jou ‘sjassy [eyrde)) ur pajseAu]
“JUOUIUIOAOLD) AT

sanIATOY odA ] -ssoursng €107,

pajoLysaIun

1q9P PaIL[AI JO 10U ‘S)assy [ede)) ur pajsaAu]
:SoNIALOY odK ] -ssoursng

1SSV JON| SOIIAIOY [BJUSWILIOAOL) [BJO0],
pajoLnsaIuN
PAOLISOY
1q9P PoIL[AI JO 10U ‘S)assy [ede)) ur pajsaAu]
SONIATOY [EJUSUIUIOAOD)

T 3INpayds

(Sununoooy Jo siseq [BNIO0Y) SIS X [BOSI] QUIN IS
yusuodwo)) Aq $19ssy 1N
OIHO ‘ALNNOD MYV

-S3-



(ponunuo))

80L°TTO0L $§  160°€T9'8L $  9L8°0TS'68 $  €L0°9€9°68 $  TSS'BOT68 §  6E6TTI'ES $§  €LSL6LT $  991°600FL $  9EL'BO9IL §
¥SSP61°9 016°S9%°9 1€0°€8L9 LEL'B0T'S 990°98€°9 016°SHI°S 696°LEY'L G89°0L6t €L0°60S°S
G86°LET 80T°S61 19CT°LLS - sestees - - - -

- - - - - £00°69t £98v60°C 66¥°€C 6€0°126
L8LOLTT 192°T6€°C 6€L°68C°T Y0T'€S8°1 20S°160°C 119°92L°1 L0161 810°GSL1 1¥9°65S°1
T8L°689°¢ I¥7'8LS°E 1€0°916°¢€ £E6°65¢e’e 620°T19L°E 967°056°C ¥€0°6TH'€ 891°T61°¢ £6£°7€0°¢
¥S1°8TH Y9 181°LSTTL SP8LELTS 9€E LTV S 98%°7T8°T8 6T0°LLELL ¥09°6S€°SL 187°8€0°69 £99°660°99
S60°TTH'T 8ELITY'S €SS0 101°680°T G8LSTO1 0LY'LEY SSLI0ET'T TTI8LOT TTLY6Y'T
9GE VL St €69°T6L LY €SI PPE 19 T9T°8L6'Y9 L¥S 10765 L¥0°S9€°96 760°988°S L6E S8S €S 88°€€9°0S
SHS8EL 0TL 678 871°098 L8T098 0TT'S00°1 YEr 199 029°8L9 SLS959 096°STL
190°SL9‘t 18S°STLL 116°1S1°9 0¥ 1vT6°9 ¥S0'v+8°8 801°8€L°8 S0S°€9¢€°L 0€1°691°C 91t°608°1
L86°8L8 9L8°L06 SEYSHO°1 LT81€9 9LT°806°1 SP1°656 67916 LO0'YT6 719888
6¥S°9¥6 1957L8 718601 185°5¢8 £€7°8€6 6ST8YI°1 6T181T‘1 187°98L°1 0b688
6L8°8L9 S¥S095 989085 YTTYe0‘l 120°ELT’T 0€9°5€S°1 rE8°9PL 1 029°010°C 869°155°C
0EI°EEl’e 00€°66€°€ €8€°108°¢ YLSTLSE 0T8°1Tr'e £99°8€S°1 LSLTOE T 1S1°0TH°1 08€v95°1
TSS'TIT'S  § L91°SE9%y  $  v6L'68F'Y §  OPESOST $  0ESHOES $  TLTE6E9 §  €9VLI0O $ 866°LOYY $§  LYE'SHSY $
S6E'€0TITS  TTHELIOTIS  HTILO6'TETS  98TLLY'OTIS  668°1608TTS  ST6HSSTCIS  T0TOITHITS  SSPTIL'L6 $  0T9PLEOTTS
180°1SES Y6E €1’ 95€°84T’S L9TOIY'S T01°029°S SSHEIT9 98Y TV 1¥6°T20° WL THTY
T09°L20°T 069°0T1°T 918°¥L0°T YPLYL6 ] L98°€91°CT 607 19€°C 1€€°6SS°T 9TL098°1 LTETSST
6LV ETEE YOL THO'E 0bS‘ELI‘E €Tsiser'e SETISH'E 940°TS8°¢ SSI1°L06°C SITT91°C SLE689T
YIETIL901 LTO0ISITI 89L°859°9C1 610°L90°1CI1 L6L TLYTTI 097 T#9°911 SILLYL 601 YIS°6EL°E6 816°TEL'901
TLL'L99 S9L°€€9 918°¢69 996°0€L 8¥L°6T8 LT9TSS 109°0€¥ r9°v0€ 9LT 11V
L96°6TT°1 S00°8Y€°1 0S€°99t°1 LL8LSST 0€5°626°1 LSS THOT €1T°T69°1 S69°LY9°1 069'¢19°C
881°706°C¢E 989°L59°8¢ 86 ELL VY £60°605 ¢t LIT°STE €Y Y9L'6C8Er 9€6°€0L T £€6°S8Y e 1LT'8L6°OY
£08°900°€T €8S YSS LT ¥TT°9L0°9C ¥€T°SE0°1T £0Sv9E T 626°866°CT TI8°T6Y €T 990°092°CT 899°T1L 1T
9¥6°LSL6 €SP ET0 Y1 6LE09Y°6 €5T€LO0T 00€°129°6 €T0°LOY'T1 SETTOL01 8LI°09LY vL8'SESTI
116°€65°S1 768°059°S1 €6TE6'ST 0r1°986°t1 WIYI6YI 618°0%9°LI LIFTIY91 Y8E6EL Y] €LL'ER6' Y]
089°189°CI TTT6Y9‘El ¥10°60°t1 796°859°€1 I¥1°L06°€1 6¥8°S15°6 L¥8°65€°8 L11°650°8 1SS°8L6°L
9v0°0L8°0T §  19¥T66'6 $  PPLIILFT $  TOY'SISST §  9¥T08S'El §  T68€9S8 $ $S9€S69 $ L6Y'T8FL §  SI8BISY §

1102 0T0C 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 700C €002

SONUOASY WeISold JUSWIUIIAOD) ATBWLI] [€J0],

SonuoAY weIdold sanIAnoy odA ] -ssoulsng [B10],
suonnquIuo)) pue syueln) fende)
suonnqLyuo)) pue syueln funeredp
o1 M
10MIS
SOJTAIAS I0] SaF1ey)
:SoIIANOY odA I -ssaursng

SONUAAYY WeI01J SONIANOY [BJUSWILIOAOL) [B)0 ]
suonnquIuo)) pue syueln) rende)
suonnqyuo)) pue syuein) Sunerodo
UON)EOI00Y PUE UONBAIOSUO))
SOOIAIOS UBWINE
YiesH
SHIOM dliqnd
Ky1odoid 29 suosiog Jo AjLmoog/A1ejes orqng
[erorpnf
QATINOAXH 29 OATJR[SISO]
JUSUIUIOAOL) [BIOUSD)
:SOJTAIAS 0] SaF1ey)
'SONIATIOY [BJUSWILIDAOLD)
:sanuansy weaboid

sasuadx 7 JuowuIdA0D) ATRWILI] [B10],

sasuadxy sonianoy odA ] -ssoursng [e10],
Iofe M\
IoMIS

:SoNIALOY odK ] -ssoursng

S9SuadxF SONIANOY [BJUSWILIOAOL) [810 ],
asuadx 1sa10ju]
UONBAIIIY puk UOHBAIISUOD)
SIJIAIOG UBWINY
ey
SIOM ONqng
Ayoges otqngd
[eropng
QATINDOXH 29 SANE[SISO]
JJUSUWITLIOAOLD) [RIQUAN)
SONIAIOY [BIUSWIULIIAOL)
JUOWIUIOAOD) ATeWLI]
:sasuadx3

(Sununoooy Jo siseq [BNIOOY) SIS X [BOSI] QUIN IS

19SSV 10N UI seSuey)
OIHO ‘ALNNOD MYV

-S4 -



20130 SJ03IpNY Aunoy) yIe) :99In0g

v69'60Ly $  (LO6'8ITT) $ 8I19¥T’e  § 201°509°01 § IS1°Z8Sy  § 6¥09¢v'6  § SLS'LOL'TI $ sysesrer § (9szoTID) $ $19SSY 10N UT 95UEY) JUSWUIAAOL) ATEWLI] [EI0L
vET'S16 11912L°1 8€8°065°1 (z68°9¢€1) 95EYIS (695°108) 90£°920°Y 0¥L9S6 ¥T8°6SEl sonIANOY odA | -ssoutsngy
09%'v6L'E  $  (8IS0V6'E) $ 08T'SS9°T  § v66°17L01 § S6LLIL'E  $ 819°L£T°0T § 6971898 § so8'9zccl $ (080°9LYT) § SOIIAIIOY [BJUSWUISA0D
s19ssy/ 18N Ul abueyd
18€°0S1°9 § €THIES'SY $ 99€°TE9'Sy § SIEIYLY $ 86159V Ey § ST0'891°6Y $ €0T°0CI'vy $ v€89€6°9€ § 879°SYT'8E § JUBWILIDA0D ATeWLi] [B10],
19L°1L S60°611 €91°96 86949 T6€°8Y 9L6°G9C £28°050°1 9668 €5+'88 SNIANOY odA | -ssoulsng [e30],
€EL'IL S60°61Y €91°96 8€9°19 T6€°8Y 9L6°S9C £28°050°1 9668 TEL18 ANUIAIY YO
14 - - - - - - - 12L9 QWIOOU] JUSWISIAU]
1SonIATOY 9dA T -ssoursng
0T9°8L0'9Y 8TETIV'SY €0T°9LSSY LLY18E LY 901°LIv ey 6%0°C06'St 08€°690°ct 8€8°L76°9¢€ SLILST'8E SONIANOY [BIUSWUUISA0D) [810 ]
€ITEEY'T 1¥$°€T1°T LYL966°1 £60°CEY’1 90L'8E1°T SII°LLST 9L9°€70°C vE8TOV'l 8IL019°S ONULASY IO
8€S°880°1 ¥SLS08 SYTTSEl 0¥8°C16°C v€8°091°Y 1L1°961°€ £€8°66S°1 8LI6IL 956°816 SWOoU] JUSUNSIAU]
200°809°t 6v67TES r1T°S68°S S¥9°60T°9 706208y 6ILTLIE 8€E8I19 008°8T8°E YT9TrL'E swergold oyroads o3
PAIOLISAY JOU SUONNGLIUOY) PUB SJUBID)
S88vLE0T 080°1S¥°61 vPT'6L9°81 6S6°16L°81 128°6Tr°cl £€8°9L8°61 ¥60°810°S1 98L°€9S°TI IvEerT Tl SO[BS SAISSIULIDG
€€T°568°1 €29°612°C 988°6¥CC 98€°TCTT LLY'SE0T €L6°€00°C T9€°€0€°1 00S°8LE‘T rrE96T1 S,Uezn17) I0TUog
0vS'STL6 960°LSL’6 69€°199°6 68T°SL86 0€0°€1S 01 €5L°T€8°01 YIL'LY901 018°69L°01 919°6€€°8 A@IN
078°08C°C 1€1°162°C 6¥6vLTT T01°56€°C T9TY99°C 680°678°C 190°€$8°C €16°LT6C 1€V°T6LT SUWOH SUaIpIIY)
68€TLYE  $ pSIEry'e  § 6¥599r°c €9€°IPS’E  $ TL8ILYE  $ 96£°€I8°C  § TsTS0s’E  § LIO'LEEE  $ SPIEIT’E  $ sasoding [e1oUaD)
:10J pa1AdT soxe] Ayodoig
1soXe],

SONIATIOY [BIUSWUUIIAOD)
:S18sSY 18N Ul saBuey) 48U10 pue senusAsy [eJsuss

(L89°0OF1H) §

(0€€°050°8Y) $

(8T°98€°TH) §

(€1T°1+8°9¢) §

(L€°€88°8¢) §

(9L6°1€L°6E) $

(829°TIF19) §

(68T°€SL°ED) $

(#88°59¢€°6€) $ ONUAAY/(asuadxy) 19N JUSWUIIAON) ATRWLI] [B)O],

€LY EH8
091°¥8T°TH) $

91ST0ET
(9v8°Tse6r) $

SLOYES'T
(€26°026°ch) $

(0£5°102)
(£89°6£9°9¢) $

¥96°S9L
(11€°6v9°6€) $

(S¥SL90°T)
(1€F'799°8¢) $

€85°SL6C
(1T1°88€¥€) §

YPLLY6
(£€0°TOLYD) $

1LELITT soniAnoy odA | -ssaursng
(ssz'eeo’or) $ SOUIAIOY [BIUSWIUIIAOD)
:anuanay/(ssuadx3) 18N

T10C

0T0C

600¢

800¢

L00¢

900¢

§500¢

¥00¢

€00¢

¢ 3INpayds

(ponunuo))
(Sununodoy Jo siseq [BNIDOY) SIBO A [BISI SUIN ISB]
S198SY JON Ul saguey)

OIHO ‘ALNNOD M¥V1D

-S-5-



90130 S, J0JIpNY AIUN0)) JIe[) :99I1n0S

*€00 UI SunIe)s Spunj [BJUSUINIOAOS UT PAPN[OUT ST YOTYM ‘SPUNJ yons om) sey Auno)) Y], ‘9dAJ, pun,J [2JUSWUIIAOL) B OUWIEIdq
pue spun,j JudUBULIdJ paweual a1om adA) puny Areronpiy e se payrodar Ajsnoradid ‘spung isni], ojqepuadXouoN
*SpunNy [EJUSWIUIOAOS JO TUOTTUIIOP A} PaSULYd YIIYM “p¢ Juatd)els gSyo pardope Ajuno)) j1e[) “YIVD €00 o s SurumiSog

"T10T ‘1€ I0qUIdos(] JO St PoSUBYD dIOM SUOTBOIJISSE[d d0UB[B( PUN] }[NSoI €
1JoQ adA1 pun4 [eluBWUIBA0S pue Bunioday souefeg pund ‘4§ "ON JUSWL)S PIeog SPIEPUR)S [BJUSWUIdA0L pajuswe[dur Ajuno)) oy,

OI0N

SEC0I86T §  LLL'YT6LT §  8I0LEEST S 8TEBPIST §  LT6LOTIT $  0SS9ESTI §  SICLLEOT §  0€SOEL'€T §  PISLLSS S 6TT69TTI § Spun [BJUSWILIAA0D 910 [[V [BIOL
(€8T°TTS) - - - - - - - - - pousgisseun)
€L8°66£°6T - - - - - - - - - PIOLNSTY
SY6°TE6 - - - - - - - - - s[qepuadsuoN
- 886°6t 620°9S 8€8°6S SE6°LS 769°tS 068°0S 809°Lty TT6°sy - Spun,f JUSUBWLIOJ
- (LT8°090°1) (€L6°L00°T) (298°86€°L) (98L°989°5) (89€°298°7) (T01°L85°L) (LOT TEV'6) (9$+°0%0°S) (018°9LEE) spuny s1vofo1g [eyde)
- 9¥8°0¢ 16£°98 965°0Th 0LL'S8 150°9S LEE9T 1112 875°9T 9TLGLT Spunyg 9014198 192
- YLI'P96°ET 650°¥8T°€T LITSH8°ST 69L°9LT'ST 760°6LE Y 688°SL6°ET T8F°08L°TT 6€T°06L°L 1L8°68S°TT Spun,{ aNUOANY [eroads
] paj1odoy] ‘paArasaIun
- $  960°0v6 §  TISBIE'S §  6ESTITTY9 $  6ETPLS9  $  6L0G06°0T $  00€T88E §  9EHLOCTT §  I8ESSLS § TSHY88'E § PIAIOSY
Spun, [BIUSWIUISAOCLD) YO [[V
GSSRTSTT §  LYI'PT0'6  §  98T°900°6 §  €L9°GE0°0T § 168896 $  88L°C060T $  6T688L9 §  L80°680°S §  pL8PLEL §  TITTITOL § pun, [I0US0) (210,
LTY'TLS6 - - - - - - - - - pausisseun
0€6vTIT - - - - - - - - - pousissy
861°1¢8 - - - - - - - - - a[qepuadsuoN
- PP0°6TH L 899°€95°L SPL€T0'8 LT0°990°L £PY°TEs’8 TP8'SIL'S S06°SSTY TT6'8TY'9 YTI68C°6 PoAISSAIUN]
- $  €OI°S6S'T S SIOTHHT $  8TETIOT $  68TIOT §  SPETILOT § L80°€TO'T §  T8I'EE6 § TS6SK6  $ L80°€T8  § PIAIOSY
pung TeIdudn)
1102 0T0Z 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 002 €002 2002

£ 3INpayds

(Sununosoy Jo siseq [enIo0y PIIJIPOIA) SIed X [BISI] U] Ise]

spun,{ [BJUSUIULIIAOL) ‘SdoUR[Rg PUN

OIHO ‘ALNNOD MYV

-S-6 -



20130 SJoypny Kuno) ey :90In0g

€00 Ul SunJe)s Spuny [EUSIUIOA0S UI POPNJIUL ST YOIYM ‘SPUny yons om} sey Ajuno) oy, "odA ] punyg [E)USWILIOAOLD) & dWILIAq
pue spun,f jusueuLIdd Paweudl a19Mm adA) puny Areronpyy e se pejrodar Asnoraaid ‘spun jsni] d[qepuadXauoN
*SpUNy [EJUSIIUIOAOS JO UOHIULJOP Oy} PASUBYD YoIYM ‘¢ Judwolel§ gSyo pardope Ljuno) yier) YAV €007 2yp pim SuruuiSog

991067 $  (08€v6E) $ cocest'c $ (Lv8TIL) § 015°9S¥°Tl § v60'vLT9 §  (€LE6SOD)  § 6zcel8T  §  (1L6°€IL9) LTLYYL $
0869 1€1°SYE 680°€LE Y - LOL'0SS°01 (506°€9) STE'9S - 8SH'LT 000°591°Y
(L6L°9Y0°Y) (sTs'61L'®) (TrLLL'®) (s9r'011°6) (825°€89°97) (z16°028°€0) (o€L°0zL'61) (z6co1Z'01) (¥78°06T°S) (60%°99L°8)

- (FS6'7LED) - - (808°9¢1) - - - (LLY'L86T) -
L6L9VO'Y $19°696°€ TTI°LLL'8 S9P011°6 875°€89°9C €TH'8ELET YE0‘61L 61 7601201 ¥T8°06T°S 60°99L'8

- 000°SS¥°T $88°9L - 759°€0C - - - - -

0869 S66°71 v0T'9 - £98°ct $8$°81 120°8S - - -

- - 000°06C - 000°0¥L°01 - - - SE6'710°T 000591
981°€8€" Y (T15°6€L) (98L°€1T°D) (Ly8TIL) €08°S09°1 666°LEE9 (869°S1L°T) 6TT'€ELST (6T¥°1¥L°9) (€LT°020°p)
128°6£€°901 €SE°9¥9°611 958°T6€°LT1 LT6'S61°8T1 TLO'€TS 8T €IV'98S°LTT T88°1T8 LI 9€0°60€°€01 9T 6EL601 8LT'6II€EL1
180429 161v1L LOV'T0L 086788 1S ThL TS9°L9Y YILILE LIE'86T SSE8IY 8%6°909
000°ST€E1 000°02C°1 000096 000°5S6 000068 000°098 000°0¢8 000°508 000°S9L 000°59S
€91°6€€°C ySTI8IE 01€199 SI8'8SIS 0v9°v6¥°6 6v1°1Ye 660°C06°L 061°6LY'Y T8T0SY'S €IS'SLTY
006°T0€°1 98T EVE’l PEL6SY'T 169°65S°1 S86°L16°1 681" €Y0°T 080°69°1 958°959°1 ¥80965°C 10L€1¥°9
YESES9TE 856°L8S 8E 886°L98°cY 601°8€8 VY 6l1°€TEey 086°98°cY €ETSTY' 1Y 8SE LYY VE 60Y"EYL Oy €6€°01T° 1Y
Y09°110°€C €TTY00°LT 88L°€88°ST €16°LY1°ST LTL69E YT 8¥L°0€0°€T 8P1°1T1°€T 206°L10°CC TS0°T8E°1T 0r9°0rs‘1T
TTS'LYLOT 899°019°11 6078 11 186 V€Y 11 LSSH69°01 8¥8°9GL 11 0LL'S00°TT YETI10°T1 ¥T8°SST01 EVE'ES9°01
810°09S°S1 YO1°TSS'S1 656°SL8°S1 L6SH09°ST TLSYSLYL 657°5T891 €8S PPL 91 16v'SY6Y1 LO68YSL Y1 L69°T98 Y1
1SS'8LY'T1 ¥19°699°€1 €EI°186°€1 050°SS8°€1 SEL'0S8'€ET 0T60£0°6 66€°LST'8 TIEELO'L LEVTYS'L 126°9S¥°L
8Y1°LST9 SS0°€EL'9 801°81%'8 16L9SL"8 961°58%°8 891°€87°9 908°65T°9 9LE6OL'S 980°1€S°S TTIPES'S
LOO'€TLOTT T58°906°811 0L0°6L1°ST1 080°€8¥°LT1 SLY'STI'0E1 TIY'YTeEel ¥81°901°911 §9T'T81°901 L66°L66T01 $00°660°601
19€°€€Y°T 181°0€6°1 90111 €10°€9T°1 ySTTTIT SII°LL8T 9L9°€20°C LSOTILT 0TL0EE'S T€6'108°01
L8Y'001°1 015°9z8 TWT'06€1 7€6958°C 900°8LYy 0STEV0°E 186°L99°1 6€€°9YL 888°St6 880°91C°1
09161 897°011 128°L8 6LT°€6 0€S°6L LLT'6Y §3 494 TL6'6E 91T'8€ 885°LT
S8LYTE L TT0'ETY'1 10S°68C°1 STESELl ¥TL'690°1 6699061 LOO'L6Y'1 668°LYS 1 1€5°68€°1 616781
91L°6€S ¥96°LSS 00¥'S1Y WSy 68€°LEY 80€° 1€y LTy L88'LOY 8LE'ESE 16L11¥
99 LTTY1 066°€6L91 8T8°00¥°S1 YTEYELIL YSL19T 1T 9€9°9¥T 81 986°60%"L1 1EV0TE 11 LOTYIS T LEV'Y08°6
$89°956°CS £78°901°09 SLS'IST'89 ¥9$°791°89 LOSYETLY Tecisylies 6L6TS9°8S LEOV0S 65 199405°SS T01°8T1°CS
S88°YLE0T 080°1S¥°61 YYT6L9°81 656°16L°81 96L°S8Y" V1 858°078'81 6€6°LLO9T €0¥°061°C1 098°6LT°C1 90€°LTL LT
T86°ELSLL ¥00°LOL'LT $ €SLTSYLL $ 0F1°v€0°81 $ SI1°096'81 $ LEG'EOY 61 § 6£7°60€°81  § OVTEIY'8l  § 9€S° 1¥9°S1 T89S §

T10C 010¢ 600¢ 800¢ L00¢ 900¢ §00¢ ¥00¢ €00¢ ¢00¢

19JON

samypuadxy [endesuoN
J0 031)ud0I0 € Sk 90IAISS 1GO(T

dueeq pung ur o5uey)) 1N

(sas()) seoanog Suroueurj JOYIQ [BI0L
nQ sidysuel],
sas) Suroueur YO
uf sIoysuel],
sa01nog Suroueur 1OYO
$J9SSY JO 9[BS WOIJ SPadd0I]
panssy spuog

:(sasn)/s924n0s Buioueul4 JaYIO

somnyIpuadXy] JOAO SONUOAY SSIOX

soxmpuadxy [ejo
Jso10)u]
edroung
1901AI0S 190
KepnQ [ende)
UONBAIOdY PUE UOIBAIOSUO))
SOOIAIOS UBWINE
yedH
SO ONQnd
Kjoyes d1qng
[erorpnf
QAIINDIXF puk dATIR[SISO]
JUSUWILIOAOD) [LIOUAD)
ULy
‘saanupusdx3

SONUAADY [€10],
ANUIARY JOYIO
QWIOOU] JUSUISIAU]
S)uQWISSAsSY [eroodg
SOINJIOYIO,] PUE SAUI] ‘S99,
S)ULIdJ PUL SASUDI]
SOIIAIOS 10§ SaSIey)
[eIUSWUIA0 Io)U]
Xe], SO[eS OAISSIULIO]
SOXE],

:Sanuanay

¥ 3INpayds

(Sununoooy Jo siseq [Ny PAYIPOJA) SIED X [BOISI US], ISeT

Spun,j [EJUSWITLIOAOL) ‘SI0UB[EE Pun,f Ul SoSUey)

OIHO ‘ALNNOD MYV1D

-S-7-



Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds

CLARK COUNTY, OHIO

Last Ten Fiscal Years (Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Schedule 5

Tangible
General Personal Manufactured Permissive
Year Property Tax Property Tax Home Tax Sales Tax Total
2002 $ 13,111,956 $ 2,359,734 $ 92,152 § 17,727,306 $ 33,291,148
2003 13,220,493 2,330,845 90,198 12,279,860 27,921,396
2004 15,771,011 2,551,855 90,374 12,490,403 30,903,643
2005 16,019,690 2,205,749 84,000 16,077,939 34,387,378
2006 17,525,075 1,797,299 81,563 18,820,858 38,224,795
2007 17,585,706 1,294,608 79,801 14,485,796 33,445911
2008 17,340,066 630,634 63,440 18,791,959 36,826,099
2009 17,475,604 121,442 55,707 18,679,244 36,331,997
2010 17,638,202 18,820 49,982 19,451,080 37,158,084
2011 17,494,870 30,789 48,323 20,374,885 37,948,867
% Change
2002 to
2011 33.43% -98.70% -47.56% 14.94% 13.99%

Source: Clark County Auditor's Office




Tax Revenues by Levy, Governmental Funds

CLARK COUNTY, OHIO

Last Nine Fiscal Years (Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Schedule 6

Department of

General Developmental Children’s Senior
Year Purposes Disabilities Services Citizen's Total
2003 $ 3,213,145 $ 8,339,616 $ 2,792,431 $ 1296344 $ 15,641,536
2004 3,337,017 10,769,810 2,927,913 1,378,500 18,413,240
2005 3,505,252 10,647,764 2,853,061 1,303,362 18,309,439
2006 3,813,396 10,832,753 2,829,089 2,003,973 19,479,211
2007 3,671,872 10,513,030 2,664,262 2,035,677 18,884,841
2008 3,541,363 9,875,289 2,395,102 2,222,386 18,034,140
2009 3,466,549 9,661,369 2,274,949 2,249,886 17,652,753
2010 3,443,154 9,757,096 2,291,131 2,215,623 17,707,004
2011 3,672,389 9,725,540 2,280,820 1,895,233 17,573,982
% Change
2003 to
2011 14.293% 16.619% -18.321% 46.198% 12.355%
Note:

The above revenues are reported on the full accrual method of accounting. The County began reporting
full accrual amounts with the implementation of GASB 34 for the fisal year 2003. Therefore, amounts
prior to 2003 are not available.

Source: Clark County Auditor's Office



‘pareutwun]d sem Auodord

[eLISNPUI/[BIDISUWILLOD 0] JOBQ[OI 90| Y} “IBK UO0I03[[09 9007 oY ul Suruuidoq po[iq Suraq 210§0q suonduwoxa pesjsawoy pue %z/1 T ‘%01 Y}
Kq paonpai1 aq pnom sajer apqedridde oy Aq sonjea passasse o) SutA[dnnw £q pajerouss syunowe oY) ¢ Al1odoxd [ear 10, T84 Jey) Ul PI[Iq SNUIAI
xe} KAyrodoid ayy pajeroudd ‘sojer ojqesrjdde oy) Aq parjdnnur uaym jet) sanjea dy) aIe Jedk yoed yim pajeroosse sanjea Ajodoid euosiod ojqidue) oy,

"600T 103 019Z PUe ‘800T 10J %ST'9 “LOOT 10F %S TT ‘900T 10J %SL'81 Sem d3ejuoo1od Sunsi|
9y *900g ur no paseyd Juroq uedoq xe) Aadord [euosiod sqi3ue) ssoursnq [eI10USS AU ], "SILIOJUIAUL 10J 9%, ¢7 pue juowdinbo pue A1ouryoew 10y

9,5 1e passasse st A110doid [euosiad ojqiSue) ssoursnq [e1ouan) ‘A119dold uonnqginsip pue uoISSIUSURI) JTUOIIJ 10 9,88 03 A11odoid peoiyrer 10y
anjeA an Jo 9,6z woiy saguer Ayodoid reuosiod Aijin orjqnd Jo anjea passasse d ], 01y JO del§ Ay ul ssaursnq ur pasn Ayrodoid jeuosiod ojqi3ue)
[T uo passasse st xe) A119doid [euosIo "onfea ongy pajewnsd Jo 9,6 ¢ st (Ayrodod 1ear Knn orjqnd Surpniour) A1xodoad [ear Jo anjea passosse oy,

‘Testerddear yoes Surmor[og 1edk pIry} oY) Ur anJeA JO3IBW JUALING d) JO djepdn pajepuewt 9)elS B YIIM SIBOA XIS A10Ad pasterddear st A110doid [eoy

OI0N
%T8'S¢ L61°180°€9%°9 088°¢l 8SL'LSTSIET 8€5°70T01 008°€96°0L - 0£0°8%9 001°8S9°T1S 06T°S8LTTL T 110T 010T
%9L°S¢ 16£699°619°9 88°¢l 810°SEY LIET 695°€8¢€°01 000°S¥+°89 678°678°C 07T°€89 0L0°LL8°SOS 0EE9TT6LLT 010T 600C
%IL'SE 96LTTE0SL'9 88°¢l T65°T69°01¥°C 168V¥L0T 00S490°99 10S499°S 0£9°5%9 091°L15°0TS 016°SS0°L0S‘T 600C 800T
%90°S¢ 617 TESBPIL 88°¢l £79°0ST°905°C 791°726°01 084" €ITY9 1TH'65STIT 0S1°269 0TT0LT0TS 0TE€6SLOS’T 800C L00T
%6 687°5€6°008°9 88°¢l 808°LILVLET 8L0°L0O6°01 0F1°569°6L 065 TLT1T9T 0rS‘Tr9 061°0LS LY OLTT8LELYT L00T 900
%99t ¢ LYT'9¥E€968°9 88°¢l TIT'LTI06E°T 6S8°TL80T 090°€8+°08 €9TLLT'R0T 065 %St 0£5°6T€°9¢r 018°608°€S9°T 900T S00T
%SLYE 81T°LLY'9SLO ce8Cl 088°LTT8YET $750€8°01 069°€TT68 976°120°50T 006°TSt 00T°66S 11 079°660°T€9°T S00T 00T
%ILTE L99°6ST°LLT9 or8°¢Cl 799°86L8LI‘T 080°00L°0T 018°T6L°68 759°0€5°60T 0v6'8EY 0189LT°9LE 0LE090°T6¥°T 00T £00C
%65 ¢ 0€6°€1ELYT9 060°¢1 T0¥°9SL091°C SPELOLOT 08€T9T¥6 90T°679°SET 01Z's€e 0TT°69L°TSE OVT°€S0LY'T £00C 00T
%Nlvve 659°979°6vC°9 $ 001°¢l 1€6°699°0ST1°T § YOLY9L0T 08%°67¢'88  $ L69°T80°€ST $ 0£9°181  § 009°THLISE  $ 078°S9S‘ 9+ 1§ 00T 100T

an[e/ [eny anfe) ared xel aneN SoWOH STITETg) Auadoad Amn [emsnpuj [enuapisay Teax Tea X

parewnsy Jo a|qexe ] [enoy 108.1Q passassy padnoeinue algnd a|qibue | a1gnd 9 [eI0JBWIWOD 7P [eANnolIBy  U0108|10D xe]

Jusdisd e se parewnsy [e10L 3|gexe] [e101 Ald3d0dd T¥YNOSH3d Ald3d0dd 1v3d

aN[eA Passassy

£ 3INpayds

STed X [eISI] UQJ, ISe]
Kodoid 9[qexe], JO an[eA [BNOY PIAJBWISH PUL PISSISSY
OIHO ‘ALNNOD MdV1D

-S-10 -



20YJO sJonpny Auno) e[ :90Iog

86S°€ETE %9T'L8 %SL'Y 850°6S1°CC 06L150°1 %C1€8 897°€01°1C 959°88€°T 1102 010¢C
8€8°080°¢ %I8L8 %CLY seer61ce Y0E8H0°1 %99°€8 1€0°ev1°1C €LITLT'ST 010¢C 600C
STI‘9ET'E %STL8 %IT°S €86°6¥1°CC PEITEL] %6L°T8 6v8°LI0°IT 801°98€°6T 600¢C 800C
81078%°9 %99°LL %¥8'Y 090°€STT 9S1°760°T %06°€L #06°0St° 1T 8L0°LT06T 800¢ L00T
1S1°€20°€ %S50°68 %07 ¥ LTEV6S YT 181°280°1 %P1°68 9r1°TIS €T 8LYLI9LT L00T 900¢C
T0€°€0€E’S %9¢°C8 %S9'Y T09°09LYT w1011 %ES 8L 09t°019°¢T #06°€90°0€ 900¢C $00¢C
TIT61C %LL 68 %YT'S 90€°1€T°1T 0€E Il %90°S8 9L6°LTT1°0T 815°059°€T $00¢C 00T
1S°L8T°¢ %LE98 %NCl'S ¥79°7€8°0C 189°690°1 %S6°18 €7699L°61 SLO0TIVT ¥00¢C £00¢C
786°TLST %EL'LS %88'Y 66196£°81 €v1°L68 %Sy €8 950°66% L1 18L°896°0C £00¢ 00T
7€9°696°1 $ %0506 WNITS SSI69L8T  $ 96£°LL6 $ %6L°S8 6SLTOLLT  $ L8LBELOT $ 00T 100C
sarouanbulag PaIAT Saxe ] P3123]]0D Saxe] Pa129]10D Pa129]10D PaINST Saxe ] pa129]10D REILER IEJN IEEJN
pa1eINWNIIY JUaLIND JO op e [e101 40 1Us2I3d saxe | saxe | J0 U80J8d saxe | saxe | uo193]10D xe]
se suo1199]|0D B Se pa129]|0D [ero1 juanbuiag © se pa199]]0D juaLIND juaLIND
[exol saxe] jusnbuljaq saxe] juadInd

SIBd X [BOSI] US] IS
soxe], o[qI3ue], pue KNI ‘[BY - SUONII[[0)) PUk SAIAJT Xe], Ajodoig

OIHO ‘ALNNOD MYV1D
8 3INpayds

-S-11 -



CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 9

Taxable Year:
Collection Year:

CLARK COUNTY ENTITIES:
General Fund (Inside Millage)

Board of Mental Retardation Levy

Children's Services Levy
Senior Citizen's Levy

Community Mental Health Levy

Total Clark County Entities

OTHER ENTITIES:
Health District
Miami Conservancy District
Clark County Public Library

SCHOOL DISTRICTS:
Clark Shawnee LSD
Greenon LSD
Northwestern LSD
Northeastern LSD
Southeastern LSD
Springfield CSD
Tecumseh LSD
Springfield/Clark County JVSD
Cedar Cliff LSD
Fairborn CSD
Yellow Springs EVSD
Greene County JVSD

MUNICIPALITIES:
City of New Carlisle
City of Springfield
Village of Catawba
Village of Donnelsville
Village of Enon
Village of Lawrenceville
Village of North Hampton
Village of South Charleston
Village of South Vienna
Village of Tremont
Village of Clifton

TOWNSHIPS:
Bethel Township
German Township

Green Township - Fire District #1
Green Township - Fire District #2

Harmony Township
Madison Township
Mad River Township
Moorefield Township
Pike Township
Pleasant Township
Springfield Township

Note:

The Miami Conservancy District tax levy is included with the County's total tax rate. However, it is not included as a County entity due to
the fact that the County Commissioners do not initiate the levy and is an Agency Fund of the County.

Source: Clark County Auditor's Office

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
1.700 1.700 1.700 1.700 1.700 1.700 1.700 1.700 1.700 1.700
5.750 5.750 5.500 5.500 5.500 5.500 5.500 5.500 5.500 5.500
3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000
0.600 0.600 0.600 0.600 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.650 2.650 2.650 2.650 2.650 2.650
13.100 13.100 12.830 12.832 13.882 13.882 13.882 13.882 13.882 13.850
0.800 0.800 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
0.050 0.050 0.030 0.032 0.032 0.032 0.032 0.032 0.032 -
0.240 0.240 0.160 0.120 0.120 - - - - 1.320
39.300 38.090 38.090 37.500 37.400 37.520 37.234 39.530 39.450 39.690
41.470 40.680 40.100 39.800 39.750 39.750 39.621 39.670 39.670 46.830
35.500 33.900 33.900 32.800 32310 32.490 31.995 32.200 32.420 39.050
45.640 45.440 45.440 47.140 47.070 47.140 47.021 48.030 48.060 48.080
36.800 42.680 43.100 42.400 42.300 42.350 41.955 41.860 41.830 41.540
57.650 57.650 57.750 56.550 56.550 65.410 63.253 63.730 64.820 65.250
44.100 42.600 48.040 46.100 45.840 45.840 45.040 45.240 45.440 45.760
3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000
32.100 32.100 32.100 32.100 35.900 35.900 35.800 35.400 43.900 42.700
44.700 44.700 44.400 44.400 44.200 44.200 52.500 51.900 51.800 51.900
70.600 69.600 66.100 65.800 64.600 64.700 64.700 63.700 63.800 63.900
3.450 3.450 3.450 3.450 3.450 3.450 3.450 3.450 3.450 3.450
8.000 9.000 9.000 9.000 9.000 9.000 7.750 9.000 9.000 9.000
4.100 4.100 4.100 3.980 4.010 4.050 4.050 4.050 3.970 4.080
1.600 1.600 1.600 1.600 1.600 1.600 1.600 1.600 1.600 1.600
9.500 9.500 9.500 9.500 9.500 2.500 9.500 9.500 9.500 9.500
5.600 5.600 5.600 5.600 5.600 8.100 8.100 10.100 8.600 8.600
5.100 5.100 5.100 5.100 5.100 - - - - -
6.600 6.600 6.600 6.600 6.600 6.600 6.600 6.600 6.600 6.600
2.800 2.800 2.800 2.800 2.800 2.800 2.800 2.800 2.800 2.800
1.600 1.600 1.600 1.600 1.600 1.600 1.600 1.600 1.600 1.600
9.800 7.400 13.400 8.400 8.400 8.400 8.400 2.400 2.400 2.400
9.000 9.000 9.000 9.000 9.000 9.000 9.000 9.000 9.000 9.000
5.200 7.200 7.200 7.200 7.200 7.200 7.250 7.200 7.200 7.200
6.900 6.900 7.600 7.600 7.600 7.900 7.900 7.900 7.900 7.900
4.500 4.200 5.700 5.700 6.600 6.600 6.600 7.600 7.600 7.600
5.700 6.200 7.200 7.200 8.100 8.100 8.100 9.100 9.100 9.100
5.900 6.400 6.400 6.400 6.400 6.400 7.400 7.400 7.400 7.400
4.100 4.100 4.100 4.100 6.100 6.100 6.100 6.100 6.100 6.100
5.000 6.000 6.000 6.000 6.000 6.000 6.000 6.000 5.000 5.800
5.050 5.050 5.050 5.050 5.050 5.050 5.050 5.050 5.050 5.050
9.600 9.600 9.600 9.600 9.600 9.600 9.600 9.600 9.600 9.600
7.000 7.000 7.000 7.000 7.000 7.000 7.800 7.800 7.800 7.800
7.000 7.000 7.000 7.000 7.000 7.000 7.000 7.000 7.000 7.000
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Principal Property Tax Payers

2011 and 2002

Schedule 10

2011
% of Total
Taxable County Taxable

Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Value
Community Mercy Health Partners $ 14,134,510 0.61%
Navistar International Corporation 10,471,090 0.45%
Walmart Real Estate Business Trust 7,986,160 0.34%
Upper Valley Mall LLC 7,158,090 0.31%
USPG Portfolio Two LLC 6,745,830 0.29%
Aldi Inc 5,758,990 0.25%
Ohio Masonic Home 4,934,490 0.21%
Emro Marketing Company 4,774,390 0.21%
American Security Insurance Company 3,850,000 0.17%
Springfield Commons Plaza LLC 3,475,000 0.15%
Total $ 69,288,550 2.99%

Total Assessed Value $ 2,315,257,758
2002
% of Total
Taxable County Taxable

Assessed Assessed
Value Value
Navistar International Corporation $ 14,014,287 0.78%
USPG Portfolio Two LLC 6,725,290 0.37%
Simon Capital Limited Partnership 6,567,070 0.37%
Gordon Foods Service Inc 5,613,110 0.31%
Glimcher Properties Limited Partnership 4,994,590 0.28%
Emro Marketing Company 4,033,200 0.22%
Allied SSR Shopping Centers I, LLC 3,193,340 0.18%
Meijer Stores Limited Partnership 2,980,780 0.17%
Aldi Inc 2,800,310 0.16%
AOT, Inc. 2,278,850 0.13%
Total $ 53,200,827 2.97%

Total Assessed Value $ 1,798,308,420

The amounts presented represent the assessed values upon which the 2011 and 2002 taxes were levied.

Source: Clark County Auditor's Office
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Taxable Sales by Category
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Sales Tax Payments

Direct Pay Tax Return Payments

Seller's Use Tax Return Payments
Comsumer's Use Tax Return Payments
Motor Vehicle Tax Payments
Non-Resident Motor Vehicle Tax Payments
Watercraft and Outboard Motors
Department of Liquor Control

Sales Tax on Motor Vehicle Fuel Refunds
Sales/Use Tax Voluntary Payments
Statewide Master Numbers

Sales/Use Tax Assessment Payments
Streamlined Sales Tax Payments

Use Tax Amnesty Payments

Sales/Use Tax Refunds Approved

1% Adminstrative Rotary Fund

Total
Sales Tax Rate

Source: Ohio Department of Taxation

2002 2003 2004 2005
* * * *
* * * *
* * * *
* * * *
* * * *
* * * *
* * * *
* * * *
* * * *
* * * *
* * * *
* * * *
* * * *
* * * *
* * * *
* * * *
$ 17,727,306 $ 12,279,860 $ 12,490,403 $ 16,077,939
0.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%

The rate may be imposed by the County Commissioners subject to referendum or approved by a majority of the

voters within the County.

* - detail information for the years prior to 2009 is not available.
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Schedule 11

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

* * * $ 4,846,439 $ 4900,610 S 4,951,517

* * * 503,437 1,387,228 1,654,899

* * * 2,003,984 2,074,683 2,067,068

* * * 336,440 259,529 271,810

* * * 2,474,042 2,592,357 2,851,958

* * * 11,376 8,733 12,323

* * * 23,157 25,988 19,537

* * * 78,556 83,452 92,526

* * * 7,661 2,980 3,453

* * * 11,674 18,962 24,912

* * * 8,389,331 8,352,971 8,591,566

* * * 231,177 108,490 103,504

* * * 5,134 7,750 8,927

* * * - - 4,626

* * * (54,485) (176,178) (77,935)

* * * (188,679) (196,475) (205,806)

$ 18,820,858  § 14,485,796  §$ 18,791,959  $ 18,679,244  $ 19,451,080  $ 20,374,885
1.00% 1.00% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
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Schedule 12

CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Sewer and Water Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Sewer Water

(First 300 cubic ft.) (Usage > 300 cubic ft.) (First 300 cubic ft.) (Usage > 300 cubic ft.)
Year Monthly Minimun Rate per 100 cubic ft. Monthly Minimun Rate per 100 cubic ft.
2002 $ 1328  §$ 3.04 % 843 % 2.21
2003 13.28 3.04 8.43 2.21
2004 13.55 3.10 9.19 241
2005 13.69 3.13 9.19 241
2006 13.69 3.13 9.60 2.52
2007 14.31 3.13 10.27 2.52
2008 14.45 3.30 10.68 2.81
2009 15.03 3.43 11.11 2.92
2010 15.56 3.55 11.67 3.07
2011 15.56 3.55 11.67 3.07

Sounce: Clark County Utilities Department
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO

Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstandng by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities

Other
General Governmental
Bonded Activities
Debt Debt
% of Actual
General Debt Service Net Taxable Net Bonded
Obligation Fund Bonded Value Debt Capital
Year Bonds Balance Debt of Property per Capita Leases
2002 7,770,000 $ 175,716 7,594,284 0.12% $ 52.95 $ -
2003 7,035,000 26,528 7,008,472 0.11% 49.38 -
2004 6,230,000 32,111 6,197,889 0.10% 43.78 -
2005 5,390,000 26,337 5,363,663 0.08% 37.89 -
2006 4,530,000 56,051 4,473,949 0.06% 31.76 -
2007 14,380,000 85,770 14,294,230 0.21% 101.97 -
2008 13,425,000 420,596 13,004,404 0.18% 93.01 -
2009 16,755,000 86,391 16,668,609 0.25% 119.34 -
2010 15,760,000 30,846 15,729,154 0.24% 113.71 -
2011 14,435,000 2,590 14,432,410 0.22% 104.82 -

Sounce: Clark County Auditor's Office and the Regional Economic Information System, Bureau of Economic Analysis
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Schedule 13

Business-Type Activities

Personal Income

General Total
Obligation OPWC OWDA Primary Total Debt
Bonds Loans Loans Government Total Percentage per Capita
$ 3,585,400 $ 576,300 $ - $ 11,931,700 $3,798,584,000 0.31% $ 8320
3,367,900 536,100 - 10,939,000 3,870,590,000 0.28% 77.08
3,045,000 966,150 - 10,241,150 3,891,244,000 0.26% 72.34
2,711,700 1,096,200 - 9,197,900 3,988,469,000 0.23% 64.98
2,363,000 1,050,050 - 7,943,050 4,161,267,000 0.19% 56.38
3,398,800 1,138,476 - 18,917,276 4,243,870,000 0.45% 134.94
2,994,200 1,051,879 - 17,471,079 4,518,060,000 0.39% 124.96
4,214,100 1,008,580 - 21,977,680 4,557,049,000 0.48% 157.35
3,823,500 985,684 171,582 20,740,766 4,617,096,000 0.45% 149.93
3,397,400 855,684 222,918 18,911,002 Not Available Not Available 137.34
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Legal Debt Margin
Last Ten Fiscal Years

County Valuation

Direct Legal Debt Limitation:
3.0% of the first $100,000,000 assessed valuation
1.5% on excess of $100,000,000-not in excess of $300,000,000
2.5% in the amount in excess of $300,000,000

Total Direct Legal Debt Limitation

Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limitation:
General Obligation Bonds
General Obligation Notes
Less: Amount Available in Debt Service

Amount of Debt Subject to Debt Limit

Legal Debt Margin

Legal Debt Margin as a Percentage of the Debt Limit
Unvoted Legal Debt Margin

Amount of Debt Subject to Limit

Unvoted Legal Debt Margin

Unvoted Legal Debt Margin as a Percentage of the
Unvoted Debt Limit

Source: Clark County Auditor's Office

2002

2003

2004

$2,139,901,227

$2,150,049,056

$2,168,098,582

$ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000
3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
45,997,531 46,251,226 46,702,465

$ 51,997,531 $ 52251226 $ 52,702,465

$ 2285000 $ 1,980,000 $ 1,610,000
2,295,000 3,585,000 6,745,000
(175,716) (26,528) (32,111)
4,404,284 5,538,472 8,322,889

$ 47593247 $ 46,712,754 $ 44,379,576
91.53% 89.40% 84.21%

$ 21,399,012 $ 21,500491 $ 21,680,986
4,404,284 5,538,472 8,322,889

$ 16,994,728 $ 15,962,019 $ 13,358,097
79.42% 74.24% 61.61%

(1) - See Schedule 13 for detailed information. Amounts do not include OPWC loans, Issue II loans or capital leases.
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2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

Schedule 14

2011

$2,337,397,356

$2,379,254,253

$2,363,860,730

$2,495,328,481

$2,399,947,701

$2,357,051,449

$ 2,305,055,220

$ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000 S 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000
3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
50,934,934 51,981,356 51,596,518 54,883,212 52,498,693 51,426,286 50,126,381

$ 56934934 $ 57981356 $ 57,596,518 $ 60,883,212 $ 58498693 $ 57426286 S 56,126,381

$ 1,225,000 S 825,000 $ 10,905,000 $ 10445000 $ 11305000 $ 10,520,000 S 9,685,000
6,145,000 15,795,000 2,170,000 2,630,000 435,000 405,000 640,000
(26,337) (56,051) (85,770) (420,596) (86,391) (30,846) (2,950)
7,343,663 16,563,949 12,989,230 12,654,404 11,653,609 10,894,154 10,322,050

$ 49,591,271 $ 41417407 $ 44,607,288 $ 48,228,808 $ 46,845084 $ 46,532,132 S 45,804,331
87.10% 71.43% 77.45% 79.22% 80.08% 81.03% 81.61%

$ 23,373,974 $ 23,792,543 $ 23,638,607 $ 24,953,285 $ 23999477 $ 23,570,514 $ 23,050,552
7,343,663 16,563,949 12,989,230 12,654,404 11,653,609 10,894,154 10,322,050

$ 16,030,311 $§ 7228594 $ 10,649,377 $ 12,298,881 $ 12345868 $ 12,676360 S 12,728,502
68.58% 30.38% 45.05% 49.29% 51.44% 53.78% 55.22%
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Schedule 15

CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

Total
Personal Per Capita Unemployment
Year Population Income Income Rate
2002 143,412 $ 3,902,651,000 $ 27,213 7.0%
2003 141,915 4,002,986,000 28,207 7.2%
2004 141,565 4,040,060,000 28,539 6.7%
2005 141,543 4,106,885,000 29,015 6.3%
2006 140,875 4,282,388,000 30,398 5.5%
2007 140,187 4,406,389,000 31,432 6.2%
2008 139,818 4,518,060,000 32,314 6.7%
2009 139,671 4,557,049,000 32,627 10.4%
2010 138,333 4,617,096,000 33,407 10.4%
2011 137,691 Not Available Not Available 8.9%

Source: Regional Economic Information System, Bureau of Economic Analysis
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Principal Employers

2011 and 2007

Schedule 16

2011 2007
% of Total % of Total
County County
Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment

Community Mercy Health Partners 1000+ 3,000 4.50%
Assurant Specialty Property 1000+ 1,557 2.34%
Springfield City Schools 1000+ 984 1.48%
Clark County 1000+ 1,410 2.12%
Springfield Air National Guard Base/178th Fighter Wing 1000+
Speedway SuperAmerica 500-999 725 1.09%
International Truck and Engine/Navistar International 500-999 1,200 1.80%
City of Springfield 500-999 787 1.18%
Adcare Health Systems 500-999
Dole Fresh Vegetables 500-999 789 1.18%
Total 12,677 20.19% 10,452 15.69%
Total County Employment 62,800 66,600

Note: Information prior to 2007 is not available. Per agreement with the Chamber of Commerce, actual number of

employees will not be disclosed for 2011.
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Operating Indicators by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Continued)
2002 2003 2004 2005
Governmental Activities:
General Government:
Legislative & Executive:
Commissioners
Number of Resolutions 1,062 1,047 784 1,092
Number of Meetings 65 75 65 65
Number of Hearings 22 24 26 28
Auditor
Number of Non-Exempt Conveyances N/A 3,821 3,698 3,503
Number of Exempt Conveyances N/A 2,454 2,618 2,264
Number of Vendor Licenses Sold 396 N/A 329 295
Number of General Warrants Issued 38,438 34,104 36,306 32,796
Number of Payroll Warrants Issued 39,127 38,455 38,211 37,320
Number of Direct Deposit Statements 0 0 0 0
Number of Receipt Pay-Ins Issued 5,111 5,129 5,273 5,410
Number of Dog Tags Sold - Regular 24,372 24,682 24,355 24,243
Number of Dog Tags Sold - Kennel Sets 95 86 89 92
Treasurer
Number of Parcels Billed 65,894 66,324 66,748 67,842
Real Estate Taxes Collected $ 85,861,889 $ 87,716,732 $ 93,549,755 $ 98,013,809
Recorder
Number of Deeds Recorded 8,036 8,477 8,113 8,209
Number of Mortgages Recorded 34,522 37,621 26,725 24,595
Number of Military Discharges Recorded 45 36 45 32
Board of Elections
Number of Registered Voters 82,889 78,692 89,721 88,248
Number of Voters in Last General Election 39,854 35,710 70,124 40,149
Percentage of Registrered that Voted 48.08% 45.38% 78.16% 45.50%
Judicial:
Clerk of Courts
Number of Domestic Cases Filed N/A N/A N/A 761
Number of Civil Cases Filed N/A N/A N/A 1,518
Number of Criminal Cases Filed N/A N/A N/A 1,184
Number of Domestic Violence Cases Filed N/A N/A N/A 498
Number of Appeals Filed N/A N/A N/A 135
Number of Certificates of Judgements Filed N/A N/A N/A 791
Number of State Judgements Filed N/A N/A N/A 691
Number of Garnishments Filed N/A N/A N/A 115
Number of Titles Issued N/A N/A N/A 67,368
Common Pleas Court
Number of Civil Cases Filed 1,522 1,607 1,551 1,546
Number of Criminal Cases Filed 1,069 1,197 1,021 1,210
Number of Domestic Cases Filed 1,220 1,056 1,246 1,271
Juvenile Court
Number of Civil Cases Filed 1,308 1,439 863 1,029
Number of Criminal/Delinquent Cases Filed 2,253 2,245 2,252 2,014
Number of Traffic Cases Filed 1,243 1,067 934 840
Number of Adult Cases Filed 108 97 133 85
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Schedule 17

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
1,177 1,098 991 1,087 1,123 1,069
62 60 58 59 62 65
20 19 21 14 16 9
3,636 3,148 2,521 2,294 2,456 2,190
2,331 2,113 1,973 1,748 1,774 1,854
251 214 190 174 162 121
33,305 31,737 35,186 32,280 32,127 29,316
30,063 16,516 14,875 12,849 10,283 8,113
7,589 20,946 22,632 23,674 22,451 23,771
5,496 5,669 6,007 5,437 5,417 5,478
24,714 24,733 24,860 19,420 25,038 24,418
96 96 88 61 53 45
66,716 67,806 67,658 68,060 64,399 67,422

$ 102,696,289

7,776
22,487
47

90,057
51,118
56.76%

756
1,709
1,496

463

140
1,104
1,238

96
68,208

1,707
1,549
1,219

919
1,983
951
116

$ 108,736,329

7,105
19,779
34

87,787
27,144
30.92%

762
1,734
1,244

524

140
1,157
1,667

127

65,272

1,665
1,350
1,285

852
2,473
730
146

$ 107,893,678

5,323
13,945
23

93,045
62,947
67.65%

691
1,724
1,161

571

127
1,638
1,802

100

58,340

1,671
1,168
1,260

771
2,282
702
98
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$ 110,220,440

6,467
17,671
67

91,026
40,274
44.24%

600
1,654
1,080

578
123
1,354
2,159
146
52,353

1,637
1,208
1,239

664
2,068
666
102

$ 111,373,522

4,738

11,666

24

92,438
47,004
50.85%

682
1,862
988
572
117
1,331
2,235
290

45,468

1,561
990
1,246

709
1,762
617
126

$ 116,860,345

6,156
15,299
31

88,344
42,347

47.93%

767
1,616
1,005

541

102
1,329
2,167

310

44,033

1,310
1,011
1,192

696
1,543
563
188
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Operating Indicators by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Continued)
2002 2003 2004 2005
Municipal Court
Number of Civil Cases Filed 4,722 4,892 4,630 4,447
Number of Criminal 5,755 6,325 6,541 6,241
Number of Traffic Cases Filed 17,606 16,370 12,753 13,179
Number of Small Claims Filed 461 483 411 405
Probate Court
Number of Estates Filed 807 902 826 856
Number of Guardianships Filed 287 251 280 253
Number of Adoptions Filed 81 66 97 86
Number of Marriages Filed 880 830 803 847
Prosecuting Attorney
Number of Criminal Cases 971 1,070 994 1,159
Number of Civil Cases N/A N/A N/A N/A
Public Defender
Number of Cases Filed N/A 5,001 5,315 5,665
Public Safety:
Sheriff
Jail Operation
Average Daily Jail Census 222.1 228.1 231.0 239.9
Prisoners Booked 4,790 4,689 4,457 5,071
Prisoners Released 4,537 4,536 4,340 4,699
Incarceration Facility
Average Daily Jail Census 2221 228.1 231.0 2399
Prisoners Booked 4,790 4,689 4,457 5,071
Prisoners Released 4,537 4,536 4,340 4,699
Enforcement
Number of Citiations Issued 4,231 3,470 1,858 2,250
Number of Warrants Served N/A 849 856 1,056
Number of Calls for Service N/A 93,382 83,328 46,524
Number of Sheriff Vehicles 89 89 89 89
Number of Sheriff Sales - Real Estate 635 858 980 892
Emergency Management
Number of Emergency Responses N/A N/A 2 2
Coroner
Number of Cases Investigated 117 120 107 126
Number of Autopsies Performed 51 59 61 93
Public Works:
Engineer
Miles of Road Maintained 305.46 305.16 306.62 307.67
Miles of Road Resurfaced 16.0 13.2 17.2 8.5
Number of County Maintained Bridges 247 242 242 239
Community Development
Number of Residential Permits Issued 755 750 649 614
Number of Commercial Permits Issued 128 123 162 156
Number of Inspections Performed 2,759 3,037 2,581 5,370
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Schedule 17

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
4,151 4,831 5,162 4,337 3,856 3,647
6,788 6,711 6,384 5,868 5,265 5,033
17,267 17,528 17,125 14,789 14,068 13,437
507 498 467 394 374 382
768 763 743 756 729 777
204 174 201 220 249 196
74 60 69 59 52 76
784 793 796 765 809 736
1,496 1,244 1,078 1,080 883 894
N/A N/A N/A N/A 269 289
5,468 5,282 4,931 4,451 4,793 4,210
246.0 2593 252.2 240.5 201.8 207.95
4,877 5,095 4,968 5,017 4,641 4,326
4,767 4,959 5,007 4,997 4,652 4,331
246.0 259.3 252.2 240.5 201.8 207.95
4,877 5,095 4,968 5,017 4,641 4,326
4,767 4,959 5,007 4,997 4,652 4,331
5,132 4,549 4,538 3,275 3,006 2,628
1,083 1,041 1,273 1,238 1,490 1,522
43,257 45,099 45,520 44,872 43,596 43,688
89 89 89 91 74 89
916 894 879 1,024 1,056 730
3 1 2 1 4 11
103 120 115 107 124 137
74 97 84 74 99 118
307.87 306.42 306.30 305.81 305.72 305.72
6.1 6.4 7.0 73 14.5 5.5
238 240 241 240 241 236
496 425 344 304 307 341
153 134 142 109 105 91
4,933 4,226 3,080 1,475 2,534 2,408
(Continued)
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO

Operating Indicators by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Continued)
2002 2003 2004 2005
Health:
DoDD
Number of Students Enrolled 268 125 252 252
Early Prevention Program 268 125 252 252
Preschool Program N/A N/A N/A N/A
Habilitation N/A N/A N/A N/A
Number employed at Workshop 571 671 603 603
Human Services:
Department of Jobs and Family Services
Average Client Count - Food Stamps N/A 6,457 6,921 7,391
Average Client Count - WIA N/A N/A N/A N/A
Average Client Count - Medicaid N/A 23,030 24,245 25,167
Average Client Count - Job Placement N/A N/A N/A N/A
Average Client Count - Disability Assistance N/A 275 242 307
Children's Services
Total Referrals N/A N/A N/A N/A
Average Client Count - Foster Care N/A N/A N/A N/A
Average Client Count - Adoption N/A N/A N/A N/A
Child Support Enforcement Agency
Number of Active Support Orders N/A N/A N/A N/A
Percentage Collected - Level of Service N/A N/A N/A N/A
Veteran's Services
Number of Client Served 2,494 2,476 2,396 2,558
Amount of Financial Assistance Paid 152,621 $ 143,393 $ 121,546 $ 157,070
Conservation & Recreation:
Solid Waste
Amount Recycled (in Tons:) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Residential Recycling N/A N/A N/A N/A
Special Event Recycling N/A N/A N/A N/A
Specialty Recycling N/A N/A N/A N/A
Gross Revenue Generated N/A N/A N/A N/A
Business-Type Activities:
Sewer and Water Operations:
Miles of Sanitary Sewer Lines N/A N/A N/A N/A
Miles of Water Mains N/A N/A N/A N/A
Number of Sewer and Water Treatment Facilities N/A N/A N/A N/A
Number of Pumping Stations N/A N/A N/A N/A
Water Consumption (millions of gallons) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Wastewater Treated (millions of gallons) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Number of Sewer Customers N/A N/A N/A N/A
Number of Water Customers N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A - Information not available.

Source: Corresponding Board/Department within Clark County.

The following department did not respond to requests for information: Domestic Relation's Court
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Schedule 17

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
341 351 348 287 289 298
341 351 348 287 289 298
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
578 581 555 514 480 517
7,627 7,991 19,023 22,452 24,326 28,711
120 134 474 133 32 90
25,539 25,881 26,908 29,326 31,503 32,504
3,500 3,717 56 45 14 570
327 371 401 354 292 265
1,584 1,850 1,560 1,144 1,293 1,293
145 162 161 164 127 112
348 353 345 351 354 352
14,908 14,938 15,101 15,032 16,628 16,019
61.28% 61.55% 61.86% 60.93% 62.40% 62.03%
2,239 2,890 1,640 3,018 3,194 3,421
$ 141,700 $ 196,556 $ 212,021 $ 156,914 $ 191,511 $ 212,880
N/A 189 354 417 698 598
N/A 93 195 282 451 506
N/A 29 28 22 193 37
N/A 67 131 113 54 55
N/A $ 1,082,396 $ 1,081,110 $ 1,056,714 $ 887,000 $ 876,082
N/A 107 107 107 107 107
N/A 85 85 85 87 85
N/A 4 4 4 4 3
18 sewer /1 18 sewer /1 18 sewer /1 18 sewer /1 18 sewer /2
N/A water water water water water
N/A 461 435 442 444 451
N/A 1.8 mil gal/day 1.8 mil gal/day 1.3 mil gal/day 1.3 mil gal/day 1.8 mil gal/day
N/A 8,030 8,055 8,094 8,100 8,116
N/A 6,833 6,852 6,887 6,891 6,906
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Full Time County Government Employees by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 18

Governmental Activities:
General Government:

Legislative & Executive
Commissioners
Auditor
Treasurer
Recorder
Board of Elections
Data Processing
Information Systems

Judicial
Common Pleas Court
Probate Court
Juvenile Court
Municipal Court
Domestic Relations Court
Clerk of Courts
Prosecuting Attorney
Public Defender
Law Library

Public Safety
Sheriff
Emergency Management
Coroner

Public Works
Engineer
Building and Grounds
Community Development
Building Regulations
Planning Commission

Health
DoDD

Human Services

Department of Jobs & Family Services
Child Support Enforcement Agency

Children's Services
Veteran's Services

Conservation & Recreation
Solid Waste

Business-Type Activities:
Utilities Department

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
11 11 11 10 11 9 9 9 9 9
19 21 22 22 21 22 18 15 15 15
11 12 12 11 12 12 12 9 9 9

8 8 7 7 6 6 6 6 6 6

7 7 6 7 7 8 8 9 8 9

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

3 3 3 3 2 2 3 3 3 3

15 14 14 15 15 15 15 14 14 14
7 7 7 7 7 7 8 8 8 8
76 72 72 71 82 81 88 89 81 76
5 5 7 7 7 7 6 6 6 6
8 8 8 7 7 7 7 8 8 8
30 30 29 29 30 28 27 24 23 21
22 23 23 22 22 24 22 23 23 23
10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 9 9

2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
153 150 145 148 156 156 160 156 153 150

1 2 2 3 3 2 2 2 2 1

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

56 53 53 50 55 53 55 53 52 55
19 18 16 16 17 16 18 18 17 16
- - - - - - - - 11 10

9 9 9 8 8 7 8 - - -

7 8 7 8 9 9 10 12 - -
313 315 314 301 299 293 281 254 242 231
230 218 217 204 206 218 201 173 165 154

75 77 63 65 61 64 61 50 50 46
21 14 - - - - - - - -

6 7 7 7 7 7 7 5 7 8

- - - 1 - - - 4 5 4
27 27 27 25 28 26 27 24 22 22
1155 1134 1096 1069 1093 1094 1074 989 953 918

The Utilities Department includes both Sewer and Water. Employees are considered employed by both departments.

At January 1, 2010 the Building Regulation and Planning Commission were merged to create the Community Development Department.

Source: Clark County Auditor's Office
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CLARK COUNTY, OHIO
Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Five Fiscal Years

Schedule 19

Governmental Activities:
General Government:

Legislative and Executive:
Land
Construction in Progress
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Judicial:
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Public Safety:
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Public Works:
Construction in Progress
Infrastructure
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Health:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Human Services:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Conservation/Recreation:
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Note: Information prior to 2007 is not available.

Source: Clark County Auditor's Office

2008
2007 as reclassified 2009 2010 2011

$ 7204888 $ 7204888 $ 7,204888 $ 7,204,888 $ 7,204,888

6,806,575 20,489 - - -
25,905,817 23,830,781 23,830,781 23,830,781 23,830,781
24,943,864 32,751,039 32,914,429 32,973,020 32,973,020
2,658,805 2,682,734 2,715,048 2,742,419 2,704,289
1,135,354 1,122,405 1,122,405 1,122,405 1,122,405
656,491 467,123 503,617 583,251 546,269
162,900 162,900 162,900 162,900 162,900
2,548,171 2,488,379 2,538,657 2,536,526 2,699,971
76,400 1,027,196 631,110 2,737,873 2,352,281
88,999,279 91,196,296 94,479,644 95,943,346 97,253,634
8,497 8,497 8,497 39,562 39,562
4,075,484 4,363,120 6,038,704 6,312,748 7,564,757
5,623,078 5,476,101 6,198,929 7,048,409 7,474,083
5,270,948 2,643,485 2,643,485 2,643,485 2,643,485
386,506 7,353,731 7,408,654 7,659,830 7,780,212
1,672,712 2,875,931 2,974,531 2,995,647 3,326,822
2,505,507 3,843,664 3,843,664 3,843,664 3,843,664
258,237 2,457,509 3,165,799 3,400,067 3,471,863
813,266 886,588 1,095,614 1,095,614 767,386
17,793 17,793 17,793 17,793 94,787
39,842 39,842 27,678 27,678 27,678

$ 181,770,414

$ 192,920,491

$ 199,526,827

$ 204,921,906

$ 207,884,737
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Dave Yost - Auditor of State

CLARK COUNTY FINANCIAL CONDITION
CLARK COUNTY

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION
This is atrue and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the
Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

ivan Pouablitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
SEPTEMBER 27, 2012
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Phone: 614-466-4514 or 800-282-0370 Fax: 614-466-4490
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